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Florida Public Service Commission ' ,
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Re: Docket No. 980372-TP, Transfer of Control of L.CI International, Inc.,
LCI International Telecom Corp., and USLD Communications, Inc.
to Owest Communications International Inc.

Dear Ms. Bayo :

On March 18, 1998, Qwest Communications International Inc. (7"Quwest™) LCI
Intemnational, Inc. (“LCII"), LCI International Telecom Corp. ("LCHIT). and USLD
Communications, Inc. (“USLDI”) (collectively, LCIL L.CTT. and USLD referred to as “LCL”
ACK LCI and Qu_!est. as lhc. “@pplicams")..b)_r their attorneys. ﬁlu_l an application with l!w I"In‘ridu
=Public Service Commission (“Commission”) for approval of the transter control of LCTT and
AFA —&8#DI from the current shareholders of LCII to Qwest. This application referenced certain
APP __financial information of Qwest that would be submitied to the Commission as a supplement to

2:5 the notification within the next few weeks.

Enclosed for filing are the original, a duplicate. and 12 copies of Qwest’s most recent
CTR _—sEeForms 10-K and 10-Q. Please supplement the Applicants’ original submission with this
EAG _ filing. Please also date-stamp the duplicate and return it in the self-addressed. postage-paid
e ! envelope provided.
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Please do not hesitate to call me if you have any questions regarding this filing.

ind regards.

Enclosures
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

3 Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934 for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1997

or

(] Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the transition
period from to
Commiesion File Number 000-22609

Qwest Communications International Inc.

(Exact name of registrant specitied in ats chaner)

Delaware 84-1339282
(State or other jurisdiction of (1 R S Employer
incorporation or organization) 1denufication No.)
555 Seventeenth Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202
(Address of principal executive offices)
(303) 291-1400

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Name of exchange
Title of each class: on which registered:
Common Stock, $.01 Par Value NASDAQ
Contingent Cash Consideration Rights

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes ( No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part 11l of this Form 1G-K or any amendment to this Form

10K B

As of March 4, 1998, 206,677,742 shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock, $.01 par value, were issued
and outstanding. The aggregate market value of the Commaon Stock held by non-aftiates of the Registrant, based
on the closing price of the Common Stock as reported on the Nasdag Stock Market (National Market System)
on March 4, 1998 was approximately $7,492,068,148

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement to be used i connection with the annual meeting of
shareholders to be held in 1998 are incorporated by refcrence in Part 111 of this Form 10-K
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Information Regarding Forward-leoking Siatements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of federal
securities laws, including statements about the Company's plans to complete its approximately 16,250 route mile,
coast-to-coast, technologically advanced, fiber optic telecommunications network, expectations as to funding its
capital requirements, anticipated expansion of carier services and commercial services, regulatory and pricing
trend projections, and other statements of expectations, beliefs, future plans and strategies, anticipated
developments, and other matters that are not historical facts. Management cautions the reader that these forward-
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual events or results to differ
materially from those expressed or implied by the statements. Important factors that could prevent the Company
from achieving its stated goals include, but are not limited to: (i) failure of the Company to manage effectively,
cost efficiently and on a limely basis the construction of the Qwest Network (sce definition below) route
segments; (ii) failure to enter into additional customer contracts to scll dark fiber or provide high-volume capacity
and otherwise expand its telecommunications customer base; (jii) failure to oblain and maintain all necessary
rights-of-way; (iv) intense competition in the Company’s carrier services and commercial services markets; (v)
the potential for rapid and significant changes in technology and their effect on the Company’s operations; (vi)
operating and financial risks relased to managing rapid growth and integrating acquircd businesses; (vii) adverse
changes in the regulatory environment; and (viii) risks of being highly leveraged and sustaining operating cash
deficits. For additional information, see *‘Risk Factors™ included in the Company's registration statement on
Form S-4, No. 333-46145, and other Company filings with the SEC.

Part 1.
Item 1. Business

General

Qwest Communications Intemational Inc. (together with its subsidiarics, **Qwest™" or the **Company"’) is a
facilities-based provider of multimedia communications scrvices to interexchange camiers and other
communications entities, businesses and consumers, and it constructs and installs fiber oplic communications
systems for interexchange carviers and other communications entitics, as well as for its own use. The Company
is expanding its existing long distance network into the Qwest MacroCapacity* Network (the “"Qwest
Network''), an approximately 16,250 route mile coast-to-coast, technologically advanced, fiber optic
telecommunications network. The Company will employ. throughout substantially all of the Qwest Network, a
self-healing SONET ring architecture equipped with the most advanced commercially available fiber and
transmission electronics manufactured by Lucent and Nortel, respectively. The Qwest Network's advanced fiber
and transmission electronics are expected to provide the Company with lower installation, operating and
maintenance costs than older fiber systems in commercial use today. In addition, the Company has entered into
construction contracts for the sale of dark fiber along the route of the Qwest Network, which will reduce the
Company's net cost per fiber mile with respect to the fiber it retains for its own use. As a result of these cost
advantages, the Company believes it will be well-positioned to capture market share and take advantage of the
rapidly growing demand for long haul voice and data transmission capacity and services.

Under the Company's current plan, the Qwest Network will extend approximately 16,250 route miles coast-
to-coast and connect approximately 125 metropolitan areas that represent approximately 80% of the originating
and terminating long distance traffic in the United States. Construction of the Qwest Network is scheduled to be
completed in 1999. Through a combination of the Qwest Network and leased facilities, the Company will
continue to offer interstate services in all 48 contiguous states. The Qwest Network will connect to three trans-
Atlantic cable heads and two trans-Pacific cable heads, as well as cross-border points to Canada and Mexico. In
addition to the 16,250 route mile U.S. network, the Company recently extended its network to the United
Kingdom through an exchange of capacity for two 155-megabit circuits that will carry international data and
voice traffic between London and New York. The Company is also extending its nctwork approximately 1,400
route miles into Mexico through dark fiber to be owned by the Company on the fiber optic system of a third
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party. Completion of the Mexico Network is scheduled for late 1998. These connections will allow the Company
10 participate in the anticipated growth in demand for intemnational long distance data and voice services. The
Company plans to transfer carrier and retail switched services provided on leased facilities onto the Qwest
Network as the Company activates its own facilities.

Industry Overview

General. The telecommunications industry involves the transmission of voice, data and video
communications. The industry has been undergoing rapid change due 1o deregulation, the construction of
additional infrastructure and the introduction of new technologies, which has resulted in increased competition

United Seates Domestic Long Distance. The structure of the domestic long distance telecommunications
industry was strongly influenced by a 1982 count decree that required the divestiture by AT&T of its local
telephone businesses and divided the country into approximately 200 LATAS that range in size from metropolitan
aress 10 entire states. The seven resulting RBOCs were initially limited to providing local telephone service,
access to long distance carriers and “‘in-region’” long distance service (service within a LATA). The right to
provide inter-LATA service was initially ceded to AT&T and other long distance carriers, as well as 1o LECs
other than the RBOCs. However, under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the **Telecommunications Act'’),
the RBOCs may now provide inter-LATA long distance service, subject to certain conditions. See *‘Regulation—
General Regulatory Environment."

For each long distance call, the originating and terminating LECs charge the long distance carrier an access
fee to carry the call across their local networks. The long distance carrier charges the customer a fee for its
transmission of the call, a portion of which consists of the access fees charged by the originating and terminating
LECs. To encourage the development of competition in the long distance market, the LECs are required to
provide all long distance carriers with access to local exchange service that is *‘equal in type, quality and price"’
to that provided to0 AT&T. These ** access’’ and related provisions were intended to prevent preferential
treatment of AT&T and to require that the LECs chasge the same access fees to all long distance carriers,
regardiess of their volume of traffic. These provisions, along with the development and evolution of fiber optir
technology with its increased capacity and transmission quality, have helped smaller long distance camiers
emerge as alternatives to the largest companies for long distance telecommunications services. See **Regulation
—General Regulatory Environment.'

United States International Long Distance. The United States international long distance industry is large
and growing. The onset of competition gave rise to deregulation and a decrease in prices, which led to the initial
growth in the market and improvements in service offerings and customer service. Subsequent growth has been
largely attributable to the worldwide trend toward dercgulation and privatization, technological improvements,
the expansion of telecommunications infrastructure and the globalization of the world’s economies.

The profitability of the United States international long distance market is principally driven by the
difference between settlement rates (i.c., the rates paid to other cariers 1o icrminate an international call) and
billed revenue. The difference in cost between providing domestic long distance and intemational service is
minimal, and increased worldwide competition has already brought about certain reductions in settiement rates
and end user prices, thereby reducing overseas termination costs for United States-based carriers. However, it is
believed that certain foreign countries use settlement rates to subsidize their domestic call rates, contributing to
significantly higher rates for certain intemational calls compared 1o domestic long distance calls. The FCC
recently adopted measures intended to overhaul the system of inlemational settlements by mandating that U.S.
carriers negotiate settlement rates with foreign correspondents at or below FCC-mandated benchmark levels.
Several parties have filed petitions for reconsideration with the FCC or court appeals or both following this order,
$0 it remains subject to modification. Additionally, recent worldwide trade negotiations may lead to reduced
settlement rates. Sce ‘‘Regulation—General Regulatory Environment.”’
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Multimedia. Continuing developments in multimedia applications arc bringing new entrants to the
telecommunications market. Internet service providers (“ISPs™) and cable television, entenainment and data
transmission companies, for instance, are potential customers for voice, data and video communications over
high bandwidth networks such as the Qwest Network.

Long Distance Network Services. Switched voice and data require varying amounts of bandwidth,
depending on the nature of the communication. Traditional telcphony services such as **1 Plus’* dialing require
only limited bandwidth (such as 64 Kbps). Emerging broadband services, such as the Intemnet, private networks
and multimedia applications, require higher bandwidth for effective communication. Such services are
increasingly transmittied over SONET ring-protected Optical Carrier level paths (such as OC-48 or 0C-192)
WMWMMuFm Relay and ATM.

Telecommunications Technology. The market for video, voice and data communications is served
primarily through fiber optic and coaxial copper cables, mictowave systems and satellites. Before the 1980s,
telecommunications traffic generally was transmitied through satellites, microwave radio or copper cable
installed undersea or buried in the ground. By 1990, copper cable had been largely replaced by fiber optic
systems that provided greater capacity at lower cost with higher quality and reliability.

Fiber Optic Systems. [Fiber optic systems usc laser-gencrated light to transmit voice, data and video
in digital format through ultra-thin strands of glass. Fiber optic systems arc characterized generally by large
circuit capacity, good sound quality, resistance 1o external signal interference and direct interface to digital
switching equipment or digital microwave systcms. A pair of modem fiber optic strands, using the most
advanced technology commercially available, is capable of carrying OC-192 level capacity, equal to over
129,000 simukaneous telephone calls. Because fiber optic signals disperse over distance, they must be

ified at sites Jocated along the fiber optic cable. Fiber optic systems using carlier gencration
fiber, as compared o the more advanced fiber being installed in the Qwest Network, require frequent
intervals between regeneration/amplifier sites, typically between 20 and 45 miles. The Company's advanced
fiber allows for greater distances between regencration/amplifier sites, and the Qwest Network is designed
to use a maximum of 60-mile intervals. Greater distances between regencration/amplifier sites generally
translate into substantially lower installation and operating costs.

Microwave Systems. Although limited in capacity compared with £5=r optic systems, digital
microwave systems offer an effective and reliable means of transmitting lower volume and narrower
bandwidths of voice, data and video signals. Generally, no more than 21 DS-3s can be transmitted by
microwave between two anteanse. Microwaves are very high frequency radio waves that can be reflected.
focused and beamed in a line-of-sight transmission path. Becausc of their electro-physical properties.
microwaves can be used 10 transmit signals through the air, with relauively little power, in much the same
way that electrical signals are transmitted through a copper wire. To create a communications circuit,
microwave signals are transmitied through a focusing antenna, received by an antenna at the next station in
the network, then amplified and retransmitted. Microwaves disperse as they travel through the air, and as a
result this transmission process must be repeated at repeater stations, which consist of radio equipment,
antennae and back-up power sources.

Sasellite Systems. Although satellites initially were used for point-to-point long distance telephone
and television transmissions, fiber optic cables have proven (o be a more cost effective delivery method for
high volume point-to-point applications. Currently, satellites are primarily used for transmissions that must
reach many locations over vast distances simultancously, such as the distribution of television programming.
for point-to-point traffic in developing countries Jacking termestrial networks and for other point-to-point
traffic that cannot be connected efficiently or cost-effectively by terrestrial transmission systems.

Telecommunications Markets. AT&T, MCI, Sprint and WorldCom together constitute what are generally
referred 0 as the **Tier 1" companies in the long distance market. Long distance companies may generally be
categorized as “‘facilities-based’’ casiers and ssnonfacilities-based’’ carriers. The four Tier | companies arc
facilities-based camriers because each operates a network principally using its own transmission facilities and
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extensive goographically dispersed switching equipment. The completed Qwest Network will enable the
Company to become this type of facilitics-based carrier. All of the Tier | carriers, including AT&T, lease some
of their transmission facilities from other carriers to back up their service routing, augment areas where they
may have traffic bottlenecks or cover a particular geographic area not covered by their own networks.

Medium-sized long distance companies, some with national capabilities, constitute the **Tier 2°' companies
in the long distance market. Certain Tier 2 carriers are known as *‘partial facilities-based"" carriers in that they
own some of their own transmission facilities but operate using mostly leased facilities. However, most Tier 2
carriers are noafacilities-based cariers in that they lease substantially all of their transmission facilities. Tier 2
carriers design, manage and operate their own networks Just as the Tier | camiers, but generally on a smaller
regional scale, focusing on selling traffic originating in their target geographic area. These carriers are also
generally referred to as **switch-based’* or *‘switched'’ because they typically operate their own switches. Some
of these carriers lease high volume DS-3 capacity and resell lower volume DS-1 capacity 1o other cariers at
higher unit prices. DS-3 level capacity is generally only sold by carmers that own facilities on the route on which
the service is sold.

The *“Tier 3" carriers, often called **swiichless™* resellers. neither operate networks nor own facilities, but
rather resell “‘minutes” of service which they purchase from other .amiers These companies, which vary
significantly in size, are primarily sales and marketing companics that gencrate their margins by buying in large
volumes to obtain & low price per minute from switch-based carricrs and resclling at higher prices. These
companics may receive an invoice from their underlying carrier and bill the end user or, in some cases, the
underlying carrier may bill the end user directly. The barriers to entry into this segment of the long distance
market are minimal and there are currently numerous Ticr 3 companies providing long distance services. As its
business increases, a Tier 3 company may install its own switch and move into the Tier 2 category.

Operator services companies concentrate on providing operator services and other communications services
1o the long distance industry, private pay phone operators, prisons and credit card companies. These carmiers also
manage their own networks and switching networks and switching equipment while leasing virtually all of their
facilities.

Competition in the retail long distance industry is based upon pricing, customer service, network quality
and valued-added services, creating opportunitics for smaller long distance providers. Sales efforts of long
distance companies focus increasingly on telemarketing and the use of independent contractors rather than full-
time employees. This has created an opportunity for smaller companies to compete in certain segments of the
long distance market, and many of them are quickly able 1o build sizable customer bases on the strength of their
marketing efforts and distribution channels.

Business Opportunities

The Company believes that demand from interexchange camiers and other communications entities for
advanced, high bandwidth voice, data and video transmission capacity will increase over the next several years
due to regulatory and technological changes and other industry developments. These anticipated changes and
developments include: (i) continued growth in capacity requirements for high speed data transmission, ATM and
Frame Relay services, Intemet and multimedia services and other new technologies and applications; (ii)
continued growth in demand for existing long distance services: (iii) entry into the market of new
communications providers; (iv) requirements of the four principal nationwide carriers (AT&T, MCI, Sprint and
WorldCom) 10 replace or sugment portions of their older systems; and (v) reform in regulation of domestic
access charges and intemnational settlement rates, which the Company expects will lower long distance rates and
fuel primary demand for long distance services.

Accommodation of the Internet and Other New Applications.  The Company believes that additional
network transmission capacity and faster response times will be required 10 accommodate multimedia (voice,
data and video) and other potential high-bandwidth applications, such as increasing use of the Internet by
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commercial users, the deployment of corporate intrancts and the use of telecommunications infrastructure for
providing cable television and other entertainment services. The Company believes this growth will result in
increased demand for high-bandwidth dedicated circuits and other network services provided by the Company
(such as Frame Relay and ATM).

Base Growth of Existing Telecommunications Providers. Domestic long distance industry revenue has
increased in recemt years. The revenue increases were achieved against a backdrop of declining unit prices for
most telecommunications services, which suggests that the demand for telecommunications bandwidth has
increased at an even higher rate. The Company believes that these growth trends generally will continue and that
certain companies that do not own most of their networks have potential needs to invest in network facilities or
lease high bandwidth network capacity in order to remain competitive. In addition, the Company believes that
the Qwest Network will allow the Company to offer an attractive alternative for leased capacity simply to meet
current levels of demand for wholesale telecommunications services

Capacity Required by New Communications Entrantis. Competition and dercgulation are bringing new
entrants into the telecommunications market. The Company anticipates that this trend will accelerate as a result
of the Telecommunications Act. The Telecommunications Act allows the RBOCs and GTE to enter the long
distance business and enables other entities, including entitics affiliated with power utilities and ventures between
LECs and cable television companies, to provide an expanded range ol telecommunications services. As these
entities emerge as long distance competitors, the Company beheves they will need their own facilities and
additional high-bandwidth capacity to compete effectively with facilitics-based providers.

Augmentation of Older Systems. The coast-to-coast fiber systems currently operated by the Tier | camiers
were constructed for the most part prior to 1990, using standard, single mode fiber. Most of these systems were
buried directly in the ground without protective conduit. The conversion of these older systems to the use of
SONET ring architecture requires increasingly more bandwidth over additional route miles. Accordingly, the
Company believes that the Tier | camiers will generally need o replace or augment parts of their networks to
add more capacity, route diversity and redundancy to their systems and to lower their overall operating costs.
The Company believes that the older, legacy systems operated by certain of the Tier | carriers generally face
certain other disadvantages when compared to the Qwest Network, such as: (i) lower transmission speeds; (ii)
lower overall capacity; (iii) shorter distances between regeneratio/amplifier facilities; (iv) more costly
maintenance requirements; (v) greater susceptibility to system interruption from physical damage to the network
infrastructure; and (vi) greater difficulty in upgrading to more advanced fiber due to lack of a spare conduit.

Access Charge and International Settlement Rate Reform. The Company anticipates that primary demand
for long distance services will be stimulated by reforms of domestic access charges and international settlement
rates and recent intemational trade negotiations. As long distance prices dechine, the Company expects that
overall demand for its services by carriers, businesses and consumers will increase.

Business Strategy

The Company's objective is to become a leading, coast-to-coast facilities-based provider of multimedia
communications services (0 other communications providers, businesses and consumers. To achieve this
objective, the Company intends to:

Deploy a Technologically Advanced Network. The Company belicves the technical characteristics of the
Qwest Network will ensble it to provide highly reliablc services 1o interexchange carriers and other
communications entities at low per unit costs as it expands its customer basc and increases network traffic
volume. For instance, the Qwest Network's advanced fiber optic cable and clectronic equipment permit high
capacity transmission over longer distances between regeneration/amplifier facilities than older fiber systems.
This translates into generally lower installation and operating costs. These costs typically constitute a significant
portion of the overall cost of providing telecommunications services.
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Build on Network Construction Expertise and Existing Network Assets. As of December 31, 1997, the
Company had built over 9,800 route miles of telecommunications conduit systems over the last eight years for
itself and major interexchange camiers including AT&T, MCI, Sprint and WorldCom. As of December 31, 1997,
Network Construction Services employed over 950 experienced construction personnel led by a senior
construction management team. The Company utilizes its own fleet of owned and leased railroad equipment and
had in place railroad and other right-of-way agreements covering approximately 94% of the Qwest Network and
had installed approximately 60% of the route miles of conduit required for the Qwest Network as of
December 31, 1997. In addition, the Company has fixed-price supply agreements for the provision of all the fiber
and transmission electronics necessary to construct and activate the Qwest Network.

Establish Low Cost Position. The Company has entered into major construction contracts for the sale of
dark fiber in the Qwest Network that will allow the Company to achieve a low net capital investment in the
Qwest Network and share future operating and maintenance costs. Eamings from these agreements will reduce
the Company's net cost per fiber mile with respect to the fiber that it retains for its own use. The Company
believes that this network cost advantage, coupled with the operating and maintenance cost advantages of owning
an entirely new network with advanced fiber and equipment uniformly deployed systemwide, will enable it to
establish a low cost position in the long distance industry relative to its competitors.

Build on Management Experience. The Company's management team and board of directors include
individuals with significant experience al major telecommunications companies. These executives have extensive
management experience in marketing, sales, finance, construction, information technology. network operations
and engineering, having served in various capacities within large, rapidly growing organizations.

Grow Carrier Revenue Base. The Company is currently expanding Carrier Services lo increase its revenue
stream and reduce per unit costs, targeting capacity sales on a segment-by-segment basis as the Qwest Network
is deployed and activated, and is increasingly seeking long-term, high volume capacity agreements from major
carriers. In addition 10 traditional telecommunications carriers, the Company is marketing to ISPs and other data

In January 1998, the Company signed a long-term contract to provide Apex Global Internet Services, Inc.
(**AGIS"") telecommunications cqncuy along approximately 10,000 routc miles of the Qwest Network. In
consideration, the Company will receive 19.99% of AGIS's common stock and up to $310.0 million in cash over
an extended payment term. There are restrictions on the sale by the Company of AGIS's common stock, and
AGIS has the right to repurchase the common stock until the contract’s sccond anniversary. The Company will
also receive monthly operations and maintenance fees totaling approximatcly $251.0 million over the term of the
multi-year contract. Prior to delivery of the telecommunications capacity aml acceptance by AGIS, AGIS has the
right to purchase interim capacity from the Company. The total cash consideration under the contract will be
reduced by 60% of the sums paid by AGIS for purchases of interim capacity. Pursuant to the terms of the
contract, AGIS may require the Company to purchase an additional $10.0 million of its common stock. If the
Company fails 10 complete at least 75% of AGIS's network by the contract’s third anniversary, AG!S may, at its
option, either accept the completed portion and pay for it on a pro rata basis or terminate the contract and require
the Company to retumn all consideration received. Under the terms of the contract, the companies will enter into
a joint marketing arrangement to expand their product and service offerings to include internet protocol (**IP*')
telephony, video conferencing, ATM and Frame Relay services. AGIS. founded in 1994, provides Internet access
to users via its extensive customer base of RBOCs, content providers, large corporations and ISPs.

Develop Commercial Services. The Company plans to build on its Carrier Services experience to expand
its presence in the Commercial Services market by developing its distinctive *‘Ride the Light™"* brand identity
and aggressively marketing its existing and planned voice, data and other transmission products and services.
‘The Company plans to build direct ead user relationships by developing strong distribution channels, providing
competitive pricing and superior network quality and offering enhanced, market-driven services to businesses
and consumers.



Acquire Complemensary Businesses. The Company continually evaluates opportunities to acquire or invest
in complementary, attractively valued businesses, facilities, contract positions and assets to improve its ability o
offer new products and services to customers, to compete more effectively and to facilitate further growth of its
business. The Compeny recently announced the following acquisitions or proposed acquisitions:

In October 1997, the Company acquired SuperNet, Inc. (**SNI''), an ISP tor $20.2 million in cash, including
acquisition costs. SNI is a regional ISP in the Rocky Mountain region that offers Internet services ranging from
metered dial-in access to Internet-based data management and hosting services. SNI provides a customer base,
existing product lines and techaical expertise from which the Company can build product lines in Commercial
Services, including corporate intranet and extranet services and virtual privale networks.

In January 1998, the Company signed a definitive merger agreement to acquire Phoenix Network, Inc.
(*‘Phoenix Network’’), a non-facilities-based reseller of long distance services. Phoenix Network currently has
approximately 40,000 customers, primarily in the business market. Under the terms of the acquisition, up to
$28.5 million of the Company's common stock and up to $4.0 million of cash will be exchanged for the
outstanding shares of Phoenix Network as of the close of the acquisition. The cash portion of the consideration
is being withheld pending the outcome of litigation for which Phoenix Network or its affiliates may have certain
potential liability. The transaction is subject to the approval of the Phoenix Network stockholders, the receipt of
certain state and federal regulatory approvals and the satisfaction of other customary closing conditions. The
meeting of the Phoenix Network stockholders to consider approval of the acquisition is scheduled for March 30,
1998.

On March 8, 1998, the Company and LCI Intemnational, Inc., a Delaware corporation (**LCI'"), entered into
a definitive agreement and plan of merger that will result in LCI becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The board of directors of each company has approved the merger.

The merger will create the fourth largest U. S. long distance company, based on revenue, after giving effect
to the proposed merger of WorldCom and MCI. The combined companies had 1997 revenue of approximately
$2.3 billion, serve over two million business and residential customers and have a total current equity market
capitalization of over $11.0 billion. The merger enables the LCI nationwide customer base to fully leverage the
capabilities and efficiencies of the Qwest Network and allows the Company to take full advantage of LCI's sales
and marketing expertise, distribution channels, intelligent nctwork platform and LCI's customer care and billing

system.

The all-stock transaction is valued at approximately $4.4 billion. The actual number of shares of the
Company's Common Stock to be exchanged for each LCI share will be determined by dividing $42.00 by a
volume weighted average of trading prices for the Company's Common Stock for a specified 15-day period prior
to the closing, but will not be less than 1.0625 shares (if the Company’s average stock price exceeds $39.53) or
more than 1.5583 shares (if the Company's average stock price is less than $26.95). If the Company’s average
stock price is less than $26.95, LCI may terminate the merger unless the Company then agrees to exchange for
each share of LCI the number of Qwest shares determined by dividing $42.00 by such average price. The merger
is intended to qualify as a tax-free reorganization and will be accounted for as a purchase.

Completion of the transaction is anticipated to occur duning the third quarter of 1998. The transaction is
subject to the majority voie of the shareholders of the Company and LCl and to other customary conditions such
as receipt of regulatory approvals. Anschutz Company (the '*Majority Sharcholder’’), owning approximately
83.7% of the Company’s Common Stock, has agreed to vote in favor of the transaction.

The Qwest Network

As of December 31, 1997, the Company's network infrastructure included, among other assets: (i)
approximately 9,500 route miles of conduit in place, consisting of approximately 3,400 route miles of lit fiber
including the spans connecting Los Angeles to Sacramento to Denver, to Kansas City, to Indianapolis, and Dallas
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to Houston; approximately 3,300 route miles of dark fiber installed in conduit; and approximately 2,800 route
miles of vacant conduit; (ii) right-of-way agreements in place for approximately 3,500 additional route miles of
planned construction for the Qwest Network; (iii) an approximately 3,500 mile operating digital microwave
system (the **Microwave System"'); (iv) approximately 15,000 DS-3 miles of fiber transmission capacity leased
by the Company from other carriers, used primarily to extend the Company's switched services for originating
and terminating traffic beyond the boundaries of the Company’s lit fiber network; and (v) five digital switches
(two of which are leased).

The physical components of the Qwest Network are: (i) high density polyethylene conduit, which is hollow
tubing 1% 10 2 inches in diameter; (ii) fiber optic cable, which consists of fiber strands placed inside a plastic
sheath and strengthened by metal; (iii) electronic equipment necessary to activate the fiber for transmission; (iv)
switches that ensble the Company to provide switched services to carrier and commercial customers; and (v)
approximately 125 points of presence, which allow the Company to concentrate customers’ traffic at locations
where the Company does not have switches and carry the traffic to switching centers over the Qwest Network.

With the completion of the Qwest Network, the Company will provide telecommunications services
nationally to its customers primarily over its own facilitics, using leased lacilities in those portions of the country
not covered by the Qwest Network. The Company is evaluating the economics of extending its core network
versus continuing to lease network capacity. The Company expects to deploy three new DMS 250 switches from
Nortel. The new switches are planned to be installed in Atlanta, Indianapolis, and New York City. The additional
switches will expand the Company’s on-net switch network to include key business centers in the Northeast,
Southeast and Midwest regions of the United States. Also, the Company continues to evaluate opportunities to
acquire or invest in complementary, attractively valued businesses, facilities, contract positions and assets to
improve its ability to offer new products and services to customers, to compete more effectively and to facilitate
further growth of its business.

Advanced Technology. The Company is installing technologically advanced fiber optic cable and
electronic equipment in a uniform configuration throughout the Qwest Network, using an advanced network
management system. The Qwest Network's technologies include Lucent’s non-zero dispersion shifted fiber and
Nortel’s dense wave division multiplexing, forward error correction technology and SONET ring technology that
ensble OC-192 transmission capacity and high integrity levels.

The Qwest Network is designed for superior sccurity and reliability, based on (i) bi-directional SONET ring
architecture, a self-healing system that allows for ncarly instantaneous rerouting and virtually eliminates
downtime in the event of a fiber cut; (ii) fiber cable installed in high density polyethylene conduit generally
buried 42-56 inches below the ground; and (iii) extensive use of railroad rights-of-way, which typically offer
greater protection of the fiber system than other systems built over more public rights-of-way such as highways,
telephone poles or overhead power transmission lines.

The Qwest Network is designed for expandability and flexibility and will contain two conduits along
substantially all of its route. The first conduit will contain a cable generally housing at least 96 fibers, and the
second conduit will serve as a spare. The spare conduit will allow for future technology upgrades and expansion
of capacity st costs significantly below the cost of new construction. After existing and anticipated dark fiber
sales, the Company generally plans to retain a minimum of 48 fibers for its own use in the Qwest Network. With
the combined use of non-zero dispersion shified fiber, dense wave division multiplexing and high bit rate
transmission electronics, each of the fibers retained by the Company can achieve substantially greater capacity
per fiber than standard, single mode fiber now in use.

The Company monitors its current network, and will monitor the Qwest Network, 24 hours a day, seven
days a week from its Network Managemcnt Center in Denver, Colorado. This facility provides centralized
network surveillance, troubleshooting and customer service, using technology that enables the Company to
reduce service costs and customer downtime. The system currently allows the Company’s technicians to detect a
component malfunction in the Qwest Network, quickly reroute the customer to an available aliemate path and
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effect an expedited repair. Upon completion of the Qwest Network with its SONET ring architecture, the
rerouting function will be fully sutomated. In addition, the Company is deploying new management tools,
including Nortel's Integrated Network Management Solutions, that will give the Company’s Carrier Serviss
mﬁeﬂkybmﬂwnﬂmﬁmdnirkmdupuityon an essentially real time basis from their
own network management centers and the ability to rapidly increase o reduce bandwidth 1o better match their
needs. The availsble software features equipment inventory management, bandwidth inventory management,
configuration management, fault isolation management, **point-and-click’* provisioning on pantitioned network
and slarm monitoring. As of December 31, 1997, the Company maintained a staff of approximately 235
technicians and other relsted persoanel across the sysiem to provide maintenance and technical support services.
The Company hes also implemented a “*Call Before U Dig™ (“"CBUD") program, backed up by its 24-hour
Network Management Center to reduce the risk of damage to the conduit or fiber system. Additionally, above
ground markers are placed at frequent intervals along the route of the Qwest Network.

Railroad Rights-of-Way. The Company has agreements in place with major railroads that provide it with
rights-of-way throughout the United States. The Company believes that use of railroad rights-of-way, along with
the protective conduit, give the Company inherent advantages over other systems built over more public rights-
of-way, such as highways, telephone poles or overhead power transmission lincs. These advantages include
higher security for the Qwest Network and greater protection of the fiber system.

Railroad rights-of-way also provide the Qwest Network generally with a direct, continuous route between
cities. This eliminates the potential need, and the associated time and costs, to piece together rights-of-way using
a combination of agreements with private owners and state or municipal agencies. In addition, railroad rights-of-
way typically extend into downtown areas of cities that are strategically important to the Company. The
Company's right-of-way agreements provide for continuing or lump-sum cash payments, exchanges of rights-of-
way for network capacity or 8 combination of both. Between 70% and 80% of the Qwest Network will be
installed on railroad rights-of-way.

The Company has other right-of-way agreements in place, where necessary of economically preferable, with

highway commissioas, utilities, political subdivisions and others. As of December 31, 1997, the Company had in

for approximately 94% of the rights-of-way needed to complete the Qwest Network. As of

December 31, 1997, the remaining rights-of-way needed for completion of the Qwest Network consisted of

approximately 1,100 route miles located primarily in the Midwest and Mid-Atlantic regions. The Company has

identified altemative rights-of-way for these route miles and is currently in negotiations with respect to all of
them.

Network Installation. As of December 31, 1997, the Company employed over 950 experienced
construction personnel and uses its own flect of equipment, as well as leased equipment. The Company

supplements these resources with independent contractors.

Dark Fiber Soles. The Company has entered into agreements with Frontier, WorldConi and GTE and
others whereby each is purchasing dark fiber along the Qwest Network. The proceeds from these contracts for
the sale of dark fiber will provide cash for a significant portion of the total estimated costs to construct the Qwest
Network and provide the dark fiber sold 1o Frontier, WorldCom and GTL and others. This is expected to provide
the Company with a strategic network cost advantage on the fibers that the Company retains for the Qwest
Network. Each agreement requires the purchaser to pay an aggregale price consisting of an initial payment
followed by instaliments during the construction period based on the Company’s achievement of certain
milestones (e.g., commencement of construction, conduit installation and fiber installation), with final payment
for each segment made at the time of acceptance. Each agreement provides for the sharing of certain maintenance
costs. The Frontier and GTE agreements also provide for sharing of certain operating costs. The agreements
establish anticipated delivery dates for construction and delivery of segments along the route of the Qwest
Network. Delivery may be extended under ecach agreement for force majeure events. The Frontier and GTE
agreements provide for penalties in the event of delay of segments and, in certain circumstances, allow Frontier
and GTE 0 delete non-delivered segments from the contracts.



The Company believes that significant opportunitics exist 10 sell additional dark fiber throughout the Qwest
Network and menagement has identified and is in various stages of negotiations with potential customers.
However, the Company does not expect 1o enter into additional agr_ nents of the size and scope of the Frontier
and GTE contracts. These potential customers include other interexchange carriers, cable, entertainment and data
transmission companies, RBOCs, ISPs, LECs and CLECs. The Company believes that these potential customers
will view the Company as an attractive source for certain of their long distance transmission needs. In order 1o
meet the needs of this diverse group of customers, the Company expects to offer a wide variety of pricing and
system options to meet specific needs of each customer. For example, customers may purchase or lease dark
fiber or purchase capacity on a short- or long-term basis.

The Frontier and GTE agreements each provide for the purchase of 24 fibers along major pontions of the
Qwest Network, while the WorldCom agreement generally provides for the purchase of 24 or, in certain
segments, 36 fibers. Several smaller construction contracts for sales of dark fiber provide for the sale of smaller
numbers of fibers over a more limited number of segments. In segments where the Company agrees to sell dark
fiber to others, it generally will install enough fibers so that it can retain 48 fibers for its own use along

substantially all of the route of the Qwest Network

Significant Customers
During 1997 and 1996, the Company’s top 10 customers accounted for approximately 83.6% and 69.3'%,
respectively, of its consolidated gross revenuc Frontier, WorldCom and GTE accounted for 31.2%. 6.1% and
36.6% of such revenue, respectively, in 1997 and 26.3%, 27.8% and 0.0% of such revenue, respectively, in 1996,
attributable primarily to construction contracts for the sale of dask fiber to these customers that extend through
1998 or into 1999 pursuant to the applicable contract.

Carrier Services

General. The Company has been positioned historically in the long distance business as a *‘casrier's
carrier,” providing dedicated line and switched services to other carriers over the Company's owned or leased
fiber optic metwork facilities. Management believes that the Company has camed a reputation of providing
Quality services at competitive prices to meet specific customer needs. Total revenue from Carrier Services was
approximstely $55.6 million, $57.6 million and $67.8 million for the years 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.
These revenue amounts have not been adjusted for the sale of the Company's resale dedicated line services on
leased capacity which occurred in July 1996.

Products. Products offered by Carrier Services fall into three prumary categories: (i) high volume capacity
services; (ii) conventional dedicated line services; and (iii) switched services.

High Volume Capacity Services. The Company provides high volume transmission at or above the OC-3
level (or its equivalent) through service agreements for terms of one year or longer. As the Qwest Network is
deployed, the Company also is targeting potential large users in the inter-LATA market that may seek to augment
their own networks or provide diverse routing altemnatives in strategic areas of their systems.

Conventional Dedicated Line Services. The Company provides dedicated line services on owned capacity
to a wide range of customers at capacities below the OC-3 level generally for terms of one year or less. The
Company expects the Qwest Network will enable the Company to offer these services over a significantly
expanded geographic area.

Switched Services. The Company provides switched terminating  services over its switched service
network to large and small long distance carriers. The carmier switched terminaling service business is specifically
used (o increase volume on the Company’s switched service network 1o allow for more efficient *“trunking’’ of
calls. While the carrier switched services generate revenue at lower margins than the dedicated line services,
such services facilitate cost effective management of the Qwest Network.
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The Company also plaas to provide high speed ATM and Frame Relay data services to carriers and ISPs by
installing ATM and Frame Relay switching equipment. The Company expects such services to become available
in 1998.

Customers. Casier Services' customer base in the inter-LATA carrier market consists of the following:

Tier | and Tier 2 Carriers. The Company offers high volume transmission capacity. conventional
dedicated line services and dedicated switched services to the Tier | and Tier 2 carriers on a national or
regional basis. As RBOCs enter the long distance market, the Company believes they will be potential
customers to lease high volume capacity from the Company on a national basis.

Tier 3 Carriers. The Company currently offers switchless resale services to Tier 3 carriers on a
limited basis. The Company anticipates that this business will expand as coverage of the Company's
switched network grows.

Internet Service Providers. The Company currently offers high volume capacity to ISPs on a limited
basis.

Operator Services Companies and Other Niche Compames. These companies concentrate on
providing operstor services and other communications services to the long distance industry, private
payphone operators, prisons and credit card companics These carriers also manage their own networks and
switching equipment while leasing virtually all of theu transmission facilities. The Company provides
transmission services to these carriers.

Service Agreements. The Company provides high volume transmission capacity services through service
agreements for terms of one year or longer. Dedicated line services are generally offered under service
agreements for an initial term of one year. High volume capacity service agreements and dedicated line service
agreements generally provide for **take or pay"’ monthly payments at fixed rates based on the capacity and length
of circuit used. Customers are typically billed on a monthly basis and also may incur an installation charge or
certain ancillary charges for equipment. After contract expiration, the contracts may be renewed or the services
may be provided on a month-to-month basis. Switched services agreements are generally offered on a month-to-
month basis and the service is billed on a minutes-of-use basis. Revenue from carrier customers that is billed on
s minutes-of-use basis has the potential to fluctuate significantly based on changes in usage that are highly
dependent on differences between the prices charged by the Company and its competitors. The Company.
however, has not experienced significant fluctuations to date.

Commercial Services

General. The Company began offering Commercial Scrvices in 1993. Commercial Services focuses
primasily on the sale of inter-LATA long distance services (o the retail market, principally to small- and medium-
sized businesses and to consumers. The Company currently provides facilities-based services along the majority
of its lit routes, and is & swilch based reseller elsewhere. Total revenue from Commercial Services was
spproximately $59.6 million, $34.3 million and $20.4 million in 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The
Company plans to transfer carrier and commercial switched traffic from leased facilities onto the Qwest Network
as it is activated. As traffic volume increases and the Company carries a greater percentage of traffic on the Qwest
Network, the Company believes it will realize economies of scale and thereby lower its cost of sales as a

percentage of revenue.

Products. 'The Company markets the following products

One Plus. This basic service offers customers the ability to make outbound long distance calls from
any local telephone line by simply dialing a 1. plus the arca code and phone number. Customers select the
Company as their primary long distance provider by placing an order with it. This service may be used for
both domestic and intemational calling.

13



10056. This service allows the customer to access the Qwest Network by dialing 10056 plus 1, plus
the area code and phone number, with no need to change their primary long distance provider. These
customers are solicited through direct mailing.

Dedicated Access Service. These lines are designed for larger users with enough traffic volume to
wasrant the use of a dedicated access line to originate calls. Instead of a switched access line that is shared
by many users, this service uses a high capacity linc that is used exclusively to connect between the end
user and the long distance carier’s switch. This results in lower originating access cost and reduced rates to
the user.

Toll Free 800/888. This inbound service, where the receiving party pays for the call, is accessed by
dialing an B00/B88 area code. This is used in a wide variety of applications, many of which generate revenue
for the user (such as reservation centers or customer service centers). The Company plans to introduce
additional enhanced features such as call routing by origination point, time of day routing and other
premium features in 1998.

Calling Card. These traditional, basic telephone calling cards aliow the user to place calls from
anywhere in the United States or Canada. The Company offers additional features such as conference
calling, international origination, information service access (such as weather or stock quotes), speed dialing
and voice messaging.

Prepaid Card.  Prepaid cards allow a customer 1o purchase and pay in advance for a card with a fixed
amount of calling time. The card is then used as a standard calling card. Prepaid cards may be purchased
with enhanced features similar to those of calling cards and also may be renewed by purchasing additional
time.

Insernational Callback. This service operates by allowing a customer in a foreign country to place a
toll-free call to the U.S. and be *‘called back'* by the Company’s cquipment. The Company charges a rate
similar to that which the customer would pay if the call were onginally initiated in the U.S.. allowing the
customer (o take advantage of the fact that the rates for calling from the U.S. to many foreign destinations
are lower than the cost of the same call if it were originated in the foreign country.

Media Express(TM). This is an exclusive switched digital broadband service that provides variable
bandwidth for video communications and other data applications on demand and allows users t» control all
the required components of a video conference from a personal computer.

Voice Over IP. In February 1998, the Company began commercial service for its voice over internet
protocol (“‘IP"’) telephony service, Q.talk (SM), with customers using the service through a controlled
introduction in nine cities. The Company cxpects to expand its service offering 1o approximately 25 cities
by mid-1998, and continue the expansion of the service in conjunction with the planned Qwest Network
buildout. The Company offers to customers uncompressed voice over IP service at 7.5-cents per minute, 24
hours a day, seven days a week.

Orher services offered by Commercial Services include audio conferencing, operator services, directory
assistance, special rate structures, custom services, special contract pricing and special local access armangements
in selected markets. In addition, the Company intends to develop and offer additional value-added services to its
customers, particularly business customers, to differentiate the Company from its competitors and enhance
Commercial Services profit margins. The Company also is evaluating and intends to introduce in the future a
variety of services specifically designed to capture a share of the growing data networking market.

In Seprember 1997, the Company entered into an arrangement with Cisco Systems Inc. under which they
will jointly define and test new broadband business multimedia services.

Customers. Commercial Services currently targets small and medium o large businesses. The strategy of
Commercial Services is to develop a customer basc in geographic proximity to the Qwest Network.
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Network Construction Services

General. The Company's Network Construction Services operations commenced in 1988 with the
construction of conduit systems for major interexchange camiers. Tolal revenue from Network Construction
Services was approximately $581.4 million, $139.2 million and $36.9 million in 1997, 1996 and 1995,

respectively.

Products. The principal product of Network Construction Services historically has been tum-key conduit
systems built for other carriers. In most cases, while fulfilling customer contracts, the Company installed
additional conduit that it retained for its own use. The Company is using its Network Construction Services
resources (o implement its stralegic plan to complete the Qwest Network, in addition to providing Network
Construction Services to third party customers along Qwest Network routes.

In 1996, the Company began selling dark fiber to teleccommuzications entities to help fund development of
the Qwest Network. In 1996, the Company's Network Construction Services revenue was derived largely from
two principal dark fiber sales contracts with Fronticr and WorldCom. These two contracts, along with the
contracts with GTE, generated the majority of Network Construction Services revenue in 1997, and it is expected
that these contracts will also generate the majority of such revenuc in 1998. In addition, the Company expects to

additional revenue through the sale of dark fiber along various segments of the Qwest Network to other

Customers. Network Construction Services customers historically have been primarily interexchange
carriers, as well as major LECs and other telecommunications companics. For the year ended December 31,
1997, GTE was the largest single Network Construction Services customer, accounting for approximately 36.6%
of the Company’s consolidated gross revenue, with Frontier accounting for approximately 31.2%. For the year
ended December 31, 1996, WorldCom was the Company s largest single customer, accounting for approximately
27.8% of the Company's consolidated gross revenue, and Frontier accounted for approximately 26.3% of the
Company's consolidated gross revenue. No other customers accounted for more than 10% of consolidated gross
revenue in 1997 and 1996. For the year ended December 31, 1995, MCI was the Company's largest single
customer, accounting for approximately 35.4% of consolidated gross revenue. No other customer accounted for
more than 10% of consolidated gross revenue in 1995.

Sales and Marketing

The Company sells network dedicated and switched services 1o carriers through its carrier sales
organization. This organization consists of senior level management personnel and experienced sales
representatives with extensive knowledge of the industry and key contacts within the industry at various levels
in the carrier organizations.

In Commercial Services, the Company cumently solicits targeted businesses through telemarketing
personnel, independent contractors and a direct sales channel. The Company plans to expand its presence in the
Commercial Services market by developing its distinctive *'Ride the Light (TM)'* brand identity and
aggressively marketing its existing and planned voice, data and other transmission products and services. The
Company plans to build direct end user relationships by developing strong distribution channels, providing
competitive pricing and superior network quality and offering enhanced, market-driven services to businesses
and consumers.

In Sepiember 1997, the Company entered into a marketing agreement with Innova, Inc. (*‘Innova’’) under
which Innova will be an authorized sales representative of the Company marketing the Company's long-distance
products through affinity groups. Innova is a marketing company that wholesales and retails telecommunication
products on a national basis with an emphasis on developing bundled product packages.

Also in September 1997, the Company entered into a marketing agreement with en-able, a joint venture of
KN Energy, Inc. (*'KN'*) and PacifiCorp. Jordan Haines, a Director of the Company, is also a Director of KN.
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The Company's One Plus and Calling Card scrvices (with competitive intenational pricing for both) will be
offered 10 utilities across the nation along with other services provided by en-able under its Simple Choice (SM)

brand name.

In February 1998, the Company introduced its QwesiLinked (TM) partner marketing program. Carriers,
corporations and technology partners who choose the Qwest Network for their data, multimedia and voice
connections are eligible to become QwesiLinked and share the brand trademark.

Competition
The telecommunications industry is highly competitive. Many of the Company’s existing and potential
competitors in the Camier Services, Commercial Services and Network Construction Services markets have
financial, personnel, masketing and other resources significantly greater than those of the Company, as well as
other competitive advantages. Increased consolidation and strategic alliances in the industry resulting from the
Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the **Telecom Act of 1996™") could give rise to significant new competitors (o

the Company.

In the Casrier Services market, the Company’s primary competitors are other carrier service providers.
Within the Carrier Services market, the Company competes with large and small facilities-based intereachange
carriers. For high volume capacity services, the Company competes primarily with other coast-to-coast and
regional fiber optic network providers. There are currently four principal facilities-based long distance fiber optic
networks (AT&T, MCI, Sprint and WorldCom, although WorldCom made an unsolicited exchange offer for MCI
and a proposed merger is pending). The Company is aware that others are planning additional networks that, if
constructed, could employ advanced technology similar to the Qwest Network. Upon completion of the Qwest
Network, Frontier and GTE will each have a fiber network similar in geographic scope and potential operating
capability to that of the Company. Another competitor is construcling, and has already obtained a significant
portion of the financing for, a fiber optic network. The scope and capacity of that competitor’s network, as
publicly announced, is less than that of the Company. and does not contain all of the advanced technologies
designed for the Qwest Network, but is expected to compete dircctly with the Qwest Network for many of the
same customers along a significant portion of the same routes. A carrier’s carrier announced in January 1998
that it plans 10 sell wholesale capacity on its fiber optic network and that it has entered into an agreement with
onc of the RBOCs to be the primary user of its network. The Company believes that this network, although
potentially competitive, is different in operating capability from the Qwest Network. Another potential
competitor, a new telecommunications company, has announced its intention to create a telecommunications
network based on Intemnet technology.

The Company's competitors in Carrier Services include many large and small interexchange carriers. The
Company's Carrier Services business competes primarily on the basis of pricing, transmission quality, network
reliability and customer service and support. The ability of the Company to compete effectively in this market
will depend upon its ability to maintain high quality scrvices at prices equal to or below those charged by its
competitors.

Commercial Services has been and expects to continue to be a provider of high quality, low cost service
primarily to small- and medium-sized business customers and consumers. The Company intends to move into
the market for higher volume business customers as the Qwest Network is completed and new products are
introduced. In recent years the small- and medium-sized business market has experienced increased competition.
The industry wide changes in technology and the effects of deregulation resulting from the Telecommunications
Act are likely to further increase competition. Many of the Company’s competitors and potential competitors
have financial, personnel and other resources substantially greater than those of the Company. In the Commercial
Services market, the Company's primary competitors include AT&T, MCI, Sprint and WorldCom, all of whom
have extensive experience in the long distance market. In October 1997, MCI and WorldCom announced a
proposed merger. The impact on the Company of such a merger or other consolidation in the industry is
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uncertain. In addition, the Telecom Act of 1996 will allow the RBOCs and others 1o enter the long distance
market.

In the future, the Company may be subject to additional competition due to the development of new
techaologies and increased supply of domestic and intemational transmission capacity. The telecommunications
industry Is in  period of rapid technological evolution, marked by the introduction of new product and service
offerings and increasing satellite transmission capacity for services similar to those provided by the Company.
For instance, recent technological advances permit substantial increases in transmission capacity of both new
and existing fiber, and the introduction of new products or emergence of new technologies may reduce the cost
or increase the supply of certain services similar to those provided by the Company.

High initial network cost and low marginal costs of carrying long distance traffic have led to a trend among
nonfacilities-based carriers 1o consolidate in order to achieve economies of scale. Such consolidation could result
in larger, better capitalized competitors. However, the Company belicves that such competitors would also be

stronger prospects as potential Carrier Services customers.

Regulation

General Regulatory Environment. The Company's operations are subject to extensive federal and state

ion. Carrier Services and Commercial Services (but not Network Construction Services) are subject to the
provisions of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, including the Telecommunications Act and the FCC
regulations thereunder, as well as the applicable laws and regulations of the various states, including regulation
by PUCs and other state agencies. Federal laws and FCC regulations apply to interstate telecommunications
(including intemational telecommunications that originate or terminate in the United States), while state
regulatory authorities have jurisdiction over telecommunications both originating and terminating within the
state. The regulation of the telecommunications industry is changing rapidly, and the regulatory environment
varies substantially from state o state. Moreover, as deregulation at the federal level occurs, some states are
reassessing the level and scope of regulation that may be applicable to the Company. All of the Company's
operations are also subject 10 a varicty of environmental, safety, health and other govenmental regulations. There
can be no assurance that future regulatory, judicial or legislative activities will not have a material adverse effect
on the Company, or that domestic or intemational regulators or third parties will not raise material issues with

regard 1o the Company's compliance or noncompliance with applicable regulations.

The Telecommunications Act may have potentially significant effects on the operations of the Company.
The Telecommunications Act, among other things, allows the RBOCs and GTE to enter the long distance
business, and enables other entities, including entities affiliated with power utilities and ventures between LECs
and cable television companies, to provide an expanded range of teleccommunications services. Entry of such
companies into the long distance business would result in substantial competition to the Company's Commercial
Services and Carier Services customers, and may have a material adverse effect on the Company and such
customers. However, the Company believes that the RBOCs' and other companies’ participation in the market
will provide opportunities for the Company to sell fiber or lcase long distance high volume capacity.

Under the Telecommunications Act, the RBOCs may immediately provide long distance service outside
those states in which they provide Jocal exchange service (‘‘out-of-region’" service), and long distance service
within the regions in which they provide local exchange service (*‘in-region’" service) upon meeting certain
conditions. GTE may emter the long distance market without regard to limitations by region. The
Telecommunications Act does, however, impose certain restrictions on, among others, the RBOCs and GTE in
connection with their provision of long distance services. Out-of-region services by RBOCs are subject to receipt
of any necessary state and/or federal regulatory approvals that are otherwise applicsble to the provision of
intrastate and/or interstate long distance service. In-region services by RBOCs are subject to specific FCC
approval and satisfaction of other conditions, including a checklist of pro-competitive requirements. On
December 31, 1997, the U.S. District Count, Northern District of Texas (Wichita Falls) (the **District Count™),
in SBC Communications, Inc. v. FCC and US. (the ‘“SBC Communications Case'’), overtumed as
unconstitutional the provisions of the Telecommunications Act which prohibited RBOCs from providing inter-
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LATA long distance services within their own region without demonstrating that the local exchange market was
opened to local competition. The decision, however, affects only SBC Communications, Inc., U.S. West Inc. and
Bell Atlantic. Bell South has filed a recent suit making similar claims. Ameritech has not yet filed such a suit.
Following the filing of respective petitions for stay by AT&T, MCI, the FCC and other intervenors in the SBC
Communications Case, the District Court on February 11, 1998, stayed its decision, pending appellate review. In
an order entered on January 22, 1998, the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals ruled that the FCC may not require
the RBOC:s to comply with other checklist items, the FCC's standard for pricing of access and interconnection,
as a condition of providing in-region service. Under the Telecommunications Act, the RBOCs masy provide in-
region long distance services only through separate subsidiaries with separate books and records, financing,
management and employees, and all affiliate transactions must be conducted on an arm's length and
nondiscriminatory besis. The RBOCs are also prohibited from jointly marketing local and long distance services,
equipment and certain information services unless competitors are permitted 1o offer similar packages of local
and long distance services in their market. Further, the RBOCs must obtain in-region long distance authority
before jointly marketing local and long distance services in a particular state. Additionally, AT&T and other
major carriers serving more than 5% of presubscribed long distance access lines in the United States are also
restricted from packaging other long distance services and local services provided over RBOC facilities. GTE is
subject to the provisions of the Telecommunications Act that impose intesconnection and other requirements on
LECs, and must obtain regulstory approvals otherwise applicable to the provision of long distance services in
connection with its providing long distance services.

Federal Regulation. The FCC has classificd QCC, the Company's principal operating subsidiary, as a non-
dominant carrier. Generally, the FCC has chosen not to excrcise its statulory power to closely regulate the
charges, practices or classifications of non-dominant carriers. However, the FCC has the power to impose more
stringent regulation requirements on the Company and to change its regulatory classification. In the current
regulatory atmosphere, the Company believes that the FCC is unlikely to do so with respect to the Company's

The POC regulates many of the charges, practices and classifications of dominant casriers to a greater degree
than non-dominant camiers. Among domestic cariers, large LECs and the RBOCs are currently considered
dominant carriers for the provision of interstate access services, while all other interstate service providers are
considered non-dominant carriers. On April 18, 1997, the FCC ordered that the RBOCs and independent LECs
offering domestic interstate inter-LATA services, in-region or out-of-region, be regulated as non-dominant
carriers. However, such services offered in-region must be offered in compliance with the structural scparation
requirements mentioned above. AT&T was classificd as a donunant carrier, but AT&T successfully petitioned
the FCC for non-dominant status in the domestic interstate interexchange market in October 1995 and in the
international market in May 1996. Therefore, certain pricing restrictions that once applied to AT&T have been
eliminated. A number of parties sought the FCC's reconsideration of AT&T's status, but the FCC denied these
petitions on October 9, 1997.

As a non-dominant carrier, QCC may install and operate facilities for the transmission of domestic interstate
communications without prior FCC authorization, so long as QCC obtains all necessary authorizations from the
FCC for use of any radio frequencies. Non-dominant carriers are required to obtain prior FCC authorization to
provide intemational telecommunications, and the Company has obtained internati>nal authority that permits it
to operate as a facilities-based carrier 10 all permissible international points and to operate as a resale carrier
(including the resale of private lines for the provision of switched services) to all permissible points. The FCC
also imposes prior approval requirements on certain transfers of control and assignments of operating
authorizations. camriers are required 1o file periodic reports with the FCC conceming their
interstate circuits and deployment of network facilities. Intemational camiers are also required to file periodic
reports regarding traffic and revenue and regarding circuit status and additions. The Company is required to offer
its interstate services on a nondiscriminatory basis, at just and reasonable rates, and remains subject to FCC
complaint procedures. While the FCC generally has chosen not to exercise direct oversight over cost justification
or levels of charges for services of non-dominant carmmicrs, the FCC acts upon complaints against such camiers



for failure t0 comply with statutory obligations or with the FCC"s rules, regulations and policies. The Company
or any of its opersting subsidiaries could be subject 1o legal actions seeking damages, assessment of monetary
forfeitures and/or injunctive relief filed by any party claiming to have been injured by the Company’s practices.
The Company cannot predict either the likelihood of the filing of any such complaints or the results if filed.

Under existing regulations, non-dominant carriers are required to file with the FCC tariffs listing the rates,
terms and coaditions of both interstate and intemnational services provided by the carrier. Pursuant to such
regulations, the Company has filed with the FCC tariffs for its interstate and international services. On October
29, 1996, the FOC adopted an order in which it eliminated, as of September 1997, the: requirement that non-
dominant interstate carriers such as the Company maintain tariffs on file with the FCC for domestic intersiate
services and in fact prohibited the filing of such tariffs, although tariffs for interational service must stil! be
filed. Such carriers were given the option to ccase filing tariffs during a nine-month transition period that
concluded on September 22, 1997. The FCC's order was issued pursuant 1o authority granted to the FCC in the
Telecommunications Act to *‘forbear”” from regulating any teleccommunications service provider if the FCC
determines that the public interest will be served. However, on February 19, 1997, the United States Coun of
Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit stayed the FCC's order pending further expedited judicial review or
PCC reconsideration or both. In August 1997, the FCC issued an order on reconsideration in which it affirmed
its decision to impose complete or mandatory detariffing, although it decided to allow optional or permissive
tariffing in certain limited circumstances (including for interstate, domestic, interexchange dial-around services,
which end users access by dialing a camier’s 10XXX access code). Petitions for further reconsideration of this
order are peading, and this order also remains subject to the Count of Appeals’ stay pending further judicial
review and the pending appeals of the order on reconsideration. The Company cannot predict tie ultimate
outcome of these or other proceedings on its service offerings or operations.

On May 8, 1997, the FOC released an order intended to reform its system of interstate access charges to
make that regime compatible with the pro-competitive deregulatory framework of the Telecommunications Act.
Access service is the use of local exchange facilities for the ongination and termination of interexchange
communications. The FOC's historic access charge rules were formulated largely in anticipation of the 1984
divestiture of AT&T and the emergence of long distance competition, and were designated to replace piecemeal
arrangements for compensating LECs for use of their nctworks for access, to ensure that all long distance
companies would be able to originate and terminate long distance wraffic at just, rcasonable, and non-
discriminatory rates, and to ensure that access charge revenucs would be sufficient to provide certain levels of
subsidy to local exchange service. While there has been pressure on the FCC histonically to revisit ils access
pricing rules, the Telecommunications Act has made access setorm umely. The FCC's recent access reform order
adopts various changes 1o its rules and policies goveming interstate access service pricing designed to move
access charges, over time, 1o more economically efficicnt levels and rate structures. Among other things, the FCC
modified rate structures for certain non-traffic sensitive access rate elements, moving some costs from a per-
minute-of-use basis to flat-rate recovery, including onc new flat rate clement; changed its structure for interstate
transport services; and affirmed that ISPs may not be assessed interstate access charges. In response to claims
that existing access charge levels are excessive, the FCC stated that it would rely on market forces first to drive
prices for interstate access 0 levels that would be achieved through compctition but that a **prescriptive”’
approach, specifying the nature and timing of changes 10 existing access rate levels, might be adopied in the
absence of competition. The FCC intends to address these and other related matters in subsequent proceedings.
Several parties have filed petitions for reconsideration or judicial appeals or both of this order, many of which
are still pending. Though the Company believes that access reform through lewering and/or climinating excessive
access sesvice charges will have a positive effect on its service offerings and operations, it cannot predict how or
when such benefits may present themselves, or the outcome of the pending judicial appeals or petitions for FCC

The FCC also released a companion order on universal scrvice reform on May 8, 1997. The universal
availability of basic telecommunications service at affordable prices has been a fundamental element of us.
telecommunications policy since enactment of the Communications Act of 1934. The current system of universal
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service is based on the indirect subsidization of LEC pricing, funded as pant of a system of direct charges on
some LEC customers, including interexchange carrien such as QCC, and above-cost charges for certain LEC
services such as Jocal business rates and access charges. In accordance with the Telecommunications Act, the
POC adopted plans to implement the recommendations of a Federal-State Joint Board to preserve universal
service, including a definition of services 10 be supported, and defining carriers eligible for contributing to and
receiving from waiversal service subsidies. The FCC ruled, among other things, that: contributions to universal
service funding be based on all interexchange carriers’ gross retail revenues from both interstate and intemational
telecommunications services; only common carriers providing a full complement of defined local services be
eligible for support; and up 10 $2.25 billion in new annual subsidies for discounted telecommunications services
used by schools, libraries, and rural health care providers be funded by an assessment on total interstate and
intrastate revemues of all imerexchange carmiers. The FCC stated that it intends to study the mechanism for
coatinued support of universal service in high cost areas in a subsequent proceeding. Several parties have filed
petitions for reconsideration or judicial appeals or both of this order, many of which are still pending. The
Company is uasble to predict the outcome of the further FCC proceedings or of the pending judicial appeals or
petitions for FOC reconsideration on its operations. The Company will be required to contribute in 1998 a
percentage of its gross retail revenue to the universal services fund and plans to include charges for these

contributions in its 1998 billings.

On April 11, 1997, the FCC released an order requiring that all carriers transition from three-digit to four-
digit Carrier Identification Codes (**CICs'") by January 1, 1998. CICs are the suffix of a carrier's Carrier Access
Code (*'CAC’"), and the transition will expand CACs from five (10XXX) 1o seven digits (101XXXX). These
codes permit customers 1o reach their camier of choice from any telephone. Parties filed petitions for
reconsideration of this design, arguing in part that this short transition (following the FCC's proposal for a six-
year transition) does not permit carriers sufficient time 10 make necessary hardware and software upgrades or to
educate their customers regarding the need 1o dial additional digits to reach their carrier of choice. In response to
these petitions, the FOC on October 22, 1997 issued an order on reconsideration that modified the transition to
creaie a “‘two-step’* process. LECs must have completed switch changes to recognize the new codes by January
1, 1998, but interexchange carriers have until June 30, 1998 to prepare for and educate their consumers about
the change 10 new codes. Petitions for reconsideration and judicial appeals of the FCC's orders are pending. The
Company cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings or whether this transition period will permit adequate
customer notification.

The Microwave System subsidiary is subject to applicable FCC regulations for the use of radio frequencies.
The FCC issues domestic microwave radio licenses for limited peniods not to exceed 10 years. The Company
must seck renewal of such licenses prior to their expiration. The Company knows of no facts that would result in
the denial of any such renewals, although there can be no assurance in that regard. Although the FCC has never
denied a microwave license application made by the Company. there can be no assurance that the Company will
receive all authorizations or licenses necessary to implement its business plan or that delays in the licensing
process will not adversely affect the Company’s business.

The Communications Act of 1934 limits the ownership by non-U.S. citizens, foreign corporations and
foreign governments of an entity directly or indirectly holding a common carrier radio license. These ownership
restrictions apply to the Company's Microwave System but currently do not apply to non-radio facilities, such as
fiber optic cable. The FOC adopted rules relating 10 requests to exceed the statutory limit on indirect foreign
ownership of common carrier radio licenses, and the panticipation of foreign carriers or U.S. entities with foreign
casvier affiliates (generally an ownership interest greater than 25% or a controlling interest) in an entity holding
U.S. intemational suthority. Under those rules, the FCC has scrutinized either form of foreign participation to
determine whether the relevant foreign market offers *‘effective competitive opportunities’’ (**ECO’*). The FCC
may impose restrictions (including prohibition of the proposed participation or investment) on applicants not
meeting the ECO test. These rules have also required intemational carriers to notify the FCC 60 days in sdvance
of an acquisition of a 10% or greater interest by a foreign carrier in that U.S. carmier. The FCC has discretion to
determine that unique factors require application of the ECO test or a change in regulatory status of the U.S.
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carrier even though the foreign carrier's interest is less than 25%. These rules also reduce intemational taniff
notice requirements for dominant, foreign-affiliated carriers from 45 days’ notice to 14 days’ notice. Such
reduced tariff notice requirements may make it easier for dominant, foreign-affiliated camiers to compete with
the Company. The Telecommunications Act partially amends existing restrictions on foreign ownership of radio
licenses by allowing corporations with non-U.S. citizen officers or directors to hold radio licenses. Other non-
U.S. ownership restrictions, however, currently remain unchanged, but the U.S. has agreed in recemt world trade
pegotiations to allow for a significant increase in permissible foreign investment, including 100% indirect foreign
ownership of US. common carier radio licensees. On November 26, 1997, the FCC issued a new order that
modified the continued applicability of its ECO test in light of this agreement. In that order, which became
effective February 9, 1998, the FCC eliminated the ECO test for applicants from the World Trade Organization
(‘‘WTO'’) member countries secking international authority from the FCC or secking to exceed the indirect
foreign ownership limits oa US common carrier radio licenses. The FCC instead adopted an open entry standard
with a presumption that such pasticipation by WTO member countries is permissible. The FCC retained the ECO
test, however, for applicants from non-WTO member countries. The FCC also modified certain dominant carrier
safeguards and further reduced the taniff notice requirements from 14 to one day's notice. Finally, the FCC raised
the threshold for the required 60-day advance notification of foreign carier affiliations from 10% to 25%.
Petitions for reconsideration of this order are pending at the FCC. The Company cannot predict the outcome of
this proceeding. Although the Company believes these changes will have a positive effect on its ability to identify
potential sources of capital, they will also increase the number of competitors for international traffic. The effect
on the Company of the Telecommunications Act or other new legislation, negotiations or regulations which may
become applicable to the Company cannot be determined.

International Settlements. Under the international settlement system, international long distance traffic is
exchanged under bilateral correspondent agreements between facilities-based carriers in two countries.
Correspondent agreements generally are three to five years in length and provide for the termination of traffic in,
and retum traffic to, the camiers’ respective countries at a negotiated accounting rate, known as the Total
Accounting Rate (“*TAR'"). In addition, correspondent agreements provide for network coordination and
accounting and settlement procedures between the carriers. Both carmiers are responsible for their own costs and
expenses related to operating their respective halves of the end-to-end international connection.

Settlement costs, which typically equal one-half of the TAR, are the fees owed to another intemnational
camrier for transporting traffic on its facilities. Settlement costs are reciprocal between each panty to a
comespondent agreement at a negotiated rate (which must be the same for all U.S. based carriers, unless the FCC
approves an exception). For example, if a foreign carrier charges a U.S. carrier $0.30 per minute to tenminate a
call in the foreign country, the U.S. camier would charge the foreign carrier the same $0.30 per minute to
terminate a call in the United States. Additionally, the TAR is the same for all camiers transporting traffic into a
pasticular country, but varies from country to country. The term “‘settlement costs’™ arises because carriers
essentially pay each other on a net basis determined by the difference between inbound and outhound traffic

between them.

The difference in cost between providing domestic long distance and international service is minimal, and
technical advances in facilities deployed for intemational calling arc makiiig distance largely irrelevant to cost.
Increased worldwide competition has already brought about certain reductions in settlement rates and end user
prices, thereby reducing overseas termination costs for United States based carriers. However, it is believed that
certain foreign countries use settlement rates to subsidize their domestic call rates. As a result, domestic
customers currently psy significantly more for an intemmational call than they do for a domestic long distance
call. The FCC has adopted measures intended to overhaul the system of international settlements by mandating
that U.S. camriers ncgotiste settlement rates with foreign correspondents at or below FCC-mandated benchmark
levels. Several parties have filed petitions for reconsideration with the FCC or judicial appeals or both following
this order, 50 it remains subject to modification. Additionally, recent worldwide trade negotiations may have a
significant impact on settlement rates.
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The Company believes that the average cost of intemational telephone calls will be reduced, and anticipates
further international opportunities will be created as a result cf ~=cent worldwide trade negotiations. On Februsry
1S, 1997, representatives of 70 countries, including the United States, finalized the WTO Basic
Telecommunications Agreement (‘*“WTO Agreement’’), a compact addressing market access, investment and
pro-competitive regulatory principles in areas currently gencrating over 95% of the world's telecommunications
revenue. The WTO Agreement took effect on February 5, 1998. Among other things, the agreement provides
U.S. companies market access for local, long distance and intemational sesvice in 53 historically monopolized
countries through any means of network technology, either as a facilities-based provider or as a reseller of
existing network capacity. The countries providing market access for telecommunications services as a result of
the WTO Agreement account for 99% of the world's teleccommunications revenue. Although some countries have
reserved specific exceptions, the agreement generally ensures that U.S. companies may acquire, establish, or*hold
a significant stake in telecommunications companies around the world, and that foreign companies may acquire,
establish or hold such s stake in U.S. telecommunications companies. Additionally, pro-competitive regulatory
principles based largely upon the Telecommunications Act were adopted by 65 countries within the WTO
Agreement. U.S. companies will be able to enforce these principles, as well as the WTO Agreement’s market
access and investment commitments, at the WTO and through enabling legislation in the U.S. The Company
expects 1o benefit from the anticipated effects of the WTO Agreement, but cannot predict where or when such

opportunities may present themselves.

State Regulation. The Company's intrastate long distance telecommunications operations are subject to
various state laws and regulations including, in many junsdictions, certification and tariff filing requirements.

Generally, the Company must obtain and maintain certificates of authority from regulatory bodies in most
states in which it offers intrastate services. In most of these jurisdictions the Company must also file and obtain
prior regulatory approval of tariffs for its intrastate services. Certificates of authority can generally be
conditioned, modified, canceled, terminated, or revoked by state regulatory authorities for failure to comply with
state law and/or the rules, regulations, and policies of the state regulatory authorities. Fines and other penalties
also may be imposed for such violations. The Company is currently authorized to provide intrastate services in
47 states, and has a pending application for authority to provide intrastate services in one additional state. The
Company intends to have authority in all states where competition is allowed.

Those states that permit the offering of intrastate/intra-LATA service by interexchange carriers generally
require that end users desiring to use such scrvices dial special access codes. Historically, this has put the
Company st a competitive disadvantage compared with LECs whose customers can make intrastate/intra-LATA
calls simply by dialing 1 plus the desired number. If a long distance carrier’s customer attempts to make an intra-
LATA call by simply dialing | plus the desired number, the call will be routed to and completed by the LEC.
Regulatory agencies in a number of states have issucd decisions that would permit the Company and other
interexchange carriers to provide intra-LATA calling on a | + basis. Further, the Telecommunications Act
requires in most cases that the RBOCs provide such dialing parity coincident to their providing in-region inter-
LATA services. The Company expects to benefit from the ability to offer 1 + intra-LATA services in states that
allow this type of dialing parity.

Local Regulation. The Company is occasionally required to obtain street use and construction permits and
licenses and/or franchises to install and expand its fiber optic network using municipal rights-of-way.
Termination of the existing franchise or license agreements prior to their expiration dates or a failure to renew
the franchise or license agreements and a requirement that the Company remove its facilities or abandon its
network in place could have a material adverse effect on the Company. In some municipalities where the
Company has installed or anticipstes constructing networks, it will be required to pay license or franchise fees
based on a percentage of gross revenue or on a per lincar foot basis. There can be nio assurance that, following
the expiration of existing franchises, fees will remain at their current levels. In addition, the Company could be
at a competitive disadvantage if its competitors do not pay the same level of fees as the Company. However, the
Telecommunications Act requires municipalities to manage public rights-of-way in a competitively neutral and
non-discriminatory manner.
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Other. The Company monitors compliance with federal, state and local regulations goveming the
discharge and disposal of hazardous and environmentally sensitive materials, including the emission of
electromagnetic radiation. The Company belicves that it is in compliance with such regulations, although there
can be no assurance that any such discharge, disposal or emission might not expose the Company to claims or
actions that could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Employees
As of December 31, 1997, the Company employed approximately 1,600 employees of which 165 perform
corporsie and administrative services, 950 provide Network Construction Services, 210 provide Commercial
~ Services, 20 provide Casrier Services, and 255 perform network engineering and related functions. The Company
uses the services of independent contractors for installation and maintenance of portions of the Qwest Network.
None of the Company's employees are currently represented by a collective bargaining agreement. The Company
belicves that its relations with its employees are good.

Corporate and Other Information

The Company is a Delaware corporation, organized in 1997 to hold the stock of its indirect principal
subsidiary, Qwest Communications Corporation (*'QCC'’). QCC started its teleccommunications business in
1988. The Company operates in a single industry scgment, telecommunications.

The Company's principal executive offices arc located at 1000 Qwest Tower, 555 Scventeenth Street,
Denver, Colorado 80202, and its telephonc number is (303) 291-1400. The Company's web site is

http-//www.qwest.net.

Item 2. Properties

The Qwest Network in progress and its component assets arc the principal properties owned by the
Company. The Company owns substantially all of the tclecommunications equipment required for its business.
The Company’s installed fiber optic cable is laid under the various rights-of-way held by the Company. Other
fixed assets are located at various locations in geographic areas served by the Company. The Company is opening
sales offices in selected major geographic locations.

The Company's executive and administrative offices and its network management center are located at its
principal office in Denver, Colorado. The Company lcases this space from an affiliate of Anschutz Company at
market rates under an agreement that expires in October 2004. The Company also leases office space in the
Denver area for SNI and customer service operations. The Company leases additional space in Dallas, Texas,

housing the headquarters for operation of its Microwave System.

In December 1995, the Company entered into an agreement (as amended in January 1997) with Ferrocarriles
Nacionales de Mexico whereby the Company was granted cascments for the construction of multiple conduit
systems along railroad rights-of-way within Mexico for consideration of approximately $7.7 million, including
$1.1 million in value-added taxes. The Company has capitalized total costs, including rights-of-way, equipment,
construction and design costs, relating to this investment of approximately $13.0 million as of December 31,
1997.

In July 1997, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party whereby the Company
will receive (i) four dark fibers along a 2,220 kilometer route to be constructed in Mexico by the third party; and
(i) certain construction inventory and value-added tax refunds, totaling approximately $2.9 million. In exchange
for these assets, the third party will receive the stock of the Company’s subsidiary, SP Servicios de Mexico S.A.
de C.V. and approximately $6.7 million in cash upon achieving certain milestones.

Item 3. Legal Procesdings

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to various claims and proceedings in the ordinary course of
business. Based on information currently available, the Company believes that none of the current claims or
proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
condition or results of operations, although there can be no assurances in this regard.
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liem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.

Part II.

Item S. Market for the Registrant’s Common Stock and Related Sharcholder Matters

(a) The Company's Common Stock is listed on the NASDAQ National Market under the trading symbol
“QWST."” As of March 4, 1998, there were 206,677,742 shares of Common Stack issued and outstanding held
by 867 stockholders of record.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of Common
Stock as reported on the NASDAQ National Market (as adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split effected
on February 24, 1998 as a dividend):

High  Low

FItst QUAMET . . ... .eeeeeeeeeeee et NA N
Second QUaREr ......................o. .. T NA  NA
Thitd QUAIET . ... $ 2550 $13.625
Fourth QUAIET ..........\uee it $32.875 $ 23.75

The Company completed its initial public offering on Junc 27, 1997. The Registrant has not paid cash
dividends on its Common Stock since becoming a public company and does not anticipate paying cash dividends
in the foreseeable future. The terms of the Indentures goveming its outstanding notes and certain debt instruments
of the Company’s subsidiaries restrict the Company's ability to pay dividends. Any payment of future dividends
will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will depend upon, among other things, the
Company’s eamings, operations, capital requirements, level of indebtedness, financial condition, contractual
restrictions and other relevant factors. (See ‘*Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations."")

No equity securities of the registrant were sold by the registrant during the period covered by this repont
that were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and that have not been previously reported on Form

10-Q.

(b) The Company has used approximately $187.1 million of the $319.5 million net proceeds from its initial
public offering for construction of its fiber optic telecommunications network with the remaining net proceeds
temporarily invested in certain short-term investment grade sccuritics.
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Ttom 6. Selected Finsncial Data

The selected financial data related 10 the Company’s financial condition and results of operations for the
five years ended December 31, 1997 are summarized as follows and should be read in conjunction with the
discussion under *‘Business,” ‘*Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations™* and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and the notes thereto, appearing
elsewhere in this Form 10-K (in thousands, except per share information and operating data).

Year Ended December 31,
1 199 1995 1994 1993

Statement of Operations and Other Financial

Data:
Totalrevenwe ......................... . $ 696,703 $230.996 $125,102 $70873 $ 69,327
Total operating expenses ........... .. ... 673,222 243010 161,158 81488 80,247
Earnings (loss) from operations ........... ... 23481 (12.014)  (36,056) (10.615) (10,920)
Other income (expenseX1) ................. . 9 1813 2.411) (70) 122,631
Earnings (loss) before income taxes...... . .. 23,580 (10,201) (38467) (10,685) 111,711
Net camings (loss) ........................ $ 14523 $ (6.967) $(25131) § (6,898) 68,526
Eamings (loss) per share—basic............. .. s 008 $ (0.04) $ (0.15) $ (0.04) §$ 0.40
Eamings (loss) per share—diluted ........ . s 0078 ©0M) S IS 00y s 040
EBITDA(2).....c.ocvvvaunnnnnnnn $ 41733 % 6912 $26007) § 6,338) $ (829)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities . ..... o e $ (36488) 32524  (56.635) 3306 (7.125)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing

activities ...............oeuuiiil $ (356.824) (52.622) (SB.8SB) (41.712) 107.496
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities . ......, busssiacns L $ 766,191 25519 113940 34264  (95,659)
Capital expenditures(3) ..................... $ 444659 S RSKA2 ¢ 8732 § 40926 $ 3,794

As of December 31,
1997 19% 1995 1994 1993
Summary Balance Sheet Data:
Toalassets .............................. $1.398,105 262551 184178  89.489 60,754
Long-termdebt ....................... ... $ 630463 108268 68793 27034 2,141
Toual stockholders® equity ................ ... $ 381,744 9442 26475  24,58) 12,079
As of December 31,
1997 9% 1998

Operating Data;
Route miles of conduit installed ............... .. . 9,500 3,650 3.200
Route miles of lit fiber installed ................. .. 3,400 900 580
Total minutes of wse............................... " 669,000,000 382,000,000 237,000,000

(1) In November 1993, the Company sold substantially all of its then owned fiber oplic network capacity and
related qmnu and assets 10 a dai:d-pmmmhmr for $185.0 mullion (the **1993 Ca;ucity Sale'’). After
deducting the carrying value of the assets and direct costs associated with the 199 Capacity Sale, the
W gain of approximately $126.5 million. Scc **‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of and Results of Operations’* and **Business.'*

(2) EBITDA represents met camings (loss) before interest, income tax expense (benefit), depreciation and

amortization, a non-recurring expense of $2.6 million in the year ended December 31, 1996 10 restructure
on sale of ications agreements of $6.1 million (which is nonrecum

the year ended 31, 1996, and the gain on sale of contract rights of approximately $9.3 mill;
(which is non-recurring) in the :euded December 31, 1997. Without the effect of Growth Share Plan
expease, EBITDA would have $115.2 million, $20.0 million, and $1.8 million for the years ended
- December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1993, respectively. l d -
Capital expenditures include expenditures for fty and equipment, accrued capital expenditures, capi
expenditures financed with the equipment cRMili’:y and ?l'liliil' nhlig;:mns under capital leases.
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ltom 7. Management’s Discusslon and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company's accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thercto appearing clsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Overview

The Company is a facilities-based provider of multimedia communications services to interexchange
carriers and other communications entities (*‘Camier Services'') and to businesses and consumers (*‘Commercial
Services''); and it constructs and installs fiber optic communications systems for interexchange carriers and other
communications entities, as well as for its own use (**Network Construction Services'').

The Company is expanding its existing voice and data network into the Qwest Network, an approximately
16,250 route-mile, coast-to-coast, technologically advanced fiber optic telecommunications network. The
domestic network is expected to be completed in 1999 The Company 1» also expanding its network to camy
international dats and voice traffic into Mexico and the United Kingdom through London. Completion of the
Mexico network is scheduled for late 1998. The network cxtension 1o London will be obtained through the
exchange of telecommunications capacity with Teleglobe Inc . including 1two 155-megabit circuits crossing the
Atlantic Ocean from New York City to London. The transatlantic telecommunications capacity supports the
Company's growth into the European market. The Company s European services will be terminated in London

In October 1997, the Company acquired SuperNet, Inc. (*"SNI"'). an internet service provider (ISP} for
$20.2 million in cash, including acquisition costs.

In January 1998. the Company signed a detinitive merger agreement to acquire Phoenix Network. Inc.
(**Phoenix Network'™’), a non-facilities-based rescller of long distance services. Phoenix Network currently has
approximately 40,000 customers. primarily in the business market. The transaction is subject to the approval of
the Phoenix Network stockholders, the receipt of cenain state and federal regulatory approvals and the
satisfaction of other customary closing conditions. The meeting of Phoenix Network stockholders 1o consider
approval of the acquisition is scheduled for March 30. 1998

In March 1998, the Company signed a definitive merger agreement with LCH International. Inc. 'LCI). a
communications services provider. The boards of directors of cach company have approved the merger. The
terms of the merger agreememt call for the acquisition of all of LCUs outstanding common shares and the
assumption of all of LCI's stock options by the Company The purchase pnice of the all-stock transaction is
anticipated to be approximately $4.4 billion. The merger s intended 10 qualify as a tax-free reorganization and
will be accounted for as a purchase. Completion of the merger s anticipated to occur during the third quarter of
1998.

Carrier Services. Carrier Services provides high-volume and conventional dedicated hine services over the
Company's owned capacity and switched services over owned and leased capacity to interexchange cariers and
other telecommunications providers. The Company 1s expanding Carmer Services 10 increase its revenue stream
and reduce per unit costs, targeting capacity sales on a segment-by-segment basis as the Qwest Network is
deployed and activated. and is increasingly secking longer-term, high-volume capacity agreements from major
carriers. In addition to traditional telecommunications carmiers, the Company 1» marketing to ISPs and other duta
service companies. For the years ended December 31. 1997. and 1996. the Company's five largest carier
customers accounied for approximately 42.3% and 41.3% of Camier Services revenue, respectively.

Commercial Services. Commercial Services provides voice, data and video services to businesses and
consumers. The Company plans 10 expand its presence in the Commercial Services market by developing its
distinctive “*Ride the Light™'" brand identity and aggressively marketing its existing and planned voice. data
and other transmission products and services. The Company plans to build direct, end-user relationships by
developing strong distribution channels, providing competitive pricing and supenor network quality and offering
enhanced. market-driven services o businesses and consumers
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Reveaue from Commercial Services is recognized primarily on a minutes-of-use basis. Commercial Services
has generated revenue wsing four primary sales channels: direct sales, direct mail, agent and telemarketing. In
September 1997, the Company entered into an arangement with a third party under which they will jointy define
and test new broadband business multimedia services. The Company also entered into marketing agreements in
September 1997 with two additional third partics. Under onc agreement a marketing company that wholesales
and retils telecommunications products on a national basis will act as an authorized sales representative of
Qwest and will market the Company's long-distance products through affinity groups. Under the other
agreement, the Company will offer its One Plus and Calling Card services (with competitive international pricing
for both) and other services to utilities in the United States under the Simple Choice(SM) brand name of that
third party.

Network Construction Services. Network Construction Services constructs and installs fiber optic
communication systems for interexchange carriers and other telecommunications providers, as well as for the
Company's own use. The Company began operations in 1988 constructing fiber optic conduit systems primarily
for major long distance casriers in exchange for cash and capacity rights. In 1996, the Company entered into
major construction contracts for the sale of dark fiber to Frontier and WorldCom whereby the Company has
agreed 10 install and provide dark fiber to cach along portions of the Qwest Network. The company also entered
into two substantial construction contracts with GTE in 1997 for the sale of dark fiber along portions of the route
of the Qwest Network. After completion of the Qwest Network, the Company expects that revenue from Network
Construction Services will be less significant to the Company s operations. See **Business—The Qwest Network
—Dark Fiber Sales."

Revenue from Network Construction Services generally is recognized under the percentage of completion
method as performance milestones relating to the contract are satisfactorily completed. Losses, if any, on
uncompleted contracts are expensed in the period in which they are identified and any revisions to estimated
profits on a contract are recognized in the period in which they become known.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 1997 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1996

The Company reported net eamings of $14.5 million in the year ended December 31, 1997, compared to a
net loss of $7.0 million in the same period of the prior year. Excluding the effect of the compensation expense
relating to the Growth Share Plan, net of income tax, the Company’s reported net eamings would have been
approximately $61.6 million and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Revenue. Total revenue increased $465.7 million, or 202% during the year ended December 31, 1997, as
compared to 1996. Carrier Services revenue decreased $1.9 million, or 3% for the year ended December 31,
1997, as compared to 1996, primarily due to the Company's sale of its resale dedicated line services on leased
capacity on July 1, 1996. The sold business gencrated revenue of $18.8 million for the year ended December 31,
1996. Exclusive of this revenue, Carrier Services revenue increased $16.9 million, or 44%, during the year ended
December 31, 1997, as compared to 1996. This increase in Carmier Services revenuc was due primarily to
in revenue from carier switched services and carrier dedicated line services provided on the Qwest
Network. Commercial Services revenue increased $25.4 million, or 74% for the year ended December 31, 1997,
as compared 10 1996. The increase was due primarily to growth in switched services provided to small- and
medium-sized businesses and to consumers as a result of continued expansion of the Company's direct sales,
direct mail, agent and telemarketing sales channels. Revenue from Network Construction Services increased
$442.2 million, or 318% during the year ended December 31, 1997, as compared to the corresponding period in
1996. The increase was due primarily to revenue from dark fiber sales to WorldCom, GTE and Frontier.

Operating Expenses. The Company's principal operating expenses consist of ecxpenses for
telecommunications services, network construction incurred by Network Construction Services, expenses for
selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A), Growth Share Plan expense and depreciation and
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amortization. Total operating expenses increased $430.2 million, or 177'% during the year ended December 11,
1997 as compared t0 the comresponding period in 1996. Expenses for teleccommunications services primarily
consist of the cost of Jeased capacity, Local Exchange Carrier (““LEC"") access charges, engineesing and other
operating costs. Expenses for teleccommunications services increased $10.8 million, or 13% for the year ended
December 31, 1997, as compared to 1996. The growth in teleccommunications services expenses was primarily
attributable to the continued growth in switched services and network engincering and operations, pantially offset
by the reduction in expenses resulting from the sale on July 1, 1996 of the Company's resale dedicated line
services on leased capacity and an increase in on-net traffic over the Qwest Network. When the Qwest Network
is completed and activated, the Company will be able to serve more customer needs over its own capacity on the

Qwest Network.

Expenses for Network Construction Services consist primarily of costs to construct the Qwest Network,
including conduit, fiber cable, construction crews and rights-of-wzy. Costs attributable to the construction of the
Qwest Network for the Company’s own use are capitalized. Expenses for Network Construction Services
increased $309.6 million, or 354% in the year ended December 31, 1997, as compared to 1996, due 10 costs of
construction contracts relating to increased dark fiber sales revenue.

SG&A includes the cost of salaries, benefits, occupancy costs, commissions, sales and marketing expenses
and administrative expenses. SG&A increased $45.4 million, or 99% in the year ended Decen.her 31, 1997, as
compared to 1996. The increase was due primarily to increascs in expenses related to the Company's direct mail
sales program, the development of the Company's new brand identity, administrative and information services
support of the Company's growth, and the recruiting and hiring of additional personnel. The Company is in the
process of opening commercial sales offices in selected major geographic markets to implement the Company's
strategy, as segments of the Qwest Network become operational. In addition, SG&A expenses will increase as
the Company continues to expand its Carrier and Commercial Services, initiate its United States and international
direct sales operations, and recruit experienced teleccommunications industry personnel to implement the

Company's strategy.

The Company has a Growth Share Plan for certam of its employees and directors. Growth Share Plan
expense, reflects the Company's estimate of compensation expense with respect 1o the Growth Shares issued to
participants. A *‘Growth Share'* is a unit of value based on the increase in value of the Company over a specified
measuring period. The Company estimated an increase in the value of Growth Shares, primarily triggered by the
June 1997 initial public offering (the *‘[PO’’), and has recorded $73.5 million of additional compensation
expense in the year ended December 31, 1997, and $13.1 million in the year ended December 31, 1996. The
Company anticipates total additional expense of up to approximately $23.4 million through the year 2002 in
connection with this plan. The Company does not anticipate any future grants under the Growth Share Plan.

The Company's depreciation and amontization expense increased $4.0 million, or 25% during the year
ended December 31, 1997 as compared to 1996. This increasc resulted primarily from activating segments of the
Qwest Network during 1997, purchases of additional equipment used in constructing the Qwest Network and
purchases of other fixed assets to accommodate the Company's growth. The Company expects that depreciation
and amortization expense will continue 1o increase in subsequent periods as the Company continues 10 activate
additional segments of the Qwest Network and amortizes the goodwill acquired with the SNI purchase (discussed
above).

Other Income (Expense). Pursuant to a capacily sale in 1993, the Company obtained centain rights of first
refusal 10 re-acquire network communications cquipmeni and terminal locations including leasehold
improvements should the purchaser, under that agreement, sell the network. In the first quarter of 1997, the
Company sold certain of these rights to the purchaser in return for $9.0 million in cash and the right to re-acquire
certain terminal facilities, which the Company received in 1997 and has recorded as gain on sale of contract
rights.
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During 1997, the Company's net interest income (expense) increased $2.8 million as compared to 1996
The increase resulted from an increase in interest on long-term indebtedness, related primarily to the 10%%
Notes and the 9.47% Notes (see **Liquidity and Capital Resources™* below), partially offset by increases in
capitalized interest resulting from construction of the Qwest Network and interest income attributable to the
increase in cash equivalent balances. In January 1998, the Company issued the 8.29% Notes (see **Liquidity and
Capital Resources’* below), which are expected lo increase net interest expense in subsequent periods.

As previously discussed, the Company sold a portion of its dedicated line services on leased capacily in
July 1996. During the transition of the service agreements to the buyer, the Company incurred certain facilities
costs on behalf of the buyer, which were (0 be reimbursed to the Company. A dispute arose with respect to the
reimbursement of such costs and, as a result, the Company made a provision of approximately $2.0 million in

Income Taxes. The Company is included in the consolidated federal income tax retum of Anschutz
Company (the *‘Majority Sharcholder''). A tax sharing agreement provides for allocation of tax liabilities and
benefits to the Company, in general, as though it filed a scparate tax retum. The Company's effective tax rate in
1997 was higher than the statutory federal rate as a result of permanent differences betwec book and tax expense
relating to the Growth Share Plan and amortization of goodwill. The Company’s effective tax rate in the year
ended December 31, 1996 approximated the statutory federal rate

Net Earnings (Loss). The Company realized nct camnings of $14.5 million in the year ended December 31,
1997, as compared 10 & net loss of $7.0 million in the corresponding period of 1996 as a result of the factors
discussed above.

Year Ended December 31, 1996 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1995

Revenue. Total revenue increased $105.9 million, or B5%, due primarily to significantly higher revenue
from Network Construction Services, as well as increased revenue from Commercial Services, offset in part by
lower revenue from Carrier Services. Revenue from Network Construction Services increased $102.3 million, or
277%, due 1o revenue from dark fiber sales of approximately $121.0 million 1o WorldCom and Frontier.
Commercial Services revenue increased $13.9 million, or 68%. This increase is largely attributable to growth in
switched services provided to small- and medium-sized business and consumers as a result of the expansion of
the Company’s agent, telemarketing and direct mail sales channels. Carrier Services revenue decreased $10.2
million or 15%, primarily due to decreases in revenue resulting from the Company's sale of a portion of its
dedicated line services on leased capacity on July 1, 1996. The sold business generated revenues of $18.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 1996 and $39.7 million for the year ended December 31, 1995.
The decrease in Camier Services revenue was partially offset by an increase in revenue from carrier switched
services, which increased to $19.4 million in 1996 from $13.8 million in 1995.

Operating Expenses. Total operating expenses increased $81.9 million, or 51%, due primarily to increases
in Network Construction Services, SG&A and compensation expenses associated with the Growth Share Plan.
Expenses for telecommunications services decreased $0.8 million or 1%. The sale on July 1, 1996 of the
Company's dedicated line services on leased capacity generated a reduction in expenses, which was partially
offset by an increase in telecommunications services cxpenses associated with the growth in switched services
and servicing the Qwest Network. Expenses for Network Construction Services increased $54.8 million or 167%.
This increase was due 10 cost of construction contracts relating to increased dark fiber sales.

SG&A expenses increased $8.6 million, or 23%. The Company incurred additional SG&A expenses as a
result of growth in the Company's telecommunications services and the construction of the Qwest Network,
including additional sales commissions on higher revenue, expenses incurred in the implementation of the
Company's direct mail sales channel and expenses for customer scrvice personnel added to support the
Company's expansion of its commercial customer basc. The SG& A expenses in 1996 also included restructuring
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expenses of $1.6 million incurred by the Company as a result of its decision to close 13 sales offices and the
termination of approximately 130 employees involved in sales, marketing and administrative functions. As a
result of this restructuring, the Company experienced a reduction in payroll, commissions and rental expense.
MCoquymMuit&ploysﬂanestNelworkande:pandsilsCmierSeﬂicudeommcial
Services, SGRA expenses will continue to increasc.

The Company estimated a $13.1 million increase in value of the Growth Shares at December 31, 1996, due
to0 the Frontier dark fiber sale. No expense was recognized for the year ended December 31, 1995, as there were

no significant compensatory elements in those periods.

The Company's depreciation and amortization expense increased $6.3 million, or 63%. This increase was
primarily due t0 the Company's investment in the Qwest Network. The Company expects that depreciation and
amortization expease will continue to increase in subscquent periods as the Company continues 10 activate
additional segments of the Qwest Network.

Other Income (Expense). The Company’s net interest and other expenses increased $1.9 million, or 79%.
This increase was primarily attributable to additional debt incurred in 1996 to finance capital expenditures and to
provide working capital. (See discussion of additional indebtedness in *‘Liquidity and Capital Resources™
below.)

Income Taxes. The Company is included in the consolidated federal income tax retum of the Majority
Sharcholder. A tax sharing agreement provides for allocation of tax liabilities and benefits to the Company, in
general, as though it filed a scparate tax returm. The Company's effective tax rate in 1996 and 1995 approximated
the statutory federal rate. The difference between the income tax benefit of $3.2 million in 1996 as compared to
$13.3 million in 1995 resulted from a $28.3 million decrease in loss befciz income taxes.

Net Loss. The Company experienced a net loss of $7.0 million in 1996 compared to a net loss of $25.1
million in 1995 as a result of the factors discussed above.

In June 1997, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosure About
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information (**SFAS 131°"). SFAS 131 establishes standards for the
manner in which business enterprises are 1o report information about operating segmenlts in its annual statements
and requires those enterprises to report selected information regarding operating segments in interim financial
reports issued to shareholders. SFAS 131 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
From January 1, 1995 through March 31, 1997, the Company funded capital expenditures, debt service and
cash used in operations through a combination of stockholder advances, capital contributions and extemnal
borrowings supported by collateral owned by the Majority Sharcholder or affiliates, as well as external
bomrowings collateralized by certain of the Company's assets. During the remainder of 1997, the Company
funded capital expenditures and long-term debt repayments primarily through net proceeds from the issuance of
debt and equity securities aggregating approximately $903.6 million. The Company also received net proceeds
of $299.2 million from the issuance of the 8.29% Notes in January 1998. The Company intends to finance its
in the future through intermally and externally generated funds without relying on cash advances,
contributions or guarantees from the Majority Shareholder.

Total cash expended during the three years ended December 31, 1997 to fund capital expenditures,
repayments of long-term debt to third parties, repayment of nct advances from the Majority Shareholder, and for
isi was $449.2 million, $223.9 million, $9.9 million and $32.6 million, respectively. Total cach used in
operations was $60.6 million during the same period. Total cash provided during this same period from revolving
Joans secured by collsteral owned by the Majority Sharcholder or an affiliate was $138.0 million, and capital
contributions from the Majority Shareholder were approximately $28.0 million. The loans from the Majority
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Shareholder wene repaid in 1997. In addition, during this same period, the Company's net cash provided by
secured borrowings uader loag-term debt agreements with third parties Aggregated $67.6 million. As of

i
E
E
:
]
£

The Company estimates the total cost 10 construct and activate the Qwest Network and complete
construction of the dark fiber sold to Froatier, WorldCom and GTE will be approximately $1.9 billion, Of this

amount, the Company had already expended Approximately $850.0 million as of December 31, 1997. The

for 1998 include the Company's commitmen; to purchase a minimum quantity of fiber for approximately $399.0
million (subject 1o Quality and performance specifications), of which approximately $252.0 million had been
expended as of December 31, 1997. Estimated total expenditures for 1998 and 1999 together also include
Approximately $92.0 million for the purchase of electronic cquipment. In addition, the Company anticipates
approximately $557.0 million of capital expenditures in 1998 and 1999 1o support growth in Carrier Services

Rotes, registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the ““Act’’) and with terms identical in all materia] respects to
the 8.29% Notes, for the 8.29% Notes or, altematively, (o file a shelf registration statement under the Act with
respect to the 8.29% Notes. If the reg ion statement for the exchange offer or the shelf registration statement,
as applicable, is not filed or declared effective within specified time periods or, after being declared effective,
ceases 10 be effective or usable for resale of the 8.29% Notes during specified time periods (each a *‘Registration



In October 1997, the Company issued and sold is 9 47% Notes, generating net proceeds of approximately
$342.1 million, after deducting offering costs. The 9.47% Notes w.:; accrete at a rate of 9.47% per annum,
compounded semiannually, to an aggregate principal amount of $555.9 million by October 15, 2002. The 9.47%
Notes mature on October 15, 2007. The 9.47% Notes are redecmable at the Company's option, in whole or in
part, at any time on or after October 1S, 2002, at specificd redemption prices. Cash interest on the 9.47% Notes
will not accrue until October 15, 2002, and thereafier will accrue at a rate of 9.47% per annum, and will be
payable semisnnually in arrears commencing on April 15. 2003 and thereafter on April 15 and October 15 of
each year. The indenture for the 9.47% Notes contains certain covenants that are substantially identical to the
8.29% Notes described above. In February 1998, the Company completed an exchange of identical notes,
registered under the Act, for all of the 9.47% Noies.

In June 1997, the Company received approximately $319.5 million in net proceeds from the sale of
31,050,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock in the IPO.

In May 1997, the Company and Nortel, individually and s agent for iself and other specified lenders,
entered into a $90.0 million credit agreement (the “"Fquipment Credit Facility”) to fund a portion of certain
capital expenditures required 1o equip the Qwest Network Under the Equipment Credit Facility. the Company
may borrow funds up 10 75% of the purchase price of such equipment and related engineering and installation
services provided by Nortel as vendor as it purchases the equipment. with the purchased equipment and related
items serving as collateral for the loans of a third panty lender The Company is commitied to purchase from
Nortel a minimum of $100.0 million of such equipment and services under a separale procurement agreement.
The Company's total remaining commitment under the procurement agreement was approximately $68.4 million
as of December 31, 1997. Principal amounts outstanding under the Equipment Credit Facility will be payable in
qQuarterly instaliments commencing on June 30, 2000, with full repayment due on March 31, 2004. Bomowings
bear interest at the Company's option at either: (i) a fluating base rate announced by a designated reference bank
plus an applicable margin; or (ii) LIBOR plus an apphcable margin.

In March 1997, the Company issued and sold its 1074 Notes, generating net proceeds of approximately
242.0 million. after deducting offcring costs. A portion of the net proceeds were used (0 repay amounts due
under the then existing revolving credit facility. the construction term loan, equipment loans and term notes,
described below. Interest on the 10%% Notes 1s payable semiannually in arrears on April | and October | of
each year, commencing October 1. 1997. The 1074% Notes mature on April |, 2007. The 10 % Notes are
subject to redemption at the option of the Company. in whole or in part, a1 any time on or after Apnl 1, 2002, at
specified redemption prices. The indenture for the 107si Notes contains certain covenants that are substanually
identical 10 the 8.29% and 9.47% Notes descnbed above,

In 1996, the Company entered into and subsequently amended a long-term $100.0 million revolving credit
facility agreement, which was collateralized by shares of common stock owned and pledged by the Majonity
Shareholder. In October 1997, the Company repaid the outstanding balance and terminated this facility.

In April 1995, the Company entered into a secured construction loan facility used to fund certain conduit
installation projects. The facility converted to a term loan upon completion of the construction projects in 1996
and 1995 and became secured by notes receivable 1ssued in connection with the projects. The term loan bore
interest at the Company's option at either (i) the higher of (a) the banks base rate of interest. or (b) the Federal
Funds Rate plus ¥2%:; or (i) LIBOR plus %s% The outstanding balance of $10.9 million at December 31, 1997
was repaid subsequent to year end.

The Company also incurred other indebtedness duning the three-year penod ended December 31, 1997,
including five equipment loans in 1995 and 1996 aggregaung $10.0 million and two term notes in January 1995
aggregating $12.0 million, the proceeds of which were used to repay a portion of the prior advance from the
Majority Shareholder. In addition, the Company had other outstanding indebtedness in 1997 which it had
incurred prior 10 1995, including amounts payable under a network credit facility and an additional equipment
loan. Such indebtedness had a weighted average interest rate of approximately 9% in 1997, ana was repaid in
the second quarter of 1997 with proceeds from the 1074 % Notes.
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Year 2000

The Company has created a project team including intemal and external resources that is in the process of
identifying and addressing the impact of problems and uncenainties related to the year 2000 on its operating and
application software and products. The Company expects to resolve year 2000 compliance issues primarily
through replacement and normal upgrades of its software and products. However, there can be no assurance that
such replacements and upgrades can be completed on schedule and within the estimated costs.

Inflation
Inflation has not significantly affected the Company's operations during the past three years.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Not applicable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directers
Qwest Communications International Inc.:

We have sudited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Qwest Communications Intemational
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders® equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1997.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accouiting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Qwest Communications Intemational Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and
1996, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for cach of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 1997, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG Peat Marwick LLP
Denver, Colorado

February 24, 1998,
except as to note 22,
which is as of
March 8, 1998
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 1997 and 1996
(In Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Information)

19 1996
Assets

Current assets:
Cashand cash equivalentS .. ........oovnnnnnneriiiiieiiiiiii e, $ 379784 § 6905
Accounts receivable, BB ...........conaiiiiiiiiiii e 67395 29,248
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings ....................c.oivnen 256,566 4,989
Notes and other receivables . . ..........o.coviiirnrmrenririciiiniicsne. 10855 149M
OUher CUTTENE BESELE ... .coeovenenroreennrntasnrnronanoncar casasancacaes 9,342 328
Total CUTTENE BESELE . . .. ... .eovianuironan ettt anes 723942 56404
Property and equIpment, BEE ..................ooiiiiiiiiiiii e 614,640 186,535
Deferred inCOME LAK BESET .. .. ... .cuouuuneaernrenararneesenenirrinorasnass 17,988 4,593
Notesand otherreceivables ...........cccovniiiiiioniiiii i 59 11,052
Intangible and other long-term assets, REt ......... ... 41,476 1967
TOW BEBBE ... ovvoeeennneai et $1,398,105 $262,551

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS—Continued

December 31, 1997 and 1996
(ia Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Information)

1997 1996
Lisbilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payable and accrued EXpenses ... .....oiiie et $ 253313  § 80,129
Billings in excess of costs and estimated camings ..............oooooe 21,390 5,034
Deferved income tax Bsbility . . . . ......ooooiiiiiii 22,344 —
Current portion of long-term debt. . ..............oooirrirene 12,011 25,193
Payable 10 Majority Shareholder. . . ......oocoueviinrrriirerneeeens 2,091 19.138
Deferred TEVEIUE . ..o vuuvnonansuaernernarsnmsnasstenisnssasisssnns 4273 2,649
Total current ligbilities. .. ..........oooooriiiiaii e 315,422 132,143
LORG-ACTI B8R . o eeeeeeeesaemseereeeoe s mo e s 630,463 109,268
Other TADIHES . . oo vvvreemereconranracinnmirar s 70476 11,698
Total Babilities . ......coonnernnenimrr 1,016,361 253,109
Stockholders® equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 25,000,000 shares
No shares issued andoutstanding . .. ..........cooooinmenenoianennn — —
Common Stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 400,000,000 shares.
206,669,874 shares and 173,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 1997 and December 31, 1996, respectively .............. 2,066 1,730
AQditional Paid-in COPIAL ... ......o.neiiri i 411,605 54,162
Accumulated BERCHt . ... ..ooovuviar et (31.927) (46,450)
Total t0CKBOIAETS’ EQUILY . . ..o vvovvnvnrcncrman e 381,744 9.442
Total lisbilities and stockholders’ equity .. ............coevnenonens $1,398,105  $262,551

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Information)

197 1936 1953
Revenue:
Camierservices ........cocvveniiiiii i, $55644 $357573 § 67,789
Commercial SEIVICES .....................coooeii.... . 59,649 34,265 20412
115,293 91,838 88,201
Network construction services. ............................. 581,410 139,158 36,90)
696,703 230,996 125,102
Openating expenses:
Telecommunications services .............................. 91,166 80,368 81,215
Network construction services.............................. 397,153 87.542 32,754
Selling, general and administrative . . ... ..................... 91,190 45,755 37,195
IO S PO v« <o 5 i imin s R S s 3 73,451 13,100 —
Depreciation and amortization.......................... ..., 20.262 16,245 9.994
673,222 243,010 161.158
Eamings (loss) from operations . . ................. S 23,481 (12,014) (36,056)
Other income (expense):
Interestexpense, met .......................oiiiiiii... (18,895) (6,827) (4,248)
Interestincome .................cocvininiiiiiiii, 11,708 2,454 1,782
Otherincome, Bet ............ovvvvennene .. 7,286 6,186 55
Eamings (loss) before income taxes..................... 23,580 (10,201) (38.467)
Income tax expense (benefit) .....................oviiiiiii .. 9,057 (3.2)4) (13,336)
Neteamings (loss) ...................covveninian.. $ 14,523 $ (6967) $(25.131)
Eamings (loss) pershare—basic ................................ $ 008 § (0O $ (0195
Eamings (loss) per share—diluted .............................. $ 007 $ (004) § (0.19)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Year Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1993
{Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Information)

Common Stock Additional Tetal
Number of Paldda Accumulsted Steckhelders'
Shares Amoust  Capltal Defichk Hguity

Belences, Jonuery 1, 0998 ......................... s 173000000 $0,730 % 37,200 §14,352) $ 24581
Cash contribution from Mejority Shareholder ...... .. ... .. —- 28,000 — 28,000
Reduction in edditionsl paid-in capital sttributable to effect of

the tax sliecstion agresment with Majority Sharcholder . . .. - — (979) - (979)
BB IONE o s s s s S e — - - Qs.13) 25.431)
Balances, Decomber 30,1998 .................. .. 170,000,000 1,7 64,228 (9.483) 26475
Caacelistion of incoms tax beneflt receivable from Mmmy

Shassholder ..................ooiiii . (11,088) —_ (11,088)
Equity conwibution from Majority Shareholder ......... .. - 1.022 — 1.022
L T T e i - — (6.967) (6.967)
Balances, Docomber 31,1996 .................... . 173,000,000 17w 54,102 (46.450) 9.442
Md_--uhwmonmn. net VLOS00 o LIL N R4 - 319,481
Issuance of common stock wamasts ........... 2,300 - 2.300
fssuance of common stock for Growth Shares . ......... .. g 2,591,532 26 35,284 —_ 35,310
lssuance of common stock upon exercise of employee stock

GERBORE 1 v vaveesareremrnnenn e 9,644 - 132 — 132
Md’w—um-ﬁm’homnhm ....... 18,698 - 356 — 556
Net camings . . e = = - 14523 14,523
I*nq_n. ......................... 200669874 $2.066 8411605 %31.927) $381,744

See accompanying notes to consohidated financial statements,
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

(In Thousands)
1997 199% 1998
Cash flows from operstiag activities:
Not Oammings (088). . ... oonvinnnnninnieitie e e $ 14523 § (6.967) $(25.100)
Adpamanta  feceacie ﬂm (lul) ln ul ush (Ill!d m) puudﬂl by operaling activities:
Depeucistion and amortization . ............................ e 20,262 16,245 9.994
Gain on sale of comtractrights . . .................... ; (9,296) - -
CGala on sele of wlecommunications service agreemens . — (6.126) -
Deforved income tax expense (benefit) ...... .. 8949  (LI2) (2839
Changes in operating assets and lisbilities:
Receivables—accounts and motes, met. ... ........... .. ... (22,397)  (25.680) (21,079
Costs and estimated sarnings hemoﬂnllmp net ... : - (238,221) 24172 (21,6%0)
Accounts paysble and accrued liabilities . SUEEHRARE S a0 SRR e R 189,797 34,455 5.882
Paysbie 10 related parties, net .. e T R —_ (2.983) 1.263
Other changss ...... B A A A AT S . (3.108) ) (2.743)
Net cash (wesd in) provided by operating activities ....... ... (36,488) 12,524 (6,6395)
Cash flows from investing sctivities:
Procesds fromsale of comtrac sights ......................... . . ... 9,000 o -
Procesds from sale of slecommunications service i‘l‘!!l‘l‘!nh ......... - 4,500 —
Expenditures for property andequipment . ................... . .. ... (345,788) (57,122)  (46,13)
Cash paid for acquisitions, aet of cash acquired . ... ... .. (20.036) — (12,549)
Net cash used in investing activities . ................. .. (336,824) (52,622) (58,858)
Cash fiows from fimsacing activities:
Procesds from issuance of common stock in initisl public offenng. net 319.481 - -
Procesds from leswance of common stock wamants . ........... ... 2,300 _ -
Procesds from exsrciss of employes stock options . ............. G S R RN 132 — -
Dorowings of long-ermdedt . ... 678,003 65000 62,606
Repaymontsof longtormdodt ...................... ... ... . (200.233) (21,322) (233
Dbt iSOuEmOs €08 . ... .. .ovuhet e (16,449) 12 (591)
Net (paymeats t0) advances from Majority Shareholder (17.047)  (19.069) 26,236
Contributions from Majority Shareholder.......... .. .. - 1.022 28.000
Net cash provided by fimancing activities . .. . . . .. 766,191 25519 113940
Net incresse (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1728719 $.421 (1.553)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . .. ............. 6.905 1.484 3.037
Cash sad cash equivalents, endof period .. ................... .. $379784 3 6905 S 1484
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cashpaidforimerest, met...................ccovneenn. . : $ 1669 $ 8825 § 319N
Cash paid for taxes, other than to Majority Sharcholder. .. ... .. $ 24408 160§ T2
Supplemental disclosure of significant non-cash investing and financing activinies
Accrued capital cRpeRditUres .............0ihhieii i $ 76267 $28000 $ —
$ 264 8 - $ -

Capital expenditures financed with equipment credit facility . . .. . ..

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements.
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

(1) Organization and Background

Qwest Communications International Inc. (the **Company’’) was wholly-owned by Anschutz Company (the
j Shareholder*’) until June 27, 1997, when the Company issued common stock in an initial public
offering (the “IPO"’). As of December 31, 1997, the Majonty Sharcholder owns approximately 83.7% of the
outstanding common stock of the Company. The Company is the ultimate holding company for the operations of
Qwest Communications Corporation and subsidianes (*'Qwest’’).

The Compeny is a developer and operator of telecommunications networks and facilities and operates in a
single business segment, the telecommunications industry. It principally provides the following services within
that industry:

—Telecommunications Services—the Company provides dedicated line and switched services to

interexchange carviers and competitive access providers (**Camier Services™”) and long distance voice,
data and video services to businesses and comumers ('Commeraial Services'’).

— Construction Services—the Company installs fiber optic communications systems for
interexchange carriers, local telephone companics, cable television companies, competitive access
providers and other communications entities, as well as for its own use.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying audited consolidated financial statcments as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 and for the
years ended December 31, 1997. 1996 and 1995 include the accounts of the Company and all majority-owned
subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Telecommunications Services Revenue

Revenue from telecommunications services is recognized monthly as the services arc provided. Amounts
billed in advance of the service month are recorded as deferred revenue

(c) Long-Term Construction Contracts

The Company accounts for long-term construction contracts relating to the development of
telecommunications networks using the percentage of complction method. Under the percentage of completion
method, progress is generally measured on performance milestones relating to the contract where such milestones
fairly refiect progress toward contract completion.

Network construction costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to
contract performance. General and administrative costs are charged to expense as incurred. When necessary, the
estimated loss on an uncompleted contract is expensed in the period in which it is identified. Contract costs are
estimated using allocations of the total cost of constructing the Qwest Network, a coast-to-coast, technologically
advanced, fiber optic ielecommunications network (the “'Qwest Network™) Revisions to estimated profits on
contracts are recognized in the period they become known.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies cash on hand and deposits in banks, including commercial paper, money market
accounts, and any other investments with an original maturity of three months or less, that the Company may
hold from time to time, as cash and cash equivalents.
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

(e) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis using the
estimated useful lives of the assets, commencing when they are available for service. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the lesser of the useful lives of the assets or the lease term. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incumed. Network construction costs, including interest during construction, are
capitalized. Interest capitalized in the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 was approximately $17.7
million, $2.4 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

The useful lives of property and equipment arc as follows:

Facility and leasehold improvements ............................... 525 years or lease term
Communications and construction equipment .. ....... .. . T 310 yeans

Fiber and conduit systems .............. .. G H R B i 15—25 years

Office equipment and fumiture .................................... 3—7 years

Capital beases ............cooviiiiiiiieiinn, e lease term

While constructing aetwork systems for customers, the Company may install additional conduit for its own
use. This additional conduit is capitalized at the incremental cost of construction. Costs of the initial conduit,
fiber and facilities are allocated to the customer and the Company based upon the number of fibers retained by
the Company relative to the total fibers installed, or square footage in the case of facilities.

() Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable, in accordance with Statement of
Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of (*'SFAS 121'"). This review consists of a comparison of the camying value of the asset with
the asset’s expected future undiscounted cash flows without interest costs. Estimates of expected future cash
flows are (0 represent management's best estimatc based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections. If the expected future cash flow exceeds the camryng valuc of the asset, no impairment is recognized.
If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the expected future cash flows, an impairment exists and is measured
by the excess of the carrying value over the fair value of the asset. Any impairment provisions recognized are
permanent and may not be restored in the future. No impairment expense was recognized in 1997, 1996 or 1995.

(g) Income Taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes, whereby deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled

(h) Intangible and Other Long-Term Assets

Intangible and other long-term assets include debt issuance costs, deferred compensation, goodwill and
acquired intangibles such as customer contracts and non-compete covenants. Such costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over a period ranging from three to fifteen years.
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 199§

(i) Earnings Per Share
The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, -

Eamings Per Share, which requires the presentation of basic camings per share and, for companies with
potentially dilutive securities, such as convertible debt, options and warrants, diluted camings per share. Basic
camings per share amounts are determined on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Potentially dilutive instruments for the periods prior to the Company's IPO, as
defined by Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin Number 98, Earnings Per Share,
were not material and were excluded from the computation of carmings per share. Diluted eamings per share
give effect to all potential dilutive common shares that were outstanding during the year.

(j) Stock-Based Compensation
As permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, the Company accounts for compensation expense under the Growth Share Plan and the Equity
Incentive Plan in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to

Employees.

(k) Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(I) Reclassifications
Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform with 1997 presentation.

(3) Other Income (Expense)

On March 10, 1997, the Company entered into an agrecment with an unrelated third panty to terminate
certain equipment purchase and telecommunications capacity fights and options of the Company exercisable
against the third party for $9.0 million in cash, which the Company received in 1997 and has recorded as gain
on sale of contract rights.

On July 1, 1996, the Company sold its right, title and interest in cenain teleccommunications service
agreements to an unrelsted third panty (the “*Buyer’’) for $5.5 million. During the transition of service
agreements to the Buyer, the Company incurred certain facilities costs on behalf of the Buyer, which are
reimbursable to the Company. On March 31, 1997, the amrangement relating to the transition services agreements
expired and has not yet been renegotisted. A dispute has arisen with respect to reimbursement of these costs
and, as & result, the Company made a provision of $2.0 million in the three months ended March 31, 1997.

ions with the Buyer are continuing. As of December 31, 1997 and 1996, niet amounts of approximately
$5.0 million and $2.0 million, respectively, were due to the Company for such costs. The Company believes that
the receivable balance as of December 31, 1997 is collectible.

(4) Acquisitions
On October 22, 1997, the Company and an unrelated third party consummated an agreement whereby the
Company acquired from the third party all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of SuperNet, Inc.
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995
(**SNI'*), a regional internet service provider, and the capital stock of SNI issued at the closing of the acquisition,

for approximately $20.0 million in cash, plus acquisition costs. The acquisition was accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. The purchase price was allocated as follows (in thousands):

WORGOE COPMAL - oo vvc50s camvisvnmsionsnin i smeisa s e s s s 5 V8 oo 150 655 50 o $(1L.51D)
PROpORtY 000 OQUIPIMENL . o ovcocvanmacassmmns v v wmemas G €8 0% 5 08 0 4 2,890
L7 | 19,200
L0 (423)

$20,150

The accompanying consolidated statements of operations include the operating results of SNI since October
22, 1997. The following pro forma operating results of the Company and SNI for the years ended December 31,
1997 and 1996 have been prepared assuming the acquisition had been consummated as of January 1, 1996 (in

thousands, except per share amounts

1997 199
ROV . .oovottiieetee ettt e e $702,260 $236,538
Neteamings (J088)........coooneiiiiiiii i $ 10,783 $(14,226)
Eamings (loss) pershare —basic ..........................oiill $ 006 $ (0.08)
Eamings (loss) per share—diluted ... .................... ... $ 006 § (0.08)

(5) Network Construction Services Revenue and Expenses

Costs and billings on uncompleted contracts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
1997 19%

Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts . ... ........... .............. $473,760 § 82840
EStimated AMINGS . .. ......ovveireenneeatae e 238,191 48,853
711,951 131,693

Less: billings to date 476,775 131,738
$235176 § (49)

Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings ........................ $256566 § 4,989
Billings in excess of costs and estimated eamings .. ...................... (21,390) (5.034)
$235.176 $  (45)
Revenue the Company expects to realize for work to be performed on the

above uncompleted contracts ...................c i $ 506,791 $328.688

The Company has entered into various agreements to provide indefeasible rights of use of multiple fibers
along the Qwest Network. Such agreements include contracts with three major customers for an aggregate
purchase price of approximately $1.0 billion. The Company obtained construction performance bonds totaling
$175.0 million which have been guaranteed by the Majority Sharcholder. Network Construction Services revenue
relating to the contracts with these major customers was approximately $513.0 million and $121.0 million in
1997 and 1996, respectively. Progress billings arc made upon customers’ acceptance of performance milestones.
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

The Company expects to bill and collect all costs and cstimated camings in excess of billings as of December
31, 1997, in 1998.

Although these construction agreements provide for certain penahies if the Company does not complete
construction within the time frames specified within the agreements, management does not anticipate that the
Company will incur any substantial penalties under these provisions.

(6) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consists of the following (in thousands)

December 31,
1 19%
Carrierservices ..............oooeuveione .. e $11.833 § 9978
Commercial 5erVICes ... ..o, 14,095 5,736
Network construction services . ............... ... . . 37,085 13,751
Duefromaffiliate............................. e P 1,804 —
72,006 32917
Less allowance for doubtful accounts . . ........ ... ... ............... (4,611) (3,669)
Accounts receivable, met ....................... ., $67,395 $29,248

(7) Notes and Other Receivables

In 1994, an unrelated third panty entered into a $45.0 million agreement 1o purchase a single conduit from
the Company. Contract revenue from this agreement was approximately $3.1 million and $29.7 million in the
years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The Company may be required to pay up to $13.0
million to the third party in the event of the sale of the Company-owned conduits. The balance of the notes
receivable related to the contract was paid subsequent to year end

(8) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands)

December 31,
1997 19%

Facility and leaschold improvements ................................... 17910 7951
Communications and construction equipment ............................ 83313 52,076
Fiberandconduit systems ........................ooiiiiiiiiiiionnnn, 118,192 42,446
Office equipmentand fumiture ................................. ..., 16,019 6,360
Capital JeaSeS .. .....oeii i 37718 3197
Workinprogress ..................cooiiiiiiiiiiii s 417,042 99915
657,245 212,451
Less accumulated depreciation and amontization. . .................... (42,605) (25916)
Property and equipment, Bet.....................ooovai o . 3614,640  $186,535
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QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1993

(9) Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accounts paysble and accrued expenses consists of the following (in thousands):

Decomber 31,
1997 19%
Accounts Payable . . .. .......ooiiiiii e $ 80,862 $41.642
ConSruction BOCTURN ... .. .ovvueunnninn e 75.543 18,071
Property, sales and Other tAXES . .. ...........cooniii i 33926 1,582
Capacity service obligation . . .............. ...t 8.196 3638
ACCTUOE IIBTEEE . . . ... ooooien i 7.704 707
Right-of-way obligations ................... ..o 34006 3290
L7 R T R 13.076 9,179
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ... ... ... . 2 T $253.313 380,129
(10) Other Liabilities
Other lisbilities consists of the following (in thousands)
December 31,
1997 19%
Right-of-way obligations . .. ....... . . T $39014 $ 1297
Growth share aCCMURN. . ... ... .o 17,686 9291
Equipment to be BRaRCed ... ........... .. 10,756 —
O .cocoiviiavavamosnaiaease o wn v o e s T T T T 3,020 1,110
Other lisbilities. . ..................... ... : i e o s 2 56 6 G0 53 $70476 $11,698

(11) Right-of-Way Obligations

The Company has easement agreements with railroads and public transportation authorities. The following
is 8 schedule by years of future minimum payments under casement agreements together with the present value
of the net minimum payments as of December 31, 1997

Year ended December 31
UOOB. cic oo v St s 574 < 5 95 win B8 wme o S v B e e w0t nn wen v 170 06 E R $ 34225
12 R R R R R R 4,228
11+ S R LR 4,228
BOON. i s s S IS #5058 J56 1% w03 65 410 135 W0 8 e b wan e e o epe onn von w0 46 B 0 4,250
BODD: s v amie s s i s w8 0w s e un me e e o 30 He0 B U OR300 6,099
B 1T R R R R R R 83,788
Total MERIMUM PEYIIEILS - . . . . .. .o $136,818
Less amount representing imlerest . . .. ...........o.oooiiiiieii i (63,798)
Present value of pet MIiNIMUM Payments .. .................coiairenresacnsanons $ 73,020

The present value of set minimum payments is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other
lisbilities. (See note 9—Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses and note 10—Other Liabilities.)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995
In certain limited instances the Compasy may be obligated to pay costs of relocating certain conduits owned

by third parties on appronimately SO0 miles of railroad rights-of-way. The majonty of such commitments expire
in February 2001. The Company has mede a provision of approximately $2.9 million for such costs in 1997.

Pursuaat o certain casement agroements, the Company is required 1o provide casement grantors with

(12) Leng-Term Debt
Loag-term debt consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

19 19%

JOUT NOS ....covviicinniiiiai e e 250,000 —
Network credit facility .................................. ... ... - 27,0m
Equipment o8BS .............co0oviiiuiniiii — 9.820
Capital lease and other obligations ..................................... 12962 28,148
TORME @OV v w0 srwriancnn w25 o0 55 555 o5 535 955 806 638 155 5 e 5im mim vam s s sne e e o < 642474 134,461
Lesscumentportion ................ouveiiiiii e (12,011) (25.193)
LOBGAGTRABONE ...o.ovucciiciirmampnyiwnims sw v wmien a5 ¥ 5% &5 5% 5% 55 55 5% 4 $630.463 $109,268

In October 1997, the Company issued and sold $555.9 million in principal amount at maturity of 9.47%
Senior Discount Notes, due 2007 (the *‘9.47% Notes''). generating net proceeds of agproximately $342.1
million, after deducting offering costs which are included in intangible and other long-term assets. The 9.47%
Notes will accrete at a rate of 9.47% per annum, compounded semiannually, to an aggregate principal amount of
$355.9 million by October 15, 2002. The principal amount of the 9.47% Notes is due and payable in full on
October 15, 2007. The 9.47% Notes are redeemable at the Company's option, in whole or in part, at any time on
or after October 15, 2002, at specified redemption prices. In addition, prior to October 15, 2000, the Company
may use the net cash proceeds from certain equity transactions to redeem up to 35% of the 9.47% Notes at
specified redemption prices. Cash interest on the 9.47% Notes will not accrue until October 15, 2002, and
thereafter will accrue at a rate of 9.47% per annum, and will be payable semiannually in arrears commencing on
April 15, 2003 and thereafier on April 15 and October 15 of cach year. The Company has the option of
commencing the accrual of cash interest on an interest payment date on or after October 15, 2000, in which case
the outstanding principal amount at maturity of the 9.47% Notes will, on such interest payment date, be reduced
1o the then accreted value, and cash interest will be payable thereafter. In February 1998, the Company completed
an exchange of the 9.47% Series B Senior Discount Notes (the **9.47% Exchange Notes'’), registered under the
Securities Act of 1933 (the **Act’’), for all of the 9.47% Notes. The 9.47% Exchange Notes are identical in all
material respects to the originally issued 9.47% Noies.

In May 1997, the Company entered into a $90.0 million credit ugreement (the **Equipment Credit Facility"')
with an unrelated third party supplier of transmission electronics equipment (the **Supplier’) to fund a portion
of certain capital expenditures required to equip the Qwest Network currently under construction. The facility
subsequently was assigned by the Supplier to another institution, which assumed the Equipment Credit Facility
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Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1998

and currently acts as the ageat. Under the Equipment Credit Facility, the Company may borrow up to 75% of
the price of purchased equipment and related engineering and installation services provided by the Supplier, with
the purchased equipment and related items serving as collateral for the loans. The Company is committed to
purchase from the Supplier 8 minimum of $100.0 million of such equipment and services under a scparale
procurement agreement, which was executed in May 1997. The Company’s total remaining commitment under
the procurement agreement was approximately $68.4 million as of December 31, 1997. Principal amounts
outstanding under the Equipment Credit Facility will be payable in quarterly instaliments commencing on June
30, 2000, with full repayment due on March 31, 2004. Borrowings will bear interest at the Company’s option at
cither (i) a floating base rate offered by a designated reference bank plus an applicable margin; or (i) LIBOR
plus an applicable margin.

On March 31, 1997, the Company issued and sold 10%% Senior Notes duc 2007 having an aggregate
principal amount at maturity of $250.0 million. The net proceeds of the 10% % Senior Notes were approximately
$242.0 million, after deducting offering costs which are included in intangible and other long-lerm assets. Interest
on the 10%% Senior Notes is paysble semiannually in amrcars on April | and October 1 of each year,
commencing October 1, 1997. The 10%% Senior Notes are subject to redemption at the option of the Company,
in whole or in part, at any time on or after April 1, 2002, at specificd redemption prices. In addition, prior to
April 1, 2000, the Company may use the net cash proceeds from certain specificd equity transactions to redeem
up to 35% of the 10%% Senior Notes at specified redemption prices. In August 1997, the Company completed
an exchange of 10%% Series B Senior Notes (the *10%% Notes''). registered under the Act, for all of the
10%% Senior Notes. The 10%% Notes are identical in all material respects to the onginally issued 10% % Senior
Notes.

In April 1996, the Company entered into a long-term $100.0 million revolving credit facility agreement as
amended in September 1996 (the *‘Facility’’) which was collateralized by shares of common stock owned and
pledged by the Majority Shareholder. In October 1997, the Company repaid the outstanding balance and
terminated the Facility.

In April 1995, the Company entered into a $45.0 million customer contract credit facility agreement to
finance certain construction projects undertaken at that time. The facility converted 1o a term loan upon
completion of the construction projects in 1996 and 1995 and is now sccured by notes receivable issued in
connection with these construction projects. The facility bears interest at the Company's option at either (i) the
higher of (a) the bank's base rate of interest, or (b) the Federal Funds Rate plus 1% %; or (ii) LIBOR plus %e%.
The outstanding balance was repaid in February 1998.

The Company also incurred other indebtedness during the three-year period ended December 31, 1997,
including in 1995 and 1996 $10.0 million in aggregate under five equipment loans and in January 1995 $12.0
million in aggregate under two term notes, the proceeds of which were used to repay a portion of the advance
from the Majority Shareholder used to purchase Qwest Transmission Inc. In addition, the Company had other
outstanding indebiedness in 1997 which it had incurred prior to 1995, including amounts payable under a
network credit facility and an additional equipment loan. Such indebtedness had a weighted average interest rate
of approximately 9% in 1997, and was repaid in the second quarter of 1997 with proceeds (rom the 10% % Senior
Notes.

The indentures for the 10%%, 9.47% and 8.29% Notes (defined below) contain certain covenants that,
among other things, limit the ability of the Company and cenain of its subsidiaries (the *‘Restricted
Subsidiaries’’) to incur additional indebtedness and issuc preferred stock, pay dividends or make other
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distributions, repurchase capital stock or subordinated indebledness, create cerain liens, enter into certain

transactions with affiliates, sell assets of the Company or its Restricted Subsidiaries, issue or sell capital stock of
the Company’s Restricted Subsidiaries or enter into certain mergers and consolidations.

The Company leases certain metwork construction cquipment under capital lease agreements. The
amortization charge applicable 1o capital leases is included in depreciation cxpense. Future minimum payments
uader capital lease obligations is included in contractual maturities of long-term debt summarized below.

Contractual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 1997 are as follows (in thousands):

19
Year ended December 31

1998 ............. R $ 1201
BODD oo ciniovs 600 5500 8 5 8 imsm e ose o st e e A B e e e 622
L T T 3,671
.11 R 5.078
2002 .......... T S T 5877
TR T . . .. ccceei e 615,215
$642474

The carrying amounts of the Term Loan and the Equipment Credit Facility approximate fair value since the
interest rates are variable and reset periodically. The estimated fair values of the 9.47% Notes and the 10% %
Notes, each with a carrying value at December 31, 1997 of approximately $356.9 million and $250.0 million,
respectively, were approximately $382.2 million and $283.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 1997, based
on current rates offered for debt of similar terms and maturity

In January 1998, the Company issued and sold $450.5 million in principal amount at maturity of 8.29%
Senior Discount Notes, due 2008 (the *‘8.29% Notes’"), generating net proceeds of approximately $299.2
million, afier deducting offering costs. The 8.29% Notes will accrete at a rate of 8.29% per annum, compounded
semiannually. The principal amount of the 8.29% Notes is duc and payable in full on February 1, 2008. The
8.29% Notes are redeemable at the Company's option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after February 1,
2003 at specified redemption prices. In addition, prior to February 1, 2001, the Company may use the net cash
proceeds from certain equity transactions to redeem up to 35% of the 8.29% Notes at specified redemption prices.
Cash interest on the 8.29% Notes will not accrue until February 1, 2003, and thereafter will accrue at a rate of
8.29% per annum, and will be payable semiannually in arrears commencing on August |, 2003, and thereafier
on February | and August 1 of each year. The Company has the option of commencing cash interest on an
interest payment date on or afier February 1, 2001, in which case the outstanding principal amount at maturity
of the 8.29% Notes will, on such interest payment date, be reduced to the then accreted value, and cash interest
will be payable on each interest payment date thereafter.

In connection with the sale of the 8.29% Notes, the Company agreed to make an offer to exchange new
notes, registered under the Act and with terms identical in all material respects 1o the 8.29% Notes, for the 8.29%
Notes or, altematively, to file a shelf registration statement under the Act with respect to the 8.29% Notes. If the
registration statement for the exchange offer or the shelf registration statement, as applicable, is not declared
effective within specified time periods or, after being declared effective, ceases 1o be effective or usable for resale
of the 8.29% Notes during specified time periods (cach a **Registration Default™"), additional cash interest will
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accrue at a rate per annum equal 10 0.50% of the principal amount at maturity of the 8.29% Notes during the 90-
day period immediately following the occurrence of a Registration Default and increasing in increments of 0.25%
per annum of the principal amount at maturity of the Discount Notes up to a maximum of 2.0% per annum, at
the end of cach subsequent 90-day period until the Registration Default is cured.

(13) Income Taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 is as follows (in
thousands):

1.4 19% 1998
Current:
Federal ......cvvvviiieinrrnronenaacnernannirioecnannnsnns $ —  $(1,673) $(10,497)
PO I -
Total current income tax expense (benefit) ................ 108 (2,111) (10,497)
Deferred:
20 7= P 8949 (1,123) (2,839
SUIE & o ooivvvs swevbv R S S L S s e — = s
Total deferred income tax expense (benefit) ............... 8949 (1,123) (2,839)
Total income tax expense (benefit) ....................... $9.057 $(3.234) $(13,336)

Total income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amounts computed by applying the federal stattory
income tax rate (35%) to eamings (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) as a result of the following items
for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 (in thousands):

1997 1956 1995
Expected income tax expense (benefit) .......................o $8.253 $(3.570) $(13,463)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax expense (benefit) .......... 70 279) —_
Goodwill amOftiZAtION .......ocvvviiiurainrrrrriraaiaa 306 568 56
Compensation and growth shareexpenses ......................... 345 — -
Other, net ... SR AR T S T T 9 PR e e B 5 3 83 47 71
Total income tax expense (benefit) . ...................... $9,057 $(3.234) $(13,336)
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
lisbilities at December 31, 1997 and 1996 are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
1997 199
Current deferved tax assets (liabilities):
Allowance for doubtful accoumts . ............................... $ 1,130 $1.283
Accrued lisbilities. .............................. ..., 1,219 1.2717
Deferred compensation ...........................c.coiiiina.. 492 —
2,841 2.560
Network constructioncontracts. .. ............. ... ... ....... (25.185) (2,560)
$2234) §$ —
Long-term deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Deferred compensation ........................................ $ 6503 $3.252
DEPreCIBtion ........ccovivuvuviniiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiieee 4,337 2,205
Accrued liabilities. ............................... ... 1,235 —
Net operating loss carryforward . ................................ 34,773 —
46,848 5.457
Intangible assets, principally due to differences in basis and
AMOMIZALION ...oovinnnnnnnnn e (71) 112)
Propertyandequipment........................................ (28,789) (752)
(28,860) (864)
$ 17,988 $4,593

The Company has analyzed the sources and expected reversal periods of its deferred tax assets. The
Company believes that the tax benefits attributable 1o deductible temporary differences will be realized by
recognition of future taxable amounts. Accordingly, the Company belicves a valuation allowance for its federal
deferred tax assets is not necessary.

At December 31, 1997, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of
approximately $99.4 million which, if not utilized 10 reduce taxable income in future periods, will expire in 2012.

The Company is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of the Majority Sharcholder, which
has a July 31 year-end for income tax purposes. There is a tax allocation agreement between the Company and
the Majority Shareholder which encompasses U. S. federal tax consequences. The Company is responsible to the
Majority Shareholder to the extent of income taxes for which the Company and its subsidiaries would have been
lisble if the Company had filed a consolidated federal income tax retum, giving effect to any loss or credit
caryover belon 4 o0 the Company and its subsidiaries from periods after the Effective Date (defined below).
The Majority Shareholder would be responsible to the Company to the extent an unused loss or credit can be
carried back 10 an earlier taxable period after the Effective Date. .

The tax agreement was amended effective as of January 1, 1997 (the *'Effective Date'*). Prior to the
amendment, the Company was responsible to the Majority Sharcholder for its share of the current consolidated
income tax liabilities. The Majority Shareholder was responsible to the Company 1o the extent that the
Company’s income tax attributes were utilized by the Majority Sharcholder to reduce its consolidated income
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tax liabilities, subject to certain limitations on net operating loss and credit camryforwards. At December 31, 1996,
the income tax benefit receivable from Majority Sharcholder of approximately $11.1 million was canceled, which
resulted in a reduction of additional paid-in capital.

In certain cases, differences may arise between amounts reported in the financial statements under generally
accepted accounting principles and the amounts actually payable or receivable under the tax allocation
agreement. Those differences are generally reported as adjustments to capital, as in-substance dividends.

(14) Related Party Transactions

(a) Transactions with Majority Shareholder

The Majority Shareholder incurs certain costs on the Company’s behalf, including primarily insurance and

transportation services, and allocates such costs to the Company based on actual usage. The cost to the

y for such services was approximately $4.3 million, $2.1 million and $2.5 million in the years ended

December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. In addition, accounts receivable from (payable t0) the Majority

Shareholder ase recognized 10 reflect federal income tax benefits receivable (income taxes payable) pursuant to

the tax allocation agreement between the Company and the Majority Sharcholder. Advances from Majority
Shareholder of approximately $19.1 million outstanding at December 31, 1996 were repaid in 1997.

The Company has agreed to indemnify the Majority Sharcholder and its subsidiaries againsi any costs or
losses incured by them as a result of their providing credit support to the Company (in the form of collateral

pledges, guarantees, performance bonds or otherwise).

(b) Transactions with Other Related Parties

The Company leases its corporate office in Denver, Colorado from an affiliate of the Majority Sharcholder.
The cost 1o the Company for such lease was approximatcly $1.4 million, $1.2 million and $1.0 million in the
years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively

The Majority Sharcholder owned approximately 25% of Southem Pacific Rail Corporation and its
subsidiaries (“*SPRC"’) at December 31, 1995. In September 1996, SPRC was acquired by Union Pacific
ion. As a result of this transaction, the Majority Sharcholder’s ownership was reduced to approximately

$% of Union Pacific Corporation, and SPRC ceased to be a related party. While a related party. the Company
provided telecommunications services to SPRC and charged SPRC approximately $1.5 million and $3.6 million
in the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. Additionally, the Company purchased and has
made future commitments relating to right-of-way casements from SPRC and utilizes specialized SPRC
personnel and equipment for its comstruction projects. While a related party, SPRC charged the Company
approximately $3.3 million and $2.2 million for these services in the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995,

respectively.

(c) Equity Contribution From Majority Shareholder

On November 11, 1996, the former president and chicf exccutive of the Company resigned his position.
Upon his resignation, the Majority Sharcholder forgave a note receivable from him in the amount of
approximately $1.0 million. This charge was allocated to the Company in 1996 and is included in selling, gcneral
and administrative expenses and additional paid-in capital in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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(15) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, accounts seceivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate fair value due 10 the short-term maturitics of these assets and liabilities. The carrying amounts of
notes and other receivables approximate fair value due to the relatively short period of time between the
origination of these instruments and their expected realization. The carrying amount of long-term right-of-way
obligation approximates fair value since it is based upon current interest rates of obligations with similar
maturities.

(16) Commitments and Contingencies

{a) Network Construction Project

In 1996, the Company commenced construction of the Qwest Network. The Company projects its total
remaining cost st December 31, 1997 for completing the construction of the Qwest Network will be
approximately $1.1 billion. This amount includes the Company’s remaining commitment through December 31,
1998 to purchase a minimum quantity of materials for approxmatcly $147.0 million as of December 31, 1997,
subject to quality and performance expectations, and contracts for the construction of conduit systems
aggregating approximately $24.7 million.

(b) Network and Telecommunications Capacity Exchanges

The Company enters into agreements to exchange teleccommunications capacity rights and 1o exchange
network assets. In 1997, the Company entered into agreements to acquire network assets from unrelated third
parties in exchange for centain of the Company’s network assets under construction. Title to the network assets
will pass to the exchange parties upon completion of construction and consummation of the exchange.

In January 1998, the Company entered into an agrecment to acquire long-term telecommunications capacity
rights from an unrelated third party in exchange for long-term telecommunications capacity rights along
segments of the Qwest Network under construction. The exchange agreement provides for the payment of cash
by either of the parties for any period during the contract term in which a party provides less than the contracted
telecommunications capacity. It is anticipated that the Company will make cash payments for a portion of the
telecommunications capacity it receives pursuant to the agreement until it completes construction of the Qwest
Network. The exchange agreement provides for liquidating damages 1o be levied against the Company in the
event the Company fails 1o deliver the telecommunications capacity, in accordance with the agreed-upon
timetable.
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(c) Leases and Telecommunications Service Commitments

The Company leases certain terminal locations and office space under operating lease agreements and has
commitied 10 use certain telecommunications capacity services. Future minimum payments under noncancelable
operating lease and service commitments as of December 31, 1997 are as follows (in thousands):

Capecity
service
commitments Tetal
Year ended December 31:

L R T, L $3.9717 $ 6187 $10164
IO i 5 26 55 56 5 o5 o5 8 I B SRESEERE 29 250 5113 5,363
2000 . e — 3.170 3,170
.11 2,280 2.280
. 11 7P — . 1,950 1,950
Therealer .....oooovv i 4,848 4,548
Total minimum payments ....................... $4,227 $23,548 327,775

Capacity service expenses are included in telecommunications service expenses. Amounts expensed related
10 capacity service commitments in the years ended December 31. 1997, 1996 and 1995 were approximately

$7.3 million, $19.0 million and $19.6 million, respectively.

Amounts expensed in the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 related to operating leases were
approximately $6.2 million, $5.0 million and $4.6 million, respectively.

(d) Mexico Fiber Purchase Agreement

In July 1997, the Company entered into an agrcement with an unrelated third party whercby the Company
will receive (i) four dark fibers along a 2,220 kilometer route to be constructed in Mexico by the third party, and
(i) centain construction inventory and value-added tax refunds, totaling approximately $2.9 million. In exchange
for these assets, the third party will receive the stock of the Company’s subsidiary, SP Servicios de Mexico S.
A. de C. V., and approximately $6.7 million upon the achievement of certain milestones.

(17 Growth Share Plan

The Company has a Growth Share Plan (the **Plan’") for certain of its employces and directors. A **Growth
Share’’ is a unit of value based on the increase in value of the Company over a specified measurement period.
All Growth Share grants made through December 31, 1997 have been made based on a beginning Company
value that was grester than or equal to the fair value of the Company at the grant date. The total number of
Growth Shares is set at 10 million and the maximum presently available for grant under the Plan is 850,000. All
participants, except those granted Growth Shares under the October 1996 Plan. vested fully upon completion of
the Company’s IPO and settlement was made with 2,591,532 common shares, net of amounts relating to tax
withholdings of approximately $21.9 million. Growth Shares granted under the October 1996 Plan vest at the
rate of 20% for each full year of service completed after the grant date subject to risk of forfeiture and are to be
seitled with the Company’s Common Stock. The future compensation expense associated with the remaining
shares has been capped at $11.00 per share, or approximatcly $23.4 million, and will be amortized as expense
over the remaining approximately four-year vesting period. At December 31, 1997, approximately $14.9 million
is included in other long-term liabilities related to outstanding Growth Shares. The Company does not prescntly
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intend to make any additional Growth Share grants under this plan. Certain triggering events, such as a change
in control of the Company, cause immediate vesting of the remaining Growth Shares and would result in
accelerated expense recognition of all unamortized compensation. Participants receive their vested portion of the
increase in value of the Growth Shares upon a triggering cvent, which includes the end of a Growth Share

performance cycle.

The Company has estimated an increase in value of the Growth Shares during 1997 and has recorded
approximately $73.5 million of additional compensation expense for this plan in the year ended December 31,
1997. Had the Company accounted for compensation under the Growth Share Plan pursuant to the fair value
method in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
the amount of compensation would not have been different from what has been reflected in the accompanying

The following table summarizes Growth Share grants and Growth Shayes outstanding:

Growth Shares
December 31, 1994 ... 676,000
Lo A ————— - 11,000
1995 forfeitures ................oooeien (42,500)
December 31, 1995 .....ooovvnnei e 644,500
1996 gramts ...... ..., 67,500
1996 forfeitures and settlements ................. ... ... . i, (436,600)
December 31, 1996 . ....covnvevmininniiie e 275,400
e e 358,050
1997 settlements ............ooveeeee (253,950)
December 31, 1997 . ....oovvnmiiii e 379,500

The Company estimated an increase in value of the Growth Shares at December 31, 1996 due to the signing
of an agreement to provide an indefeasible right of use to a major customer and recorded approximately $13.1
million of additional compensation expense in 1996, approximately $6.0 million of which is payable subsequent
10 December 31, 1997. No expense was recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 1995, as there were no significant compensatory elements in that period.

(18) Capital Stock

On January 20, 1998, the Board of Directors declared a stock dividend of one share for every share
outstanding 0 stockholders of record as of February 2, 1998, to be distributed on February 24, 1998. This
dividend was accounted for as a two for one stock split. All share and per share information included in the
consolidated financial statements and the notes hereto have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to the change

in capitalization.

On May 23, 1997, the Board of Directors approved a change in the Company's capital stock to authorize
400 million shares of $.01 par value Common Stock (of which 20 million shares are reserved for issuance under
the Equity Incentive Plan, 2 million shares are reserved for issuance under the Growth Share Plan, and 8.6
million shares are reserved for issuance upon exercise of warrants, as described below), and 25 million shares of
$.01 par value Preferred Stock. On May 23, 1997, the Board of Directors declared a stock dividend to the existing

35



QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

stockholder of 172,980,000 shares of Common Stock, which was paid immediately prior to the effectiveness of
the registration stastiement on June 23, 1997. This dividend was accounted for as a stock split. The Company
the IPO of 31,050,000 shares of Common Stock on June 27, 1997, raising net proceeds of

completed
approximately $319.5 million.

Effective May 23, 1997, the Company sold to an affiliate of the Majority Shareholder for $2.3 million in
cash, 8 warrant t0 acquire 8.6 million shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $14.00 per share,
exercisable on May 23, 2000. The warmant is not transferable. Stock issued upon exercise of the warrant will be
subject to restrictions on sale or transfer for two years after exercise.

Effective June 23, 1997, the Company adopted the Equity Incentive Plan. This plan permits the grant of
non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, stock units and
other stock grants to key employees of the Company and affiliated companies and key consultants to the
Company and affiliated compenies who are responsible for the Company's growth and profitability. A maximum
of 20 million shares of Common Stock may be subject to awards under the Fyuity Incentive Plan.

The Company's Compensation Commitiee (the “‘Committee’’) determines the exercise price for cach
option; however, stock options must have an exercise price that is at least cqual to the fair market value of the
Common Siock on the date the stock option is granted, subject to certain restrictions.

Stock option awards generally vest in equal increments over a five-year period, and awards granted under
the Equity Incentive Plan will immediately vest upon any change in control of the Company, as defined. unless
provided otherwise by the Committee at the time of grant. Options granted in 1997 have terms ranging from six

to ten years.

Stock option transactions during 1997 were as follows:
Numberof  Weighted average
ercise price

Options o
Outstanding January 1, 1997 ..........ooiviiiiiiiin e — —
OFBIIBE .. oovoisssiios d asdas ss s v amiatnmes s s s e vt 13,958,000 $15.88
R T [ R (12,000) $11.00
Outstanding December 31, 1997.........cooovinnnireiiinonnen 13,946,000 $15.89
Exercisable December 31, 1997 ......oovveeiiineanniiienns 1,340,000 $11.00

The following table summarizes certain information about the Company's stock options at December 31,
1997.

Number of Weighted average

Range of ensrcise optiens muinln‘" Weighted average

ons sutstondiog Somcniudl We e gt
$75-581100.......... 8,654,000 56 $10.80
$1469 - $1806.......... 535,000 9.6 $1584
$2288 - $2400.......... 3,100,000 9.7 $23.15
$25.13 - $30.19.......... 1,657,000 99 $29.39
$75-5%300.......... 13,946,000 7.2 $1588
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Compensation expense recognized for grants under the Equity Incentive Plan was not material in 1997, If
compensation expense for the Equity Incentive Plan had been determined using the fair value method described

in SFAS 123, the Company's net camings and camings per sharc for 1997 would have been reduced to the pro
forma amounts shown in the following table (in thousands, except per share information):

1"
Net eamings
ASTPOMEA. . ...t e $14,523
Proforma................ T 861
Eamings per share—basic
ASTEPOMRA. . ... s ueiitiiin it s e e e e e e 0.08
Proforma ..o —_
Eamings per share—diluted
. R N T —

The weighted-average fair value of each Option grant is estimated as of the date of grant to be $7.94 using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with ihe following weighted average assumptions: risk-free interest rate
of 5.8%, no expected dividend yields, expected option lives of 7.6 years, and expected volatility of 31%.

(19) Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The following is a reconciliation of the denominators of the basic and diluted eamings per share
computations (in thousands, except per share information):

Year Ended December 31,
1997 19% 1995

Neteamings (loss) ...................................... ‘ $ 14523 $ (6967) $(25.131)
Shares:
Weighted average aumber of shares outstanding during the period tor computung

basic camingspershare .................. ......... .. . I_')LI.SOS 173,000 173.000
Incremental common shares attribucable 10 dilutive securities

Common shares issusble for wamramts . .............. . .. 1.635 —_ -

Comemon shares issusble under stock option plan .......... . — 1.621 - -

Common shares issusble for outstanding growth shares ......... .. ... . 294 — —_
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of computing diluted earmings per share 194,055 173,000 173,000
Earmings per sharc—basic...................... ... .. . S 008 S (004 § (0.15)
Eamings per share—diluted ...................... .. S ey ssaes . . $ 007 % (004) $ (015

The weighted average number of options to purchase common stock that was excluded from the
computation of diluted eamings per share because the exercisc price of the option was greater than the average
market price of the common stock was 800,000 for 1997.

(20) 401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) Plan (the ‘'Plan’’) which permits employees to make contributions 1o the
Plan on a pre-tax salary reduction basis in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code  All full-time employees
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are eligible o participate after one year of service. The Company contributes a base percentage and maiches a

portion of the voluntary employee contributions. The cost of the Plan charged 10 expense was not material in the
periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

(21) Significant Customers

During the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, two or more customers, in aggregate, have
accounted for 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in onc of more periods, as follows:

Customer A Customer B Custemer C  Customer D

0 S e o% 3% 3171% —
BODB . oo svneess sossasss s nisasmese s nmmes 28% 26% —_ 4%
[T J O 7% —_ — 5%

At December 31, 1997 and 1996, onc or more of the customers described above have accounted for 10% of
more of the Company's combined accounts receivable, net, and costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings,
as follows:

Customer A Customer B Customer C

1997 — 26% 2%
1996, . .ooeovneonannnasnanseesamrasnesonss 1% 20% —

(22) Subsequent Events

In January 1998, the Company entered into a merger agreement (the “*Merger Agreement’’) with an
unrelated third party non-facilities-based reseller of long distance services. In the Merger, each outstanding share
of the third party's Common Stock (including shares of the third party’s Common Stock issued upon conversion
of its Series I Stock) will be acquired for that many shares of the Qwest's Common Stock having an aggregate
market value equal to $28.5 million, reduced by certain adjustments and limitations to $26.8 million, and future
payments of $4.0 million. The proposed acquisition is subject to certain closing conditions that include requisite
shareholder approval. If consummated, the proposed acquisttion will be accounted for using the purchase method

of accounting.
Also in January 1998, the Company signed a long-term contract 1o provide an unrelated third party

telecommunications capacity along approximately 10,000 route miles of the Qwest Network (the *‘Contract”’).
In consideration, the Company will receive 19.99% of the third party's common stock and up to $310.0 million
in cash over an extended psyment term. There are restrictions on the sale by the Company of the unrelated third
party’s common stock, and the unrelated third party has the nght to repurchase the common stock until the
Coantract's second anniversary. The Company will also reccive monthly operations and maintenance fees over
the term of the multi-year Contract. Prior to delivery of the telecommunications capacity and acceptance by the
unrelated third party, the unrelated third party has the right to purchase inter:™ capacity from the Company. The
total cash consideration under the Contract will be reduced by 60% of the sums paid by the unrelated third party
for purchases of interim capacity. Pursuant 1o the terms of the Contract, the unrelated third party may require the

y to purchase an additional $10.0 million of its common stock. If the Company fails to complete at least
75% of the unrelated third party's network by the Contract's third anniversary, the unrelated third party may at
its option either: (i) accept the completed portion and pay for it on a pro rata basis; or (ii) terminate the Contract
and require the Company (0 retum all consideration received.
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On March 8, 1998, the Company signed a definitive merger agreement with an unrelated third party
communications services provider. The boards of directors of each company have approved the merger. The
terms of the merger agreement call for the acquisition of all of the third panty's outstanding common shares and
the assumption of all of the third party’s stock options by the Company. The purchase price of the all-stock
transaction is anticipated to be approximately $4.4 billion. The merger is intended to qualify as a tax-free
reorganization and will be accounted for as a purchase.

(23) Selected Consolidated Quarterly Financial Data (in thousands, except per share information)
(Unaudited)

1997
First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter
ROVEMME ... o vsiwvvmms wwimmyeveiais $ 72,693 $228.673 $188,955 $206,382
Eamings (loss) from operations. . ... .. . . . (12,644) (7.098) 19,860 23,363
Net camings (loss) ................... (4,776) (5.612) 12,651 12,260
Eamings (loss) per share—basic ...... .. (0.03) (0.03) 0.06 0.06
Eamings (loss) per share—diluted ... ... (0.03) 0.03) 0.06 0.06
199
First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarier  Fourth Quarter
Revenue .........ooovvvvvvnnnnn.... $ 34632 $ 50,871 $ 44333 $101,160
Eamings (loss) from operations. ........ (14,653) (2.262) 571 4,330
Net camings (loss) ................... (9.979) (2,376) 3454 1,934
Eamings (loss) per share—basic ........ (0.06) (0.01) 0.02 0.01
Eamings (loss) per share—diluted ... ... (0.06) (0.01) 0.02 0.01

The Company adopted SFAS 128 in the fourth quarter of 1997 All per share information reflected in the
selected consolidated quarterly financial data above has been restated
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.



Part 100,

The information required by ltems 10, 11, 12 and 13 of Pan Il of this annual report on Form 10-K is
incorporated by reference from and will be contained in the Company's definitive proxy statement for the
Company’s annual meeting of stockholders to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after December 31,
1997.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
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Access charges

ATM (Asynchronous
Transfer Mode)

AT&T
Bandwidth

Capacity

CLEC (Competitive Local

Exchange Carrier)
Common Carrier

Dark Fiber

DS-0, DS-1, DS-3

Dense Wave Division
Multiplexing

DS-3 miles

GLOSSARY

The fees paid by long distance cariers to LECs for originating and terminating
long distance calls on the LECs® local networks.

An information transfer standard that is one of a general class of packet
technologies that relay traffic by way of an address contained within the first five
bytes of a standard fifty-three-byte long packet or cell. The ATM format can be
used by many different information systems, including local area networks, (o
deliver traffic at varying rates, permitting a mix of voice, data and video
(multimedia).

AT&T Corp.

The relative range of analog frequencies or digital signals that can be passed
through a transmission medium, such as glass fibers, without distortion. The
greater the bandwidth, the greater the information carrying capacity. Bandwidth
is measured in Hertz (analog) or Bits Per Second (digital).

Refers to transmission.

A provider of communications transmission services by fiber, wire or radio.

A company that competes with LECs in the local services market.

A govemnment-defined group of private companies offering telecommunications
services or facilities to the general public on a non-discriminatory basis.

Fiber that lacks the requisite electronic and optronic equipment necessary lo use
the fiber for transmission.

Describes a method of storing, processing and transmitting information through
the use of distinct electronic or optical pulses that represent the binary digits 0
and 1. Digital transmission/switching technologies cmploy a sequence of
discrete, distinct pulses to represent information, as opposed to the continuously
variable analog signal.

Standard telecommunications industry digital signal formats, which are
distinguishable by bit rate (the number of binary digits (0 and 1) ransmitted per
second). DS-0 service has a bit rate of 64 kilobits per second and typically
transmits only one voice conversation at a time. DS-1 service has a bit rate of
1.544 megabits per second and typically transmits 24 simultaneous voice
conversations. DS-3 service has a bit rate of 45 megabits per second and
typically transmits 672 simultancous voice conversations.

A technique for transmitting 8 or more different light wave frequencies on a
single fiber to increase the information carrying capacity.

A measure of the total capacity and length of a transmission path, calculated as
the capacity of the transmission path in DS-3s multiplied by the length of the
path in miles.
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LATAs (Local Access and
Transport Areas)

LEC (Local Exchange

Lit fiber

Multiplexing

OC-3, OC-48 and OC-192

RBOCs (Regional Bell
Operating Companies)

The basis upon which customers of interexchange carriers are able to obtain
access to their Primary Interexchange Camiers’ (PIC) long distance telephone
network by dialing **1**, thus chninating the need to dial additional digits and
an authorization code to obtain such access.

Federal Communications Commission.

A high-speed, data-packet switching service used to transmit data between
computers. Frame Relay supports data units of variable lengths at access speeds
ranging from 56 kilobits per second to 1.5 megabits per second. This service is
well-suited for connecting local area networks, but is not presently well suited
for voice and video applications due to the variable delays which can occur.
Frame Relay was designed to operate ar high speeds on modem fiber oplic

networks

GTE Intelligent Network Scrvices Incorporated.

A company that provides businesses and consumers with access to the Internet.

Connection of a telecommunications device or service to the public switched
telephone network (*‘PSTN'").

A company providing inter-LATA or long distance services between LATAs on
an intrastate or interstate basis.

Kilobits per second, which is a measurement of speed for digital signal
transmission expressed in thousands of bits per second.

The approximately 200 geographic arcas that define the areas between which the
RBOCs currently are prohibited from providing long distance services.

A company historically providing local telephone services.

Fiber activated or equipped with the requisite electronic and optronic equipment
necessary to use the fiber for transmission.

MCI Communications, Inc.

An electronic or optical process that combines a large number of lower speed
transmission lines into one high speed line by splitting the total available
bandwidth into narrower bands (frequency division), or by allotting a common
channel to several different transmitting devices, one at a time in sequence (time
division).

OC is a measure of SONET transmission optical carricr level, which is equal to
the corresponding number of DS-3s (e.g.. OC-3 is equal to 3 DS-3s and OC-48
is equal to 48 DS-3s).

The seven local telephone companies (formerly part of AT&T) established as a
result of the AT&T Divestiture Decree.
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Switch

WorldCom

Devices which automatically re-transmit or boost signals on an out-bound
circuit.

A carrier that does not own transmission facilities, but obtains communications
services from another carrier for resale to the public.

An electronics and network architecture for variable-bandwidth products which
enables transmission of voice, data and video (multimedia) at very high speeds.

A network architecture which provides for instantaneous restoration of service
in the event of a fiber cut by automatically rerouting traffic the other direction
around the ring. This occurs so rapidly (in S0 milliseconds), it is virtually
undetectable to the user.

Sprint Corporation

A device that selects the paths or circuits to be used for transmission of
information and establishes a connection. Switching is the process of
interconnecting circuits to form a transmission path between users and it also
captures information for billing purposes.

A communications channel between two switches. **Trunking’’ calls reduces the
likelihood of traffic blockage due to network congestion. A trunked system
combines multiple channels with unrestricted access in such a manner that user
demands for channels are automatically *‘queued™ and then allocated to the first
available channel.

WorldCom, Inc.




Part IV.

Item 14. mmmwumm Reports on Form 8-K
(v) l.iuddoemﬁldupmonhiuepon:

1. Financial Statements—[ncluded in Part 1] of this Form 10-K Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December
31, 1997 and 1996
Consolidated mﬂm for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

Notes t0 Consolidated Financial
2. Financial Statement Schedules—Schedule I1. Valuation and qualifying accounts
3. Exhibit Index
Neabr Description of Exhibit
21 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 8, 1998 among the Company, L.CI Intemational, Inc
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, incorporated by reference to the same document
filed as an exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K filed on March 9, 1998
22 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of December 31, 1997 among
Phoenix Network, Inc., Qwest Communications International Inc. and Qwest 1997-5 Acquisition
Corp., incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Proxy StatementProspectus that is pan of the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 as declared effective on February 12, 1998 (File No. 333.46145).
3.1*  Amended and restated certificate of incorporation of the C ompany
32 By-laws of the Company, incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 3 1n | orm 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1997 (File No. 000-22609).
4.1(a) Indenture dated as of October 13, 1997 with Bankers Trust Company (including form of the
Company’s 9.47% Senior Discount Notes Due 2007 and 9.47% Series B Senior Discount Notes Due
2007 as an exhibit thereto), incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 in Form $-4 as declared effective
on January S, 1998 (File No. 333-42847).
4.1(b) dated as of August 28, 1997 with Bankers Trust Company Gncluding form of the
Company's 10%% Series B Senior Notes Due 2007 as an exhibit thereto) filed herewith
4.1(c) Indenture dated as of January 29, 1998 with Bankers Trust Company (including form of the
Company's 8.29% Senior Discount Notes Due 2008 and 8.29% Scries B Senior Discount Notes Due
as an exhibit thereto) filed herewith
42 Registration Agreement dated January 29, 1998 with Salomon Brothers Inc. relating to the
Company's 8.29% Senior Discount Notes Due 2008 filed herewith.
9.1 Voting Agreement dated March 8, 1998, relating 10 the Agreement and Plan of Merger referred to in
Exhibit 2.1, incorporated by reference to the same document filed as an exhibit to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 9, 1998,
10.1*  Growth Share Plan, as amended, effective October 1, 1996,
102*  Employment Agreement dated December 21, 1996 with Joseph P. Nacchio
103*  Promissory Note dated November 20, 1996 and Severance Agreement dated December 1, 1996 with
Robert S. Woodruff. )
104 Equity Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors filed herewith
105°t IRU Agreement dated as of October 18, 1996 with Frontier Communications Intemational Inc.
10.6°t IRU Agreement dated as of February 26, 1996 with WorldCom Network Services Inc
10.7¢¢ muwuudmy 2, 1997 with GTE
10.8*  Equity Incentive Plan
109 Agreement dated March 7, 1997 with Stephen M. Jacobsen filed herewith
10.10  Employment Agreement dated October 8, 1997 with Lewis O. Wilks filed herewith
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Description of Exhibt

1011 Employment Agreement dated September 26, 1997 with Brij Khandelwal filed herewith

10.12 Employment Agreement dated September 19, 1997 with Lary Secse filed herewith

1013  Growth Share Plan Agreement with Joseph P. Nacchio, effective January 1, 1997, and Amendment
thereto, filed herewith

10.14 NonQualified Stock Option Agreement with Joseph P. Nacchio, effective June 1997 filed herewith

21 Subsidiasies of the Registrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 in Form S-4 as declared
effiective on January S, 1998 (File No. 333-42847)

2 Consent of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP filed herewith

1) Financial Deta Schedule filed herewith

Executive compensation plans and amangements required to be filed and identified as such are filed as exhibits

10.1, 10.2, 103, 104, 10.8, 109, 10.10, 10.11 and 10 12.

* Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number in Form S-1 as declared effective on June 23,
1997 (File No. 333-25391).

t Portions have been omitted pursuant to a previous request for confidential treatment that was granted by the
Commission.

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER, COPIES OF EXHIBITS INCLUDING THOSE
INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE WILL BE SENT 10 THE SHAREHOLDER FOR A REASONABLE
CHARGE (THE COST OF MAKING AND SENDING THEM) BY FIRST CLASS MAIL WITHIN TWO
BUSINESS DAYS OF RECEIPT OF SUCH REQUEST. ALL REQUESTS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED TO
THE SECRETARY OF THE COMPANY AT QWEST TOWER, 555 SEVENTEENTH STREET, SUITE 1000,
DENVER, CO 80202.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K. On November 6, 1997, the Registrant filed a Current Repont on Form 8-K
describing the acquisition from NEWSUPERNET, a not-for-profit entity. of all of the issued and outstanding
shares of capital stock of SuperNet, Inc.. an internet service provider. On December 24, 1997, the Registrant
filed an amended Current Report on Form 8-K providing the financial statements, pro forma financial information
and exhibit required pursuant to the Form 8-K filed on November 6, 1997

[

(c) See Item 14(a)(3), above.
(d) See Item 14(a)2). above.
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SIGNATURES

Mbhmdmlswlﬂd)dlm Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
anmuwuhwmmm.nbymeundmwmmunumdy
suthorized.

QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL Inc.,
a Delaware corporation

By: s/ ROBERT §. WOODRUFF

Robert S. Woodruff
Executive Vige President—Finance and Chief Financial
{MWicer and Treasurer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

March 19, 1997

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behaif of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Signotare Titles Date
/s/ Priup F. ANscHuTZ Chairman of the Board March I8, 1998
Philip F. Anschotz
/s/ Joseeu P. Nacchio Director, President and Chief March 19, 1998
Joseph P. Nacchie Executive Officer
/s/ ROBERT S. WooDRUFF Director, Exccutive Vice March 19, 1998
Rebert S. Weedrult President—Finance, Chief

Financial Ofticer, Principal
Accounting Officer and

Treasurer

/s/ _CANNON Y. HARVEY Director March 18, 1998

Cannen Y. Harvey
/s/ RICHARD T. LIEBHABER Director March 18, 1998

—— ¥ KICHARD T. LIEBHA
Richard T. Licbhaber

/s/ DoucLas L. PoLson Director March 18, 1998

Deuglas L. Polssn
/s/ CraiGD. SLATER Director March I8, 1998

Craig D. Siater
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/s/ JomDON L. HAINES

Jovden L. Halass

I/ 'W. THOMAS STEPHENS

W. Thomas Stephems

I/ Roy A. WILKENS

Rey A. Wilkens

Director

Director

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Under date of February 24, lm.wuhmn.wmchisaso”damh& 1998, we reported on the
consolidated balance sheets of Qwest ions International Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,

In our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken g5 a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG Peat Marwick LLP
Denver, Colorado
February 24, 1998



QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

(In Thousands)
Balance sl Additions Deducilsas
w'm of Charged te Wriie-offs,
Descrigtion profitandless Other (1) met of recoveries
. Year ended December 31, 1997:
Allowance for doubtful receivables—
L[ TP $..669 7,768 75 (6.901)
Year ended December 31, 1996:
Allowance for doubtful receivables—
OB .o it s s $2.621 2.841 —_ (1,793)
Year ended December 31, 1995:
Allowance for doubtful receivables —
BB ....ovivei e $1.253 1,758 646 (1.036)

(1) Represents additions resulting from acquisitions
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UNTTED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1997
OR

(] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1954

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO
COMMISSION FILE NUMEER 000-22609

QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.
(EXACT NAME OF REGISTRANT SPECIFIED IN ITS CHARTER)

DELAWARE 84-1339282
(STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF (LR.S. EMPLOYER
INCORPORATION OR ORGANIZATION) [DENTIFICATION NO.)

555 SEVENTEENTH STREET. SUTTE 1000
DENVER. COLORDADO 80202
(ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES)

(303) 291-1400
(REGISTRANT'S TELEPHONE NUMBER. INCLUDING AREA CODE)

[ndicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all repor's requured to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 dunng the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter peniod that the registrant
was required to file such reports). and (2) has been subject (o such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes [X] No(|

The number of shares of Common Stock. $.01 par value. outstanding (the only cfass of common stock of the
Company outstanding) was 103.320.766. as of November 12. 1997
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Part 1. Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 1997 and December 31, 1996

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share [nformation)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
Deferred income tax asset
Notes and other receivables
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income tax asset
Notes and other receivables
Intangibie and other long-term assets, net

Total assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

W

1997 1996

(unaudited)

S 186,751 S 6,905

64,719 29,248
164,986 4,989
- 6,501
14,936 14,954
7.065 328
438,435 62,705
444 816 186,555
8,902 =
1S 11,052
16.210 3.967

QN8 47! S 264259




QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets, Continued
September 30, 1997 and December 31, 1996
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Information)

Liabiliti i Stockholders' Equi
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earungs
Current portion of long-term debt
Advances from parent

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income tax liability
Other liabiliti

Total liabilities

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred Stock. $.01 par value. Authorized 25,000,000
shares. No shares issued and outstanding.
Common Stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 400,000,000
shares. 103,320,766 shares and 86,500,000 shares issued
and outstanding at September 30, 1997 and December 51.
1996, respectively.
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Commitments and contingencies
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

1997 1996

(unaudited)

S 178,676 S 80,129
4.044 2.649
12,440 5,034
6.432 -
15,782 25.193

- 19.138
217,374 132,143
268,946 109,268

- 1,708
55.307 11.698
539.627 254 817

1,055 863
412,008 55,027
{44 187) (46.450)
568.851 9.442

S 908,378 S 264,259




QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Counsolidated Statemeats of Operations
For the Periods Ended September 30, 1997 and September 30, 1996

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Information)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
1997 1996 1997 1996
Revenue: .
Carrier services $ 14098 S 9247 § 39062 S 45106
Commercial services 18.561 9.163 38.035 25475
32,436 18,410 77,095 70,581
Nerwork construction services 156,496 25,923 413,226 59.255
188.935 44,5333 490.521 129.836
Operating expenses:
Telecommunications services 26,417 14,598 65,310 62,399
Network construction services 106.160 15,717 282,472 37,661
Selling, general and administrative 27516 9,656 59,987 34,230
Growth share plan 4,151 -- 69.320 -
Depreciation and amortization 5.071 3.991 13.114 11.890
169.093 43.762 490.203 146,180
Income (loss) from operations 19,860 571 118 (16,344)
Other income (expense):
Gain on sale of contract rights - - 9.296 -
Gain on sale of telecommunications
service agreements - 6,126 - 6,126
Interest expense, net (4.159) (1,944) (8.886) (5.004)
Interest income 3,926 728 5912 1.898
Other income (expense), net 13 133 (1,986) 113
Income (loss) before income tax
expense (benefit) 19,642 5614 4,454 (15.211)
Income tax expense (benefit) 6.991 2.160 2.191 (4.310)
Net income (loss) $ 12.651 $ 3454 S 2263 S (8.901)
Net income (loss) per share $ 012 S 004 s 002 S (010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




(% LST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.

A1 SUBSIDIARIES
_.ansolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
?2¢ - the Nine Months Ended September 30, 1997

:snounts in Thovsands, Except Share Information)

Common Stock

Balances, December 51, 19%

Issuance of common sincx, et (unaudsed)

Issuance of common siock warrants (unaudsted)
Issuance of commca stock for growth shares (unaudited)
Net ncome (unswdised)

Balances, September 30, 1997 (unaudited)

Additional Total
Number of paid-in Accumulated stockholders’
shares Amount capilal deficit equily
86,500,000 $ 865 $ 55027 §$ (46,450) S 9,442
15,525,000 155 319,381 - 319,536
- - 2,300 - 2,300
1,295,766 13 35,297 - 35,310
- - - 2,263 2,26
103,320,766 $ 1,033 $412005 § (44,187) $ 3683851

See accompanying notes (o consolidated financial statements.



QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Coasolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 1997 and September 30, 1996

(Amounts in Thousands)
(Unsaudited)
1997 1996
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) S 2265 S (3,901)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used
in operating activities:
Gain on sale of contract rights (9.296) -
Gain on sale of telecommunications service agresments -- (6,126)
Depreciation and amortization 15,114 11,890
Deferred income tax expense 2,123 4,175
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables - accounts and notes, net (24.536) (23,200)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings (159,997) 14,706
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 59,848 (3.412)
Payable to related parties, net - (508)
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings 7,406 3,158
Accrued growth share plan expense and deferred
compensation 33,953 -
Other changes 15.050 (1,120
Net cash used in operating activities (60.072) (9.340)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of telecommunications service - 4,500
agreements
Proceeds from sale of contract rights 9,000 -
Expenditures for property and equipment (205.304) (48.853)
Net cash used in investing activities (196.304) (44.353)




QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 1997 and September 30, 1996

(Amounts ia Thousaads)
(Unaudited)
1997 1996
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 319,536 -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock warrants 2,500 -
Borrowings of long-term debt 328,000 51,000
Repayments of long-term debt (185,858) (14,689)
Debt issuance costs (8.638) (459)
Net (payments to) advances from Parent (19.138) 20.486
Net cash provided by financing activities 436.202 56.338
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 179.826 2,645
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 6.905 1.484
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period S 186.731 $.129
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net S 4.475 4.786
Cash paid for taxes. other than Parent S 195 132
Supplemental disclosure of significant non-cash investing and
financing activities:
Capital lease obligation S -- 720
Accrued capital expenditures S 57 903 -
Issuance of common stock in settlement of a portion of
accrued Growth Share liability b 38510 -
S 8.125 -

Capital expenditures financed with equipment credit facility

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




QWEST COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 1997 and December 31, 1996

(Information as of September 30, 1997, and for the Three
and Nine Moaths Ended September 30, 1997 and 1996 is Unaudited)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) General and Business

(b)

Qwest Communications International Inc (the Company) was wholly-owned by
Anschutz Company (the Parent) until June 27, 1997, when the Company issued
common stock in an initial public offering (as described in note (12) - Securities
Offering). Subsequent to the initial public offering and the issuance of additional
common shares in settlement of certain Growth Shares (as described in note (11) -
Growth Share Plan), the Parent owns approximately 83 7% of the outstanding
common stock of the Company. The Company is the ultimate holding company for
the operations of Qwest Communications Corporation and subsidiaries (Qwest).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and all majority-owned subsidiaries [ntercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) per share for the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997
and 1996 was computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during such penods  Common stock
equivalent shares from options, warrants and common stock issuable for Growth
Shares (as described in note (11) - Growth Share Plan) are included in the
computation when their effects are dilutive except that pursuant to Secunties and
Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin Number 83. Earmings Per Share
Compuuations in an Ininal Public Offermg, 1.658.000 common shares issuable for
Growth Shares granted during the 12-month period prior to the Company’s initial
public offering at prices below the anticipated public offering price were included in
the calculation as if they were outstanding for all periods presented. up to the close of
the initial public offering.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board recently issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Share (SFAS 128). SFAS 128 requires
the presentation of basic earnings per share (EPS) and, for companies with potentiaily
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dilutive securities, such as convertible debt, options and warrants, diluted EPS. SFAS
128 is effective for annual and interim periods ending after December 15, 1997. The
Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 128 will significantly affect the
calculation of the Company’s net income (loss) per common share.

(c) Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The accompanying unaudited, intenm consolidated financial statements as of
September 30, 1997, and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997 and
1996 are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for
interim financial information and with the instructions of Form 10-Q, Article 10 of
Regulation S-X. In the opinion of management, these statements reflect all
adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair presentation
of the results of such periods. The results of operations for any intenm period are not
necessarily indicative of results for the full year Such financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of
December 31. 1996 and 1995, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholder’s equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 1996, included in the registration statement (no. 333-25391) on
Form S-1 filed by the Company (as described in note (12) - Securities Offering). The
information contained in these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements as
of December 31, 1996 has been derived from those statements

(d) Income Taxes

The Company is included in the consolidated income tax return of the Parent. and a
tax-sharing agreement provides for allocation of tax habilities and benefits to the

Company. in general, as though it filed a separate retum

(2) Gain on Sale of Contract Rights

On March 10, 1997, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated thurd party
to terminate cerain equipment purchase and telecommunications capacity nghts and
options of the Company exercisable against the third party for $9 0 million In 1997, the
Company received the $9.0 million in cash.

.10



G)

“)

Gain on Sale of Telecommunications Service Agreements

On July 1, 1996, the Company sold its right, title and interest in certain telecommunications
service agreements to an unrelated third party (the Buyer) for $5.5 million. During the
transition of service agreements to the Buyer, the Company has incurred centain facilities
costs on behalf of the Buyer, which are reimbursable to the Company. As of September
30, 1997 and December 31, 1996, net amounts of approximately $3.5 million and $2.0
million, respectively, were due to the Company for such costs. On March 31, 1997, the
arrangement relating to transition services expired and has not yet been renegotiated. A
dispmebuuimwithmwreimhursememofthesecostsmd,asaresult.the
Company made a provision of $2.0 million in the three months ended March 31, 1997.
Negotiations with the Buyer are continuing. The Company believes that the receivable

balance as of September 30, 1997 is collectble.
Network Construction Services Revenue and Expenses

Costs and billings on uncompleted contracts included in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements are as follows (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,

1997 1996
(unaudited)
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts $ 359,538 S 82840
Estimated earnings 185.052 48 853
344,370 151,693
Less: billings to date 391.824 151,738
S 132,546 S (45)
Included in the accompanying balance sheet
accounts under the following captions:
Costs and estimated earnings in excess
of billings $ 164,986 S 4989
Billings in excess of costs and estimated
eamnings (12.440) (5.034)
S 152346 S (45)
Revenue the Company expects to realize for
work to be performed on the above
uncompleted contracts $ 577.886 $ 328.688

The Company has entered into agreements with unrelated third parties whereby the
Company will provide indefeasible rights of use in multiple fibers along a coast-t0-coast
fiber optic telecommunications network (the Network) for a purchase price of
approximately $1.1 billion. Eamings relating to these contracts are estimated using
allocations of the total cost of constructing the Network (as described in note (10) -
Commitments and Contingencies).
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(5) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

Land

Facility and leasehold improvements

Communications and construction equipment

Fiber and conduit systems

Office equipment and furniture

Network construction and other assets held
under capital leases

Work in progress

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

(6) Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

September 30, December 31,
1997 1996
(unaudited)

s 558 s 506
12,761 7951
74,751 52,076
92,924 42,446

8324 6,560
3,071 3,197
288.710 99.915
481,099 212,451
(56.283) (25.916)
$4443816 S 186.535

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consists of the following (in thousands):

Accounts payable

Construction accounting accrual
Capacity service obligation
Property, sales and other taxes
Accrued interest

Other

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

September 30,

December 31,

1997 1996
(unaudited)

S 40,165 € 44766
66,976 18,071

8971 3,658

28,551 3,793
14,594 707
19.421 9.154

S 178.676 S 80129




(7) Other Liabilities
Other liabilities consists of the following (in thousands):
September 30, December 31,

1997 1996
(unaudited)
Right-of-way obligation s 31,295 S 1,297
Growth share accrual 13,996 9,291
Other 3.016 1.110
Other liabilities S 53,307 $ 11,698

(8) Long-term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands)

September 30, December 51,

1997 1996
(unaudited)

Senior notes - Series B $ 250,000 S -
Revolving credit facility 10,000 60,000
Customer contract credit facility 15,000 25,918
Equipment credit facility 8,125 -
Network credit facility - 27,077
Equipment loans - 9,820
Term notes - 9,416
Capiral lease obligations 1,425 2,010
Other 180 220

Total debt 284,728 134,461

Less current portion (15.782) (25,193)

Long-term debt $ 268,946 $ 109,268

In August 1997, the Company completed an exchange of notes (the Exchange Notes),
registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the Act). for all of the originally issued
10 7/8% Senior Notes due 2007 (the Senior Notes). The Exchange Notes are identical in
ail material respects to the originally issued Senior Notes. The Company received no
proceeds from and recognized no profit on the exchange transaction, and no change in the
financial condition of the Company occurred as a result of the exchange transaction. The
Senior Notes and the Exchange Notes are referred to, collectively, hereinafter as the
“Series B Senior Notes.”

The Company had a $100.0 million three-year revolving credit facility In October 1997,
the Company paid the outstanding balance and terminated this credit facility.

-
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In February 1997, the Company entered into a one year $50.0 million line of credit from a
commercial bank. No amounts were ever drawn under this credit line, and the Company
canceled the facility in July 1997.

In October 1997, the Company issued $555.890,000 in principal amount at maturity of
Senior Discount Notes, due 2007 (the Discount Notes), generating net proceeds of
approximately $342.6 million, after deducting offering costs which are included in
intangible and other long-term assets. Such net proceeds will be used to fund capital
expenditures for continuing construction and activation of the Network and to fund further
growth in the business. The Discount Notes will accrete at a rate of 9.47% per annum,
compounded semi-annually. to an aggregate principal amount of $555,890,000 by October
15, 2002. The principal amount of the Discount Notes is due and payable in full on
October 15, 2007. The Discount Notes are redeemable at the Company’s option, in whole
or in part, at any time on or after October 15, 2002. at specified redemption prices. In
addition, prior to October 15, 2000, the Company may use the net cash proceeds from
cerain equity transactions to redeem up to 35% of the Discount Notes at specified
redemption prices. Cash interest on the Discount Notes will not accrue until October 135,
2002, and thereafter will accrue at a rate of 9 47% per annum, and will be payable semi-
annually in arrears commencing on April 15, 2005 and thereafter on April 15 and October
15 (each an interest payment date) of each year The Company has the option of
commencing the accrual of cash interest on an interest payment date on or after October
15, 2000, in which case the outstanding principal amount at maturity of the Discount Notes
will, on such interest payment date, be reduced to the then accrezed value, and cash interest
will be payable on each interest payment date thereafter

In connection with the sale of the Discount Notes, the Company agreed to make an offer to
exchange new notes, registered under the Act and with terms identical in all material
respects to the Discount Notes, for the Discount Notes or. aiternatively, to file a shelf
registration statement under the Act with respect to the Discount Notes. [f the registration
statement for the exchange offer or the shelf registration statement, as applicable, are not
filed or declared effective within specified time penods or. after being declared effective,
cease to be effective or usable for resale of the Discount Notes during specified me
periods (each a Registration Default), additional cash interest will accrue at a rate per
annum equal to 0.50% of the principal amount at matunty of the Discount Notes during the
90-day period immediately following the occurrence of a Registration Default and
increasing in increments of 0.25% per annum of the principal amount at maturity of the
Discount Notes up to a maximum of 2.0% per annum. at the ¢end of each subsequent 90-
day period until the Registration Default is cured.

The terms of certain loan agreements described above limit the Company's ability to pay
dividends and restrict certain assets of the Company's subsidianes
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(10)

Advances From Pareat

Advances from Parent at December 31, 1996, which were non-interest bearing, included
costs charged to the Company by the Parent and advances received from the Parent to fund
operations, net of repayments. In May 1997, all outstanding advances from Parent, totaling
approximately $28.0 million, were repaid.

Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Network Coastruction Project

In 1996, the Company commenced construction of the Network, which is scheduled
for completion in the second quarter of 1999 The Company projects its total
remaining cost at September 30, 1997 for completing the construction of the Network
will be approximately $1.2 billion. This amount includes the Company's remaining -
commitment through December 31, 1998 to purchase a minimum quantity of matenials
for approximately $200.5 million as of September 30, 1997, -ubject to quality and
performance expectations. The Company has the option to extend the materials
purchase agreement through December 31, 1999 and may assign some or all of s
remaining purchase commitment to a third party or cancel the agreement by paying the
seller an amount equal to 7% of any remaining commitment. The Company has
contracted to provide a portion of the fibers in the Network to third parties (see note
(4) - Network Construction Services Revenue and Expenses).

Although these agreements provide for certain penaltics if the Company does not
complete construction within the time frames specified within the agreements,
management does not anticipate that the Company will incur any substantial penalties
under these provisions.

(b) Easement Agreements

In February 1997, the Company entered into a nght-of-way agreement with an
unrelated third party which provides for advance payment of S1 9 million for the initial
five-year period of the agreement and S1.9 million in advance of each subsequent five-
year period during the remainder of the 25-year term of the agreement. The present
value of this obligation is included in other non-current liabilities as of September 30,
1997.

In July 1997, the Company entered into a 25-year nght-of-way agreement with an
unrelated third party that allows the Company to construct and operate a fiber optic
network for approximately 850 route miles along such right-of-way The agreement
provides for annual payments of approximately $2,500 per route mile. The present
value of this obligation is included in other non-current liabilities as of September 50,
1997

In October 1997, the Company entered into a perpetual right-of-way agreement with
an unrelated third party that allows the Company to install conduit in up to
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(11)

(12)

approximately 300 route miles along such right-of-way The agreement provides for a
total payment in advance of approximately $4 9 million, which was paid by the
Company in October 1997.

In October 1997, the Company entered into a 25-year right-of-way agreement with an
unrelated third party that allows the Company to construct and operate a fiber optic
network over up to approximately 370 route miles alcng such right-of-way. The
agreement provides for advance annual payments of approximately $4,500 per route
mile.

Growth Share Plan

The Company has a Growth Share Plan for cerain of its employees and directors. A
“Growth Share” is a unit of value based on the increase in value of the Company over a
specified measuring period. Upon completion of the common stock offering in June 1997
(as described in note (12) - Securities Offering). certain Growth Shares vested in full. The
Company has estimated an increase in value of the Growth Shares during 1997 and has
recorded approximately $69.3 million of additional compensation expense in the nine
months ended September 30, 1997 In July 1997, the Company issued 1,295,766 common
shares, net of amounts relating to tax withholdings of approximately $21.9 million, in
settlement of a portion of the accrued liability related to Growth Shares. Compensation
relating to certain non-vested Growth Shares will be amortized as expense over the

remaining approximately four-year vesting penod
Securities Offering

On May 23, 1997, the Board of Directors approved a change in the Company’s capital
stock to authorize 400 million shares of S.01 par value Common Stock (of which 10 miilion
shares are reserved for issuance under the Equity Incentive Plan (as described in note (13)
- Equity Incentive Plan), 2 million shares are reserved for issuance under the Growth Share
Plan, and 4.3 million shares are reserved for issuance upcn exercise of warrants, as
described below), and 25 million shares of S 0! par value Preferred Stock. On May 23,
1997, the Board of Directors declared a stock dividend to the existing stockholder of
86,490,000 shares of Common Stock, which was paid immediately prior to the
effectiveness of the registration statement on June 23, 1997 Ths dividend is accounted for
as a stock split. All shares and per share information included in the accompanying interim
consolidated financial statements have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to the
change in capitalization. The Company completed the initial public offering of 15,525,000
shares of Common Stock on June 27, 1997. raising net proceeds of approximately $319.5
million.

Effective May 23, 1997, the Company sold to an affiliate of the Parent for $2.3 million in
cash, a warrant 10 acquire 4.3 million shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$28.00 per share. exercisable on May 23, 2000 The warrant is not transferable. Stock
issued upon exercise of the warrant will be subject to restrictions on sale or transfer for two
years after exercise.



(13)

(14)

Equity Incentive Plan

Effective June 23, 1997, the Company adopted the Qwest Communications International
Inc. Equity Incentive Plan (the Equity Incentive Plan). This plan permits the grant of non-
qualified stock options, incentive stock options. stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
stock units and other stock grants to key employees of the Company and affiliated
companies and key consultants to the Company and affiliated companies who are
responsible for the Company's growth and profitability A maximum of 10 million shares
of Common Stock may be subject to awards under the Equity Incentive Plan.

The Compeny’s Compensation Committee (the Committee) determines the exercise price
for each option; however, stock options must have an exercise price that is at least equal to
the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date the stock option is granted, subject
to certain restrictions.

All awards granted under the Equity Incentive Plan will immediately vest upon any change
in control of the Company, as defined. unless provided otherwise by the Commuttee at the
time of grant. All outstanding options will automaucally termunate upon the occurrence of
certain merger and reorganization transactions and appropnate notice by the Company to
all option holders, as defined.

For the nine months ended September 30, 1997, the Company has granted options to
purchase a total of 5,800,500 shares of Common Stock of the Company The options are
exercisable over five years from the date of grant and have a weighted average exercise
price of approximately $29.00 per share.

As permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123, Accounting Jor
Stock Based Compensation. the Company accounts for the Equity Incentive Plan in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No £, Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees. No compensation expense has besn recognized for grants under the Equity
Incentive Plan.

Mezico Fiber Purchase Agreement

In July 1997, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party
whereby the Company will receive (i) four dark fibers along a 2.270 kilometer route to be
constructed in Mexico (the Mexico Network) by the third party, and (i1) cemain
construction inventory and value-added tax refunds. totaling approximately $2 9 mullion.
In exchange for these assets, the third party will receive the stock of the Company's
subsidiary, SP Servicios de Mexico S. A. de C. V (SPS), and approximately $6.7 million in
cash. Upon completion of the Mexico Nerwork and the extension of the Qwest Network to
the Mexican border, the Qwest Network will be linked to Mexico City. Mexico.

Completion of the Mexican network is scheduled for late 1998
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(15 Significant Customers

During the nine months ended September 30, 1997 and the year ended December 31, 1996,
two or more customers, in aggregate, have accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s
total revenues in one or more periods, as follows:

Customer Customer  Customer

A B C
1996 27.8% 26.3% -
1997 6.3% 33.4% 36.9%

(16) Acquisition

In October 1997, Qwest and an unrelated third party consummated an agreement whereby
Qwest acquired from the third party all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock
of the third party’s then wholly owned internet service provider (the ISP), and the capital
stock of the ISP issued at the closing of the acquisition, for $20.0 million in cash. The
acquisition will be accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase
price will be allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon the estimated fair
values of such assets and liabilities.




Item 2.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1997 AND 1996

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with (i) the Company’s
accompanying unaudited interim financial statements and the notes thereto, and (ii) the financial statements,
and related notes thereto, and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations included in the registration statement (File No. 333-25391) on Form S-1 (Form S-1) filed by the

Company.
Information Regarding Forward-looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of
federal securities laws, including statements about the Company’s plans to complete the Qwest Network
(defined below), expectations as to funding its capital requirements, anticipated expansion of Carrier
Services (defined below) and Commercial Services (defined below), regulatory and pricing trend
projections, and other statements of expectations, beliefs. future plans and strategies, anticipated
developments, and other marters that are not historical facts. Management cautions the reader that these
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual events or results to
differ materially from those expressed or implied by the statements. Important factors that could prevent
the Company from achieving its stated goals include, but are not limited to failure by the Company (i) to
manage effectively, cost efficiently and on a timely basis the construction of the route segments, (ii) to enter
into additional customer contracts to sell dark fiber or provide high-volume capacity and otherwise expand
its telecommunications customer base, (iii) to obtain and maintain all necessary rights-of-way.  For
additional information. see “Risk Factors” included in the Company’s filings with the SEC.

Overview

The Company is a facilities-based provider of communications services to interexchange carners
and other communications entities (Carrier Services) and to businesses and consumers (Commercial
Services). and it constructs and installs fiber optic communications systems for interexchange carners and
other communications entities, as well as for its own use (Network Construction Services).

The Company is expanding its existing long distance nerwork into an approximately 16,000 route-
mile, coast-to-coast. technologically advanced fiber optic telecommunications network (the Qwest
Network), which includes the recently announced 3,000 route-mile extensions in the Southeastern states,
California and Texas. The Company will employ, throughout substantially all of the Qwest Network, a
self-healing SONET four-fiber ring architecture equipped with the most advanced commercially available
fber and transmission electronics manufactured by Lucent Technologies and Northern Telecom Inc.
(Nortel), respectively. The Qwest Network’s advanced fiber and transmission electronics are expected to
provide the Company with lower installation, operating and maintenance costs than older fiber systems
generally in commercial use today. In addition, the Company has entered into construction contracts for
the sale of dark fiber along the route of the Qwest Network, which will reduce the Company's net cost per
fiber mile with respect to the fiber it retains for its own use. As a result of these cost advantages, the
Company believes it will be well positioned to capture market share and take advantage of the rapidly
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growing demand for data transmission, multimedia and long haul voice capacity The Company derives its
revenue from Carrier Services, Commercial Services and Network Construction Services.

In October 1997, Qwest and NEWSUPERNET (NSN) consummated an agreement whereby Qwest
acquired from NSN all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of NSN's then wholly-owned
internet service provider, SuperNet, Inc. (SNT), and the capital stock of SNI issued at the closing of the
acquisition, for $20.0 million in cash. The acquisition will be accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. The purchase price will be allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon the
estimated fair values of such assets and liabilities.

Carrier Services. Carrier Services provide high-volume and conventional dedicated line services over
the Company's owned capacity and switched services over owned and leased capacity to interexchange
carriers and other telecommunications providers. The Company is currently focusing on expanding Carrier
Services to increase its revenue stream and reduce per unit costs. targeting short-term capacity sales on a
segment-by-segment basis as the Qwest Network is deployed and activated, and is increasingly seeking
longer-term, high-volume capacity agreements from major carriers  In addition to traditional
telecommunications carriers, the Company is marketing to internet service providers and other data service
companies. Revenue from Carrier Services has been derived from high-volume capacity services, dedicated
line services and switched services. The Company provides high-volume transmission capacity services
through service agreements for terms of one year or longer Dedicated line services are generally offered
under service agreements for an initial term of one year. High-volume capacity service agreements and
dedicated line service agreements generally provide for “take or pay” monthly payments at fixed rates based
on the capacity and length of circuit used. Customers are typically billed on a monthly basis and also may
incur an installation charge or certain ancillary charges for equipment. After contract expiration, the
contracts may be renewed or the services may be provided on a month-to-month basis. Switched services
agreements are generally offered on a month-to-month basis, and the service is billed on a minutes-of-use
basis. Revenue from carrier customers that is billed on a minutes-of-use basis has the potential to fluctuate
significantly based on changes in usage that are highly dependent on differences between the prices charged
by the Company and its competitors. The Company, however. has not experienced significant fluctuations
to date. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997. the Company’s five largest carner
customers accounted for approximately 44.4% and 41.3% of Carmier Services revenue, respectively

Commercial Services. Commercial Services provide long distance voice. data and video services to
businesses and consumers. The Company plans to build on its Carrier Services experience to expand its
presence in the Commercial Services market by developing its distinctive “ride the light” brand identity and
aggressively marketing its existing and planned voice, data and other transmission products and services.
The Company plans to build direct end user relationships by developing strong distribution channels,
providing competitive pricing and superior network quality and offering enhanced. market-driven services
10 businesses and consumers. Revenue from Commercial Services is recogmized primarily on a minutes-of-
use basis. Commercial Services has generated revenue using three primary sales channels: direct mail,
agent and telemarketing. The Commercial Services market is highly competitive and generally subject to
significant customer attrition. The Company's attrition rates vary by product line and sales channel. and the
Company typically has experienced an average monthly attrition rate ranging from 4% to 9% The average
antrition rates for the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997 have been consistent with historical
rates. In September 1997. the Company entered into an arrangement with a thurd party under which they
will jointly define and test new broadband business multimedia services The Company has also entered
into marketing agreements in September 1997 with two additional third parties. Under one of these
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agreements, the third party, a marketing company that wholesales and retails telecommunications products
on a national basis, will be an suthorized sales representative of Qwest, marketing the Company's long-
distance products through affinity groups. Under the second of these agreements, the Company will offer
its One Plus and Calling Card services (with competitive international pricing for both) to utilities across

the nation along with other services provided by the third party under its Simple Choice™ brand name.

Network Construction Services. Network Construction Services consist of the construction and
installation of Gber optic communication systems for interexchange carriers and other telecommunications
providers, as well as for the Company’s own use. Revenue from Network Construction Services generally
is recognized under the percentage of completion method as performance milestones relating to the
contracts are completed. Losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are expensed in the period in which they
are identified, and any revisions to estimated profits on a contract are recognized in the period in which

they become known.

In 1996, the Company entered into construction contracts for the sale of dark fiber to Frontier
Communications Internarional, dnc. (Froatier) and WorldCom, Inc. (WorldCom) whereby the Company has
agreed to install and provide dark fiber to each along portions of the Qwest Network. The Company also
entered into two construction contracts in 1997 with GTE Intelligent Network Services Incorporated
(GTE) for the sale of dark fiber along segments of the route of the Qwest Network. After completion of
the Qwest Network, the Company expects that revenues from Network Construction Services will be less

significant to the Company’s operations.

As previously disclosed, the Company is expanding its network into Mexico. Upon completion of
the Qwest Network to the Mexican border, the Qwest Network will be linked to Mexico City, Mexico.
Completion of the Mexican network is scheduled for late 1998.

Pricing. The Company believes that prices in the telecommunication services industry will continue
1o decline as a result of reforms prompted by the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and reform of the rules
governing access charges and international settlement rates. The Company also believes that the effect of
such decreases in prices on total revenue will be partiaily offset by increased demand for
telecommunications services, and that the low cost per unit base of the Qwest Network will give it a
competitive advantage relative to its competitors.

Operating Expenses. The Company’s principal operating expenses consist of expenses for network
construction incurred by Network Construction Services, expenses for telecommunications services,
selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A), and depreciation and amoruzation. Expenses for
Nerwork Construction Services consist primarily of costs to construct the Qwest Network, including
conduit, fiber cable, construction crews and rights-of-way Costs attributable to the construction of the
Qwest Network for the Company’s own use are capitalized.

Expenses for telecommunications services primarily consist of the cost of leased capacity, Local
Exchange Carrier (LEC) access charges, engineering and other operating costs. Since the Company
currently provides dedicated line services primarily over its owned network, the cost of providing these
services generally does not include the cost of leased capacity or LEC access charges. Expenses for
switched services. however. include these costs. The Company leases capacity from other carriers to
extend its switched services for originating and terminating traffic beyond its own network boundaries.
LEC access charges, which are variable, represent a significant portion of the total cost for switched
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services. Due in part to these costs, revenue from switched services has lower gross margins than revenue
from dedicated line services. When the Qwest Network is completed and activated, the Company will be
able to serve more customer needs over its own capacity on the Qwest Network. Furthermore, with
additional switched traffic on the Qwest Network. the Company believes it will realize economies of scale
and thereby lower its telecommunications costs as a percentage of revenue.

SG&A includes the cost of salaries, benefits, occupancy costs, commissions, sales and marketing
expenses and administrative expenses. Commercial Services sales and marketing expenses are incurred
primarily through the use of its agent, telemarketing and direct mail sales channels. The Company expects
that increased SG&A will be necessary to realize the anticipated growth in revenue for Carrier Services and
Commercial Services as the Company develops the Qwest Network The Company is in the process of
opening commercial sales offices in selected major geographic markets to implement the Company's
strategy, as segments of the Qwest Network become operational In addition, SG&A expenses will
increase as the Company continues to recruit experienced telecommunications industry personnel to

implement the Company’s strategy.

The Company has a Growth Share Plan for certain of its employees and directors. Growth Share
Plan expense, included in operating expenses, reflects the Company’s estimate of compensation expense
with respect to the Growth Shares issued to participants. A “Growth Share” 1s a unit of value based on the
increase in value of the Company over a specified measuring period. Growth Shares granted under the Plan
generally vest at the rate of 20% for each full year of service completed after the grant date subject to risk
of forfeiture. Participants receive their vested portion of the increase in value of the Growth Shares upon a
triggering event, as defined, which includes the end of a growth share performance cycle. Upon completion
of the common stock offering in June 1997, cerain Growth Shares vested in full, which resulted in
substantial compensation expense under the Growth Share Plan in the second quarter of 1997, and the
issuance in July 1997 of 1,295,766 shares of Common Stock. which were net of amounts related to tax
withholdings. in settlement of the accrued liability related to these Growth Shares Effective with the initial
public offering, all holders of Growth Shares not vested by virtue of the imiual public offering have been
granted nonqualified stock options under the Company’s Equity Incentive Plan. and the value of these
Growth Shares has been capped based upon the initial public offenng price of $22.00 per share.
Compensation expense relating to these non-vested Growth Shares will be recognized over the remaining
approximately four-year vesting period and is estimated to be up to approximately S27 7 mullion in total.
The Company does not anticipate any future grants under the Growth Share Plan



Results of Operatioas

The table set forth below summarizes the Company's revenue by source, operating expenses, other
income (expense), and other financial and operating data (amounts in thousands, except per share
information, minutes cf use, route miles and switch information):
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Three and Nine Moaths Ended September 30, 1997 Compared to Three and Nine Months Ended
September 30, 1996

-

The Company reported net income of $12.7 million and S2 3 mullion in the three and nine months
ended September 30, 1997, respectively, compared to net income of $3 3 milion and a net loss of $8 9
million in the same periods of the prior year. Excluding the effect of the compensation expense relatng to
the Growth Share Plan, net of income tax, the Company's reported net income would have been
approximately $15.3 million and $46.6 million for the three and rune months ended September 30, 1997,
respectively.

Revenue. Total revenue increased $144 .6 million. or 326%. and $360 3 mullion, or 278%, dunng the
three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively. as compared to the corresponding periods
in 1996. Revenue from Network Construction Services increased $130 6 million. or 504%, and $334.0
million, or 597%. during the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively, as compared
to the corresponding periods in 1996. The increases were due primarily to network construction revenue
from dark fiber sales to WorldCom, GTE and Frontier. Carrier Services revenue increased $<4.9 muillion, or
§2%. and decreased $6.0 million, or 13%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997,
respectively, compared with the corresponding periods in 1996 The increase in the three months ended
September 30, 1997, as compared to the corresponding period in the prior year resuited from the growth in
on-net dedicated line services on lit portions of the Network. The decrease in revenue in the mine months
ended September 30, 1997, as compared to the corresponding period in the pnor year. was primarily due to
the Company's sale of its resale dedicated line services on leased capacity on July 1. 1996. The sold
business generated revenue of $13.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 Exclusive of
this revenue. Carrier Services revenue increased $12.8 million. or 48%, during the nine months ended
September 30, 1997, as compared to the corresponding peniod of 1996 This increase in Carmier Services
revenue was due primarily to increases in revenue from carrier switched services and carrier dedicated line
services provided on the Qwest Network. Commercial Services revenue increased $9 2 million. or 100%,
and $12.6 million. or 49%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectivelv. as
compared to the corresponding periods in 1996  The increase was due pnimanly to growth in switched
services provided to small- and medium-sized businesses and to consumers as a result of continued
expansion of the Company’s direct mail, agent and telemarketing sales channels

Operating Expenses. Total operating expenses increased $125 3 mullion. or 286%, and $3440
million. or 235%, during the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively, over the same
periods in 1996, due primarily to increases in telecommunications services, network construction services,
SG&A. Growth Share Plan and depreciation and amortization expense.
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Expenses for telecommunications services increased $12.0 million, or §5%, and $2.9 million, or 5%,
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively, compared to the corresponding
periods in the prior year. The growth in telecommunications services expenses was primarily attnbutable to
the continued growth in switched services and network engineering and operations, partially offset by the
reduction in expenses resulting Grom the sale on July 1, 1996 of the Company’s resale dedicated line
services on leased capacity. Expenses for Network Construction Services increased $90 4 million, or
575%, and $244.8 million, or 650%, in the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively,
compared to the corresponding periods in 1996, due to costs of construction contracts relating to increased

dark fber sales revenue.

SG&A increased $17.7 million, or 183%., and $25.8 million, or 75%, in the three and nine months
ended September 30, 1997, respectively, compared to the corresponding periods of 1996. The increase
was due primarily to increases in expenses related to the following. the Company's direct mail sales

the development of the Company’s new brand identity, administrative and information services
support of the Company's growth, and recruiting and hiring additional personnel The Company
anticipates that as it deploys the Qwest Network, expands its Carrier Services and Commercial Services,
and initiates its direct sales operations, SG&A will continue to increase

The Company has estimated an increase in the value of Growth Shares, pnmanly tnggered by the
June 1997 initial public offering, and has recorded approximately $4.1 million and $69.3 million of
additional compensation expense in the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively No
expense was recognized in the three and nine months ended September 30, 1996, as there were no
compensatory elements in those periods. The Company anticipates total additional expense of up to
approximately $27.7 million through the year 2002 in connection with this plan.

The Company’s depreciation and amortization expense increased S | million, or 27%. and $1.2
million, or 10%, during the three and nine months ended September 30. 1997, respectively, from the
corresponding periods in 1996. This increase resuited primarily from activating the Denver to Sacramento
segment of the Qwest Network in late July 1997, purchases of additional equipment used in constructing
the Qwest Network and purchases of other fixed assets to accommodate the Company's growth. The
Company expects that depreciation and amortization expense will continue to increase in subsequent
periods as the Company continues to activate additional segments of the Qwest Network and amortizes the
goodwill acquired with the SNT purchase (discussed above).

Interest and Other Income (Expense). Pursuant to a capacity sale in 1993, the Company obtained
certain rights of first refusal to re-acquire network communications equipment and terminal locations
including leasehold improvements should the purchaser. under that agreement. sell the network. In the first
quarter of 1997, the Company sold certain of these rights to the purchaser in return for $9 0 muilion in cash
and the right to re-acquire certain terminal facilities.

As previously discussed, the Company sold a portion of its dedicated line services on leased capacity
in July 1996. During the transition of the service agreements to the buyer, the Company incurred certain
facilities costs on behalf of the buyer, which were to be reimbursed to the Company A dispute arose with
respect to the reimbursement of such costs and, as a result. the Company made a provision of
approximately $2.0 million in the first quarter of 1997.
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During the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997 the Company's net interest and other
expenses decreased $.9 million and increased $2.0 million, respectively, as compared to the corresponding
periods of 1996. Interest expense, net, increased 52.2 million, or 114%, and $3 9 million, or 78%, during
the three and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively, as compared to the corresponding
periods of 1996. These increases were due primarily to interest expense related to the issuance of 5250.0
million in principal amount of 10 7/8% Senior Notes, due 2007 (the Senior Notes) on March 31, 1997,
partially offset by additional capitalized interest resulting from construction of the Qwest Network. Interest
income increased by $3.2 million, or 439%, and $4.0 million, or 211%, during the three and nine months
ended September 30, 1997, respectively, attributable to the increase in cash equivalent balances, which
resulted from the issuance of the Senior Notes and the initial public offering. During the nine months ended
September 30, 1997, the Company's other expense, net, increased $2.1 million, as compared to the
corresponding period of 1996 due primarily to the provision for transition service costs described in the
previous h. The Company expects interest expense to grow in future periods due to the issuance
in October 1997 of its 9.47% Senior Discount Notes (discussed below)

Income Taxes. The Company is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of Anschutz
Company (the Parent), and a tax sharing agreement provides for allocation of tax liabilities and benefits to
the Company, in general, as though it filed a separate tax reurn. The Company's effective tax rate nine
months ended September 30, 1997 was higher than the starutory federal rate as a result of permanent
differences between book and tax expense relating to the Growth Share Plan. The Company’s effective tax
rate in the three months ended September 30, 1997 and in the three and nine months ended September 30,
1996 approximated the statutory federal rate.

Net Income (Loss). The Company realized net income of 512.7 million and $2.3 million in the three

and nine months ended September 30, 1997, respectively, compared to net income of $3.5 million and a net
loss of $8.9 million in the corresponding periods of 1996 as a resuit of the factors discussed above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the nine months ended September 30, 1997. the Company has funded capital expenditures
and long-term debt repayments primarily through the net proceeds from the debt and equity offerings. The
intends to finance its operations in the future through internally generated and external funds

without relying on cash advances, contributions or guarantees from the Parent.

The Company’s operations generated insufficient cash flows dunng the nine months ended
September 30, 1997 to enable it to meet its capital expenditures, debt service and other cash needs. Total
cash expended during this period to fund capital expenditures, repayments of long-term debt to third parties
and net repayments of advances from the Parent was approximately $205 53 mullion, $1859 million and
$19.1 million, respectively. Total cash used in operations was approximatelv $60 | million during the same
period. During the first nine months of 1997, total cash provided by loans secured by collateral owned by
its parent or an affiliate was approximately 578.0 million. As of September 30, 1997, the Company had
positive working capital of approximately $221.1 million. As of December 31, 1996, the Company had a
working capital deficit of approximately $69.4 million.

In March 1997, the Company issued $250.0 million in principal amount of its 10 7/8% Senior Notes

due 2007 (the Senior Notes), the net proceeds (approximately $242.0 million) of which were used to repay
certain long-term debt and to fund a portion of capital expenditures required to construct segments of the
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Qwest Network. Issuance costs totaling approximately $3 0 million are being amortized to interest expense
over the term of the Senior Notes. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually on April | and
October 1 of each year, commencing on October |, 1997, and the principal amount of the Senior Notes is
due and payable in full on April 1, 2007. The Indenture for the Senior Notes (the Indenture) contains
certain covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and centain of its subsidiaries
(the Restricted Subsidiaries) to incur additional indebtedness and issue preferred stock, pay dividends or
make other distributions, repurchase capital stock or subordinated indebtedness, create certain liens, enter
into certain transactions with affilistes, sell assets of the Company or its Restricted Subsidiaries, issue or
sell capital stock of the Company’s Restricted Subsidiaries or enter into certain mergers and consolidations.
In addition, under certain limited circumstances, the Company will be required to offer to purchase the
Senior Notes at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest to
the date of purchase with the excess proceeds of certain asset sales. In the event of a Change of Control
(as defined in the Indenture), holders of the Senior Notes will have the right to require the Company to
purchase all of their Senior Notes at a price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

In May 1997, the Company and an unrelated third party supplier (the Supplier) entered into 2 $90.0
million credit agreement (the Equipment Credit Facility) to finance the transnussion electronics equipment
to be purchased from the Supplier under a procurement agreement. Under the Equipment Credit Facility,
the Company may borrow funds as it purchases the equipment to fund up to 75% of the purchase price of
such equipment and related engineering and installation services provided by the Supplier, with the
purchased equipment and related items serving as collateral for the loans. Principal amounts outstanding
under the Equipment Credit Facility will be payable in quarterly installments commencing on June 30, 2000,
with repayment in full due and payable on March 31, 2004 Borrowings will bear interest at the Company’s
option at either: (i) a floating base rate announced by a designated reference bank plus an applicable
margin; or (ii) LIBOR plus an applicable margin. As of September 30, 1997, approximately $8.1 million
was outstanding under the Equipment Credit Facility.

In June 1997, the Company received approximately $319 5 million in net proceeds from the sale of
15.525,000 shares of Common Stock in its Initial Public Offenng.

In August 1997, the Company completed a registered exchange of new Senior Notes (with terms
identical in all material respects to the originally issued Senior Notes) for all of the onginally issued Senior
Notes. The Company received no proceeds from and recognized no profit on the exchange transaction,
and no change in the financial condition of the Company occurred as a result of the exchange transaction.

In October 1997, the Company issued $555,890,000 in pnincipal amount at matunty of Senior
Discount Notes. due 2007 (the Discount Notes), generating net proceeds of approximately $342.6 million,
after deducting offering costs which are included in intangible and cther long-term assets, such net
proceeds will be used to fund capital expenditures for continuing construction and activation of the
Network and to fund further growth in the business. The Discount Notes will accrete at a rate of 9 47%
per annum, compounded semi-annually, to an aggregate principal amount of $555,390,000 by October 15,
2002. The principal amount of the Discount Notes is due and payable in full on October 15, 2007 The
Discount Notes are redeemable at the Company’s option, in whole or in par. at any time on or after
October 15, 2002. at specified redemption prices. In addition. prior to October 15, 2000, the Company
may use the net cash proceeds from certain specified equity transactions to redeem up to 35% of the
Discount Notes at specified redemption prices. Cash interest on the Discount Notes will not accrue until
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October 15, 2002, and thereafter will accrue at a rate of 9.47% per annum, and will be payable semi-
annually in arrears commencing on April 15, 2003 and thereafter on April 15 and October 15 (each an
interest payment dats) of each year. The Company has the option of commencing the sccrual of cash
interest on an interest psyment date on or after October 1S, 2000, in which case the outstanding principal
amount at maturity of the Discount Notes will, on such interest payment date, be reduced to the then
accreted value, and cash interest will be payable on each interest payment date thereafter. The indenture for
the Discount Notes contains certain covenants that are substantially identical to the Senior Notes described

below.

In connection with the sale of the Discount Notes, the Company agreed to make an offer to
exchange new notes, registered under the Securities Act of 1953 (the Act) and with terms identical in all
material respects to the Discount Notes (the New Notes), for the Discount Notes or, alternatively, to file a
shelf registration statement under the Act with respect to the Discount Notes If the registration statement
for the exchange offer or the shelf registration statement. as applicable. are not filed or declared effective
within specified time periods or, after being declared effective, cease to be effective or usable for resale of
the Discount Notes during specified time periods (each a Registration Default), additional cash interest will
accrue at a rate per annum equal to 0.50% of the principal amount at maturity of the Discount Notes during
the 90-day period immediately following the occurrence of a Registration Default and increasing in
increments of 0.25% per annum of the principal amount at maturity of the Discount Notes up to a
maximum of 2.0% per annum. at the end of each subsequent 90-day period until the Registration Default is
cured.

In February 1997, the Company entered into a one-year $50 0 million line of credit from a
commercial bank. No amounts were ever drawn under this credit line, and the facility was canceled by the

Company in July 1997.

The Company had a $100.0 million three-year revolving credit facility that converts to a two-year
term loan maturing on April 2, 2001. In October 1997, the Company repaid the outstanding balance and
terminated this credit facility. The Company is considering obtaining a new bank credit facility of equal or
lesser amount.

In May 1997, the Company’s board of directors approved a change in the Company's capita! stock
to authorize 400 million shares of $.01 par value Common Stock (of which 10 million shares were reserved
for issuance under the equity incentive plan, 2 million shares were reserved for issuance under the Growth
Share Plan, and 4.3 million shares were reserved for issuance upon exercise of warrants), and 25 million
shares of $.01 par value Preferred Stock. In May 1997, the Company declared a stock dividend to the
existing stockholder of 86,490,000 shares of Common Stock, which was paid immediately prior to the
effectiveness of the registration statement on June 23, 1997 In June 1997, the Company completed an
initial public offering of 15,525,000 shares of its Common Stock.

Effective May 23, 1997, the Company sold to an affiliate of the Parent for S2 5 million in cash, a
warrant to acquire 4.3 million shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $28.00 per share.
exercisable on May 23, 2000. The warrant is not transferable. Stock issued upon exercise of the warrant
will be subject to restrictions on sale or transfer for two years after exercise.

The Company estimates the total cost to construct and activate the Qwest Network and complete
construction relating to the dark fiber sold to Frontier, WorldCom and GTE will be approximately $1.9
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billion. Total anticipated costs include approximately $640 0 million already expended by the Company as
of September 30, 1997. The Company anticipates remaining total cash outlays for these purpases of
approximately $170.0 million in 1997, $850.0 million in 1998 and 12400 million in 1999  Estimated total
expenditures in 1997 and 1998 include the Company’s commitment to purchase a minimum quantity of
fiber for approximately $399.0 million (subject to quality and performance specifications), of which
approximately $198.5 million had been expended as of September 30, 1997. Estimated total expenditures
for 1997, 1998 and 1999 together also include approximately $139.0 mllion for the purchase of electronic
equipment. In addition, the Company anticipates approximately $97 0 million of aggregate capital
expenditures in 1997 and 1998 to support growth in Carrier Services and Commercial Services.

As of September 30, 1997, the Company has obtained the following sources of funds: (i)
approximately $1.1 billion under the Frontier, WorldCom and GTE contracts and additional smaller
construction contracts for sales of dark fiber, of which approximately $551 0 million had already been paid
and $770.0 million remained to be paid at September 30, 1997, (1) $90 O nulhon of vendor tinancing, (iii)
approumudy $117.8 million of net proceeds from the sale of the Semor Notes remaining after repayment
of certain existing debt; and (iv) approximately $319 5 million of net proceeds from the initial public
offering, of which approximately $164.3 million has been used as of September 30, 1997 for construction
of the Network. The Company believes that its available cash and cash equivalent balances at September
30, 1997, the net proceeds from issuance of the Discount Notes in October and cash flow from operations
will satisfy its currently anticipated cash requirements at least through the second quarter of 1998

With the completion of the 16,000 route-mile network. the Company will provide
telecommunications services nationally to its customers primarily over its own facilities. using leased
facilities in those portion: of the country not covered by the Qwest Network. Qwest is evaluating the
economics of extending its core network versus continuing to lease nerwork capacity. In this regard, the
Company is considering extensions in the Pacific Northwest, and the Company is in negouations to connect
the route between Boston and New York City. Also. the Company continues to evaluate opportunities to
acquire or invest in complementary, attractively valued businesses. facilities. contract positions and
hardware to improve its ability to offer new products and services to customers, to compete more
effectively and to facilitate further growth of its business.



Item3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks
Not applicable.
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PARTH. OTHER INFORMATION

Item2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

()

@

Recent Sales of Unregistered Secunties

No equity securities of the registrant were sold by the registrant during the
period covered by this report that were not registered under the Securities Act of
1933. As described in Part | of this report, in July 1997, the Company issued
1.295.766 shares of its Common Stock (par value S 01 per share) in settlement
of accrued liability related to “Growth Shares™ outstanding under its Growth
Share Plan (a noncontributory, nondiscretionary emplovee benefit plan). such
issuances of Common Stock did not require registration under policies and
analyses contained in applicable SEC releases relating to employee benefit plans.

Use of Proceeds

The registrant completed its initial public offering of 15,525.000 shares of its
Common Stock (par value S.01 per share) on June 27, 1997 pursuant to a
registration statement (File No. 353-25391) declared effective on June 23, 1997
The underwriters for the offering were Salomon Brothers Inc., Donaldson,
Luskin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Mermill
Lynch & Co. The initial public offering price was $22.00 per share, with an
aggregate offering price of $341.550,000 (including overallotment option shares)
and net proceeds to the Company of approximately $S3195 million, after
deducting underwriting discount of approximately $20.5 million and S1.5 million
for expenses in connection with the issuance and distribution of the Common
Stock. Through September 30. 1597, the Company has used $164 5 million of
such net proceeds from its initial pubiic otfering for construction of its fiber optic
telecommunications network with the remaing net procesds temporarily
invested in certain short-term investment zrade securities, such as money market
funds, government securities and commercial paper

Item 5. Other Information

Annual Meeting Information

In order to be considered for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement and form of
proxy relating to the Company’s annual meeting of shareholders following the end of
the Company’s 1997 fiscal year, proposals by individual shareholders must be
received by the Company no later than December 31. 1997 The Company expects to
hold its first annual meeting of shareholders in early May 1998, and the Company will
notify the shareholders appropriately of the details related to the meeting.



SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Qwest Communications International Inc.,
a Delaware corporation

November 13, 1997 By: /s/ ROBERT S. WOODRUFF

Robert S. Woodruff

Executive Vice President - Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

(Duly Authorized Officer and
Principal Financial Officer)
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Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Exhibits

3. Bylaws (as amended)

10.1 Third Amendment to IRU Agreement dated July 23, 1997 by and
between Qwest Communications Corporation and WorldCom
Network Services, Inc.

10.2 First Amendment to IRU Agreement dated August 13, 1997 by and
between Qwest Communications Corporation and GTE Intelligent
Network Services Incorporated

11. Statements re computation of per share income (loss)
27. Financial data schedule

®) Reports on Form 8-K

None
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